

# Office of the City Clerk

City Hall 121 N. LaSalle St. Room 107 Chicago, IL 60602 www.chicityclerk.com

# Legislation Details (With Text)

File #: 02011-12

Type: Ordinance Status: Passed

File created: 1/13/2011 In control: City Council

**Final action:** 2/9/2011

Title: Collective bargaining agreement with Chicago Fire Fighters Union Local No 2

Sponsors: Daley, Richard M.

Indexes: Collective Bargaining

**Attachments:** 1. O2011-12.pdf

 Date
 Ver.
 Action By
 Action
 Result

 2/9/2011
 1
 City Council
 Passed
 Pass

1/13/2011 1 City Council Referred

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

CITY OF CHICAGO RICHARD M. DALEY MAYOR

January 13, 201

TO THE HONORABLE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO

Ladies and Gentlemen:

At the request of the Fire Commissioner, 1 transmit herewith an ordinance approving a collective bargaining agreement with the Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2.

Your favorable consideration of this ordinance will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,

#### **ORDINANCE**

#### BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves the attached agreement between the City of Chicago and the Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2, International Association of Fire Fighters, AFL-CIO-CLC. The Mayor is authorized to execute this agreement.

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall be in force and effect upon its passage and approval.

# **Labor Contract**

#### between

# CHICAGO FIRE FIGHTERS UNION, LOCAL NO. 2 International Association of Fire Fighters A.F.L. - CIO. - C.L.C AND

# THE CITY OF CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

### **JULY 1, 2007 through JUNE 30, 2012**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Page</u>	
ARTICLE I. PREAMBLE1	1
ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION	
ARTICLE III. UNION SECURITY	.1

Section 3.1 - Maintenance of Membership and Payroll Deductions	
Section 3.2 - Fair Share Fee and Payroll Deductions	2
Section 3.3 - Indemnity	
Section 3.4 - Union Business Leaves	
Section 3.5 - Distribution of Agreement	
Section 3.6 - Intra-Department Communications	
Section 3.7 - Union Insignia	5
ARTICLE IV. HOURS OF WORK	5
Section 4.1 - Platoon Duty	
Section 4.2 - Forty (40) Hour Employees	
Section 4.3 - Break Periods - Meal Periods	
Section 4.4 - Overtime Definition	
Section 4.5 - Altered Work Hours	10
ARTICLE V. WAGES AND RATES OF PAY	
Section 5.1 - Annual Salary Schedule	11
Section 5.2 - Straight-Time Hourly Rate	
Section 5.3 - Overtime Rate	12
Section 5.4 - Recall	12
Section 5.5 - Longevity Pay	13
Section 5.6 - Holdover	13
Section 5.7 - Duty Availability Pay	13
Section 5.8 - Incentive - Reclassification/Regraded Salary	14
ARTICLE VI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT	14
ARTICLE VII. PAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE	17
Section 7.1 - Vacations	17
Section 7.2 - Paid Holidays	
Section 7.3 - Sick and Injury Leave	
Section 7.4 - Military Leaves	
Section 7.5 - Funeral and Bereavement Leave	
Section 7.6 - Administrative Days - Trades & Exchanges	28
Section 7.7 - Educational Leaves	
Section 7.8 - Educational Reimbursement	33
Section 7.9 - Jury Duty - Subpoena	
ARTICLE VIII. UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
Page	
Section 8.1 - General	36
Section 8.2 - Procedures	36
Section 8.3 - Family Medical Leave Act	
ARTICLE IX. SENIORITY RIGHTS	
Section 9.1 - Seniority	
Section 9.2 - Overtime Distribution	
Section 9.3 - Vacancies and Promotions	
Section 9.4 - Layoff and Recall	
ARTICLE X. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	50
Section 10.1 - Definition	50
Section 10.2 - Procedure, Steps and Time Limits	50
Section 10.3 - Arbitration	
Section 10.4 - Authority of the Arbitrator	
Section 10.5 - Expenses of Arbitration	
Section 10.6 - Processing and Time Limits	
Section 10.7 - Processing Grievances	
Section 10.8 - Meetings Between the Parties	
Section 10.9 - Medical Grievances	
ARTICLE XI. NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT	54
ARTICLE XII. SAFETY, HEALTH & WELFARE	
Section 12.1 - Hospitalization and Medical Coverage, Dental, Optical, Life	
Programs55	cararioc
Section 12.2 - Safety and Health	60
·y · ·	

Section 12.3 - Pensions	
ARTICLE XIII. NO DISCRIMINATION	
Section 13.1 - No Discrimination	61
Section 13.2 - Gender	
Section 13.3 - Union's Duty of Fair Representation	62
Section 13.4 - Affirmative Action	
Section 13.5 - Americans With Disabilities Act	
ARTICLE XIV. MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS	
ARTICLE XV. DUTIES	
ARTICLE XVI. GENERAL PROVISIONS	63
Section 16.1 - Union Bulletin Boards	
Section 16.2 - Discipline and Discharge	
Section 16.3 - No Acting Out of Classification and Emergency Manpower St	
ii	iortages
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
Page	
<u>r age</u> Section 16.4 - Minimum Manning	67
Section 16.5 - Residency	
Section 16.6 - Mileage Allowance	
Section 16.7 - Permanent Assignments and Transfers	
Section 16.8 - Contracting and Subcontracting of Work	
Section 16.9 - Protective Gear and Clothing Allowance	
Section 16.10 - Hook and Ladder, Squad Drivers, ALS Ambulance Drive	ers, Tillerman,
Shop Apparatus, Ancillary Apparatus79	
Section 16.11 - Training	
Section 16.12 - Medical Benefit Letter	
Section 16.13 - Indemnification of Employees	
Section 16.14 - Special Compensation Time	
Section 16.15 - Specialty Pay	83
ARTICLE XVII. RULES AND REGULATIONS	83
Section 17.1	.83
Section 17.1 Section 17.2	
Section 17.2Section 17.3	84 84
Section 17.2Section 17.3	84 84
Section 17.2	84 84 84
Section 17.2Section 17.3Section 17.4 - Career Service ExemptionARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE	84 84 84 84
Section 17.2Section 17.3Section 17.4 - Career Service ExemptionATTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSEARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS	84 84 84 84
Section 17.2Section 17.3Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	84 84 84 84 84
Section 17.2	84 84 84 84 84 85
Section 17.2	84 84 84 84 85 85
Section 17.2	84 84 84 84 85 85
Section 17.2	84 84 84 84 85 85 85
Section 17.2	8484848485858585
Section 17.2	84848484858585858687
Section 17.2	84848484858585858687
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	84848484858585868788
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	84848485858585878997
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585868788899797
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585868788899797
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	84848485858586878897979797
Section 17.2- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption	848484858585
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption ARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE ARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS ARTICLE XX. DURATION AND TERMINATION Section 20.1 - Notice	848484858585868789979797979797
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption ARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE ARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS ARTICLE XX. DURATION AND TERMINATION Section 20.1 - Notice	848484858585868789979797979797
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption  ARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE  ARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS  ARTICLE XX. DURATION AND TERMINATION Section 20.1 - Notice Section 20.2 - Impasse Resolution - Binding Arbitration Board Section 20.3 - Ratification and Enactment by the City Council Section 20.4 - Signature  Appendix A - Confidential Employees Appendix B - Salary Schedules Appendix G - Equal Opportunity Section 1 - Compliance with Court Settlements and Decrees Section 2 - Hiring and Recruitment Section 3 - Transfers and Promotions Section 4 - Community Advisory Board EXHIBIT 1 - CITY OF CHICAGO HEALTH PLAN EXHIBIT 2 - CITY OF CHICAGO DENTAL PLAN EXHIBIT 3-  III  TABLE OF CONTENTS Page LETTERS OF AGREEMENT	848484858585
Section 17.2	84848485858586
Section 17.2- Section 17.3- Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption  ARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE  ARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS  ARTICLE XX. DURATION AND TERMINATION Section 20.1 - Notice Section 20.2 - Impasse Resolution - Binding Arbitration Board Section 20.3 - Ratification and Enactment by the City Council Section 20.4 - Signature  Appendix A - Confidential Employees Appendix B - Salary Schedules Appendix G - Equal Opportunity Section 1 - Compliance with Court Settlements and Decrees Section 2 - Hiring and Recruitment Section 3 - Transfers and Promotions Section 4 - Community Advisory Board EXHIBIT 1 - CITY OF CHICAGO HEALTH PLAN EXHIBIT 2 - CITY OF CHICAGO DENTAL PLAN EXHIBIT 3-  III  TABLE OF CONTENTS Page LETTERS OF AGREEMENT	8484

Fees for Emergency Medical Services	115
Disputes Concerning Medical Care Coverage and Benefits	116
Wellness Benefit	117
Health Fair1	
Duty or Occupational Disability Benefits	
Section 5.1.C. Wage and Insurance Protections	121
Maximum Mileage Allowance	
Promotions for Affirmative Action Purposes	
Performance Selection Promotions	
Section 16.15, Specialty Pay	
Vocational Training Program	
Physical Fitness Program	
EMS Relief Implementing Agreement	
Field Officer and Ambulance Commander	130
FLSA Premium Pay	133
Post-Retirement Medical Savings Plan	134
Assistant Deputy Chief ParamedicTrades and Exchanges between Firefighters and Fire Officers	13/
Trades and Exchanges between Firefighters and Fire Officers	139
Section 16.7.C.1	
Food Shopping On Duty Hours	141
Paid Military Leaves of Absence	
Benefits During Act of War - Terrorism	
Public Safety Employee Benefits Act	
Life Insurance Increase, May/June 2010	
Outpatient Speech and Occupational Therapy, 10/15/2010	148
Section 3.7 - Iron-On Patch	
Employee Privacy	150
Positive Presence for Drug/Alcohol	151
Random Drug Alcohol/Testing	
Re: General Orders 87-008 and 04-001	
Supplemental Recommendation (Last Change) Agreement and Terms	
Employee Assistance Program	
Alternative Medical Coverage	
Retiree Health Benefits	
Budgeted Engineer Positions	
Balancing Manpower and Squad Companies	
Off Duty D.U.I.'s	169
Contract Sections 3.4 and 7.3 and Medical Order	171
Medical Order	172
Joint Pension Committee	173
W-2 Letter1	74
Collections re: Medical Services	175
iv	

#### **ARTICLE I. PREAMBLE**

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the CITY OF CHICAGO, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer", and the CHICAGO FIRE FIGHTERS UNION, LOCAL NO. 2 of the INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE FIGHTERS, AFL-CIO-CLC, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the Employer and the Union, to establish proper standards of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment, and to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustment of differences over the interpretation and application of this Agreement, and to promote intra-departmental efficiency and effectiveness.

#### ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the following employees, for the purpose of collective bargaining and establishing and administering a

labor contract covering wages, rates of pay, hours of labor and all other terms and conditions of employment:

All full time uniformed members of the Chicago Fire Department below the ranks of Deputy District Chief and Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedics, excluding employees as specified in Appendix A. Such confidential employees shall be granted leaves from their bargaining unit assignments for the duration of their assignment as confidential employees, but shall be allowed to return to the bargaining unit after the termination of their assignment as confidential employees.

#### ARTICLE III. UNION SECURITY

#### Section 3.1 - Maintenance of Membership and Payroll Deductions

A. Each employee who on the effective date of this Agreement is a member of the Union, and each employee who becomes a member after that date, shall, as a condition of employment, maintain his/her membership in the Union during the term of this Agreement by the timely payment of uniform membership fees, dues and other financial obligations.

B. During the term of this Agreement the Employer agrees to deduct each pay day Union dues and other financial obligations in the amount certified to be current by the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union from the pay of the employees who are members of the Union covered by this Agreement who individually request in writing that such deductions be made. The total amount of the deductions shall be remitted to the Union no later than thirty-five (35) days after the deduction is made by the Employer.

1

Authorization for such deduction shall be irrevocable unless revoked by written notice to the Employer and to the Union during the thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement. C. Should any employee covered by this Agreement, who is a member of the Union, become in arrears in his dues or other financial obligations to the Union, the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union shall so notify the Employer and the Employer shall immediately commence to treat any such employee as a fair share fee payer in accordance with Section 3.2.

#### Section 3.2 - Fair Share Fee and Payroll Deductions

Any present employee who is not a member of the Union and all employees hired on or after the effective date of this Agreement and who have not made application for membership shall, commencing thirty (30) days after their employment or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, and continuing during the term of this Agreement, and so long as they remain non-members of the Union, pay to the Union each month their fair share of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract administration and pursuing matters affecting wages, hours and conditions of employment.

It is further agreed that upon compliance by the Union with requirements set forth in the paragraph below, the Employer shall deduct from the earnings of present employees and newly-hired employees not members of the Union, a monthly amount as certified by the Union and shall remit such deductions to the Union at the same time that the dues check-off is remitted. It is understood that the amount of deductions (hereinafter the "fair share amount") from said non-member bargaining unit employees will not exceed the regular monthly Union dues and represents the employee's fair share cost of the collective bargaining process, contract administration and the pursuit of matters affecting wages, hours and other conditions of employment.

Before any fair share amounts are deducted from the wages of present employees or newly-hired employees, the Union shall submit the following to the Employer (i.e., to the person designated by the Employer) for its inspection: a copy of the notice the Union intends to distribute to non-member employees, which notice shall include:

- a) a summary of the major categories of Union expenses, together with an explanation of the formula for the calculation of the fair share fee;
- b) a statement that the summary has been verified by an independent auditor applying generally

accepted accounting principles;

- c) a statement that a procedure exists by which fair share payers may challenge the amount of the fair share fee (which procedure shall include resolution of challenges by an impartial decision-maker) and an explanation of said procedure(s); and
- d) a statement that there exists an escrow account into which contested fees will be placed while non-members' challenges are pending.

2

If the notice does not contain the above-stated categories of items, the Employer will notify the Union in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt and shall not make deductions for non-members until the Union furnishes a substituted notice, which upon Employer review satisfies the above stated format. The Employer shall notify the Union of its review in writing within fifteen (15) days of receipt of any substituted notice. The Union shall be responsible for distribution of fair share notices to non-members, including new hires, and the City will cause copies of the notice to be posted on employee bulletin boards at Chicago Fire Department facilities at which bargaining unit employees are regularly assigned. The fact of the publication of the notice will also be announced at a daily roll call on each of three (3) successive days subsequent to the publication of the notice. The Employer shall not under any circumstances guarantee the legal sufficiency or factual accuracy of the Union's fair share calculations, fair share amount, or fair share procedures, as reflected in the aforesaid notice.

#### Section 3.3 - Indemnity

The Union shall indemnify and save the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with the above provisions of this Article, or in reliance on any list, notice, certification or assignment furnished under any of such provisions.

#### **Section 3.4 - Union Business Leaves**

A. Upon thirty (30) days advance written notice the Employer agrees to grant a leave of absence for not more than three (3) years without pay to not more than two (2) employees who may be elected to a full-time Union position with the Local or International Union. While on such leave the employee shall not incur a break in continuous service. An employee on leave shall not be eligible for any other fringe benefits except for the specific pension provision applicable to the Union President under the State of Illinois Pension Code.

In addition to the foregoing, three (3) employees covered by the Agreement shall, upon thirty (30) days written notice, be granted leave from their duties, but shall remain on the payroll, for the purpose of performing full-time duties on behalf of the Union. During such leave said employees shall continue to accumulate seniority and shall be eligible for and shall receive all benefits as if they were fully on duty, including, but not limited to, pension accruals. Effective January 1, 2002, the Union will reimburse the City in an amount equal to the cost of the salaries and fringe benefits contributions for employees on Union leave. The Employer shall remain responsible for its portion of the pension contribution.

B. Subject to the need for orderly scheduling and any emergency needs, and upon thirty (30) days advance written notice, the Employer agrees to release from work without loss of pay Union officials and representatives in order to attend bargaining sessions, membership meetings, executive board meetings, state conventions, national conventions, seminars,

conferences or symposiums. It is provided, however, that this shall be limited to a maximum of 2640 hours annually.

The Union shall supply the Employer with a list containing the names, Union office, rank and permanent assignment of all Union officials and representatives. Prior to any scheduled bargaining session, membership meeting or executive board meeting, the Union shall notify the Fire Department Labor Relations Chief, in writing, of the names of its officials or representatives requiring paid time off, and the anticipated length of the

scheduled session or meeting. Union officials or representatives receiving paid time off to attend the session or meeting must return to work at the conclusion of said session or meeting.

- C. One (1) person designated by the Union shall be released from work to attend sessions of the Illinois State Legislature as Legislative Representative under the following terms and conditions:
- (a) Said person must notify the Fire Commissioner or his designee, through channels, three (3) days in advance of his/her attendance at any such session.
- (b) Said person, upon request, shall promptly provide the Fire Commissioner with a report of the matters of interest considered by the legislature during the session attended.
- (c) If said person receives his/her authorized per diem allowance from the Union, his/her absence from work shall be without loss of pay.
- (d) The Union will provide the Fire Commissioner or his/her designee with satisfactory evidence concerning the payment of per diem allowance.

When needed, a second person designated by the Union shall be allowed to exchange work shifts and Daley Days to attend sessions of the Illinois State Legislature as Legislative Representative. Said person shall also comply with paragraphs (a) and (b) above, and shall further comply with the mechanics of Section 7.6C as it relates to the exchange of work shifts and Daley Days to the extent that 7.6C is not inconsistent with paragraphs (a) and (b) above, and such exchanges shall not be charged to exchanges in 7.6C.

#### **Section 3.5 - Distribution of Agreement**

The Union shall print and distribute a copy of this Agreement to all current members of the bargaining unit and any new members hired during the term of this Agreement. On request, copies of the Agreement may be furnished to the Fire Commissioner for distribution through the Department.

#### **Section 3.6 - Intra-Department Communications**

A. The Union may utilize the Departmental simulcast to communicate notice of scheduled Union meetings and special events, with the approval of the Fire Commissioner or his/her designee.

- B. The Department shall provide the Union with copies of:
- 1. All General Orders, Special Orders, Personnel Orders, Directives, Memoranda, Notices and all writings relating to or amending the foregoing, when issued;
- 2. Immediately after each transfer order, a listing of members indicating name, bureau, assignment (company or otherwise), and if applicable Platoon and Daley Day;
- 3. A quarterly listing of employees in alpha and assignment sequence; and
- 4. A copy of change of address forms (PER 72) that are submitted to the City by bargaining unit members.

#### Section 3.7 - Union Insignia

Employees may wear the official Union insignia on both their dress and work uniforms. Such insignia shall be a pin, not larger than the size of a dime on the dress uniform. On the work uniform, such insignia shall be an iron-on patch not larger than the size of a quarter. On the dress uniform such insignia shall be centered one-quarter (1/4) inch above the member's name plate. On the work uniform such insignia shall be centered one and one-half (1-1/2) inches above the member's right breast pocket.

#### ARTICLE IV. HOURS OF WORK

#### Section 4.1 - Platoon Duty

A. Bureaus of Operations and Support Services

Employees covered by this Agreement who work within the Bureaus of Operations and Support Services, shall be assigned to regular platoon duty shifts, except forty (40) hour employees as defined in Section 4.2. The normal on duty tours of duty shall be twenty-four (24) consecutive hours on duty, starting at 8:00 a.m. and ending the following 8:00 a.m.; except, however, that the twenty-four (24) hours on duty for Battalion Chiefs and employees assigned as drivers to employees in the ranks of Battalion Chief and above shall normally start between 7:00 a.m. and 7:30 a.m. The normal on duty tour shall be followed by forty-eight (48) consecutive hours off duty. The annual average weekly hours on duty shall normally not exceed forty-four point eight (44.8) hours per week. The

5

average weekly hours shall normally be accomplished by scheduling every fifth (5th) on duty shift as a Daley Day off duty. Exceptions to the above may be made in special situations as described in Subsection 4.1 B.

B. Special Situations - Bureaus of Operations and Support Services

Employees may be temporarily detailed from platoon duty to forty (40) hour duty and from forty (40) hour duty to platoon duty for a period of not less than five (5) days and not to exceed thirty (30) days, or longer by mutual agreement of the parties, and such agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld by the Union. Employees may be so detailed only for reasons of training, special duty assignments, or when the Fire Commissioner or Mayor determines and announces that an emergency condition exists. After the five (5) day minimum period, employees shall be returned to their normal duty positions and schedules when the training, special situation or emergency condition ceases to exist, or, if applicable, upon termination of any mutually agreed extension of a temporary detail beyond thirty (30) days. Such temporary details shall also be subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Details shall be on a voluntary basis according to seniority, except if there are insufficient voluntary requests, then details will be implemented with the least senior employees; provided, however,
- (a) training instructors shall only be detailed on a voluntary basis, and
- (b) no employee shall be mandatorily detailed who has a previously scheduled furlough or Administrative Day in the first thirty (30) days of the detail. In the case of a detail which exceeds thirty (30) days, by mutual agreement as above provided, the employee will receive his/her furlough or Administrative Day in the mode of operation for the schedule to which he is detailed.
- 2. An employee detailed shall receive the appropriate rate of pay, but no less than the employee's regular rate of pay. An employee receiving any benefits accrued prior to the detail, such as assigned furlough or Administrative Day and forty-eight (48) hours off between shifts as set forth in Article IV shall not be modified except as provided above in subparagraph 1.
- In the case of an employee detailed from platoon duty, any previously earned Daley Days shall be granted immediately upon the employee's return to platoon duty.
- 3. After thirty (30) days, detailed employees shall be slotted on to overtime lists by last date of rehire the District Chief and Union Steward or Business Agent shall consult.
- 4. Any employee detailed from a forty (40) hour duty schedule to platoon duty shall receive one-quarter (1/4) of a Daley Day for each platoon shift worked.
- 5. No employee detail shall commence on a holiday; except when the Fire Commissioner or Mayor determines and announces that an emergency exists.
- 6. No employee shall be so detailed for disciplinary reasons.
- C. Bureau of Operations/Division of Emergency Medical Services

Employees covered by this Agreement who work within the Bureau of Operations/Division of Emergency Medical Services (i.e. Paramedics, Paramedics-in-Charge, Ambulance Commanders and Field Chiefs) shall be assigned to regular platoon duty shifts, except forty (40) hour employees as defined in Section 4.2. The normal on duty tours of duty shall be twenty-four (24) consecutive hours on duty, starting at 8:00 a.m. and ending the following 8:00 a.m.; except, however, that the twenty-four (24) hours on duty for Field Officers shall normally start between 7:00 a.m. and 7:30 a.m. The normal on duty tour shall be followed by seventy-two (72) consecutive hours off duty. The annual average weekly hours on duty shall normally not exceed forty-two (42) hours per week. The normal weekly work period shall be the seven (7) days from Sunday through Saturday consistent with the starting and ending times set forth in this subparagraph C. Exceptions to the above may be made in special situations as described in Subsection 4.1 D.

D. Special Situations - Bureau of Operations/Division of Emergency Medical Services

Employees may be temporarily detailed from platoon duty to forty (40) hour duty and from forty (40) hour duty to platoon duty for a period of not less than five (5) days and not to exceed thirty (30) days, or longer by mutual agreement of the parties, and such agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld by the Union. Employees may be so detailed only for reasons of training, special duty assignments, or when the Fire Commissioner or Mayor determines and announces that an emergency condition exists. After the five (5) day minimum period, employees shall be returned to their normal duty positions and schedule when the training, special situation or emergency condition ceases to exist, or, if applicable, upon termination of any mutually agreed extension of a temporary detail beyond thirty (30) days. Such temporary details shall also be subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Details shall be on voluntary basis according to seniority, except if there are insufficient voluntary requests, then details will be implemented with the least senior employees; provided, however,
- a. training instructors shall only be detailed on a voluntary basis, and
- b. no employee shall be mandatorily detailed who has a previously scheduled furlough or Administrative Day in the first thirty (30) days of the detail. In the case of a detail which exceeds thirty (30) days, by mutual agreement as above provided, the employee will receive his/her furlough or Administrative Day in the mode of operation for the schedule to which he/she is detailed.
- 2. An employee detailed shall receive the appropriate rate of pay, but no less than the employee's regular rate of pay. An employee receiving any benefits accrued prior to the detail, such as assigned furlough or Administrative Day and seventy-two (72) hours off between shifts as set forth in Article IV shall not be modified except as provided above in subparagraph 1.
- An employee shall be granted at least twenty-four (24) hours off duty before reporting to or returning from a detail between platoon duty and forty (40) hour duty.
- 3. After thirty (30) days, detailed employees shall be slotted on to overtime lists by last date of rehire the District Commander and Union Steward or Business Agent shall consult.
- 4. No employee detail shall commence on a holiday; except when the Fire Commissioner or Mayor determines and announces that an emergency exists.

# 5. No employee shall be so detailed for disciplinary reasons. Section 4.2 - Forty (40) Hour Employees

A. Employees within the Bureaus of Administrative Services, Employee Relations, Support Services and Division of Emergency Medical Services, and other bureaus listed in Section 4.1 who are not on platoon duty, shall work a normal workweek consisting of eight (8) consecutive hours, Monday through Friday. Exceptions to the normal workweek shall be consistent with past practice.

B. Employees assigned to the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall normally work ten (10) consecutive

hours, four (4) days per calendar week. There will be two (2) shifts (A & B) rotating every two (2) weeks. The "A" shift will work Monday-Thursday one week and Tuesday-Friday the following week. The "B" shift will work Tuesday-Friday one week and Monday-Thursday the following week. Hours of duty will be 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM including a one (1) hour lunch period and three (3) fifteen minutes breaks, (two in the morning and one in the afternoon) each day. Furloughs will be selected in the customary manner.

8

If a holiday falls on Monday, those employees working Monday-Thursday will be off duty on Monday and those employees working Tuesday-Friday will be off duty on Tuesday. If a holiday falls on a Friday, employees working Monday-Thursday will be off duty on Thursday and employees working Tuesday-Friday will be off duty on Friday. If a holiday falls on Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday, the holiday will be celebrated on that day for all employees.

1. Each employee shall provide weekend coverage a maximum of four (4) out of the fifty-two (52) weeks per year. Employees shall bid for weekends by seniority limited to when the employee's shift is assigned to

Tuesday-Friday. If assigned to a weekend, the duty days shall be Wednesday, Thursday, Friday and Saturday. Wednesday and Thursday shifts shall be the normal ten (10) hour day. The Friday and Saturday shifts will each begin in the evening and last for eight (8) hours, (Friday 6:00 PM to Saturday 2:00 AM, and Saturday 8:00 PM to Sunday 4:00 AM), giving the employee a total of 36 hours worked that week and being paid for 40 hours. No other premium pay shall be applicable to those hours for the weekend selected.

2. At the discretion of the Deputy Fire Commissioner, employees will be exempt from this scheduling for the position listed below:

Aide to the Commissioner

The employee(s) exempt from this scheduling will be presented to the Union and kept current as changes occur.

3. Procedure for establishing this Weekend Work Status List:

A list of the fifty-two (52) weekends per year will be sent to each affected member who will choose the weekends he/she wishes to be available for work. Employees shall be assigned to the four (4) weekend work periods using seniority as the criteria. Ten (10) employees will be chosen for each weekend tour.

4. Employees shall not normally be required to work with less than ten (10) hours off between shift assignments during the Monday through Sunday workweek. Any employee assigned to work with less than ten (10) hours off between shifts shall receive additional pay at increments of one hour at one-half time hourly rate for each hour, or any portion thereof, less than such ten (10) hours.

For all time consisting of fifteen (15) minutes or more beyond the normal shift, employees also shall be compensated at the applicable overtime rate.

9

Employees will not be required to work with less than eight (8) hours off between shift assignments unless a bonafide operational need exists.

#### Section 4.3 - Break Periods - Meal Periods

A. Except for employees assigned to the Fire Prevention Bureau, forty (40) hour employees' work schedule shall provide for a fifteen (15) minute paid break period during each one-half (1/2) shift. The break period shall be scheduled approximately at the middle of each one-half (1/2) shift whenever this is feasible. Such forty (40) hour employees shall also be granted a paid lunch period of not to exceed one (1) hour during each work shift. Whenever feasible, the lunch period shall be scheduled approximately at the middle of each shift.

B. Any forty (40) hour employee who for any reason works two (2) hours beyond his/her regular quitting time shall be entitled to another fifteen (15) minute paid break period.

#### **Section 4.4 - Overtime Definition**

Employees authorized to work any time on duty in addition to the normal shifts as defined in this Article shall be considered as working overtime hours, subject to the overtime rate provision of this Agreement.

Compensation shall not be paid more than once for the same hours worked under any provision of this Article or Agreement.

#### **Section 4.5 - Altered Work Hours**

Employees on a voluntary basis may be assigned or detailed as instructors to the Academy, and if so shall be paid as provided in Article VI B6.

Instructors and other employees assigned or detailed to the Academy may, for the purpose of facilitating training or special duty, be scheduled to work Saturday or Sunday instead of the normal five (5) day workweek, or they may have their normal daily work hours altered, but not to exceed the total number of eight (8) consecutive hours in any one day.

Consistent with the agreed practice in the Fire Prevention Bureau, if a recognized holiday is observed under Section 7.2A on a day other than the scheduled work day of an employee assigned or detailed to the Academy, that employee's next scheduled work day shall be considered that employee's recognized holiday and treated as such under Section 7.2B.

Employees shall not normally be required to work with less than ten (10) hours off between shift

assignments during a Monday through Sunday workweek. Any employee assigned to work with less than ten (10) hours off between shifts shall receive additional pay at increments of one (1) hour at one-half (1/2) times their

#### 10

hourly rate for each hour or any portion thereof less than such ten (10) hours. For all times consisting of fifteen (15) minutes or more beyond their normal shift, employees shall be compensated at the applicable overtime rate.

This Section 4.5 shall not apply to employees in the Platoon mode.

#### ARTICLE V. WAGES AND RATES OF PAY

#### Section 5.1 - Annual Salary Schedule

A. Effective July 1, 2007, the annual salaries of the members of

the bargaining unit shall be paid pursuant to the salary schedule attached hereto and made part of this Agreement and identified as Appendix B.

- B. (a) The following wage changes will be instituted:
- 1. Effective July 1, 2007, a 1 % increase.
- 2. Effective January 1, 2008, a 3% increase.
- 3. Effective January 1, 2009, a 2% increase.
- 4. Effective January 1, 2010, a 1% increase.
- 5. Effective January 1, 2011, a 2% increase.
- 6. Effective January 1, 2012, a 1% increase.
- (b) The increases will be retroactive to the dates specified and be applicable to all salary-related items. Retroactivity for these increases will be applicable to all persons on the payroll at any time on or after July 1, 2007.
- C. Wage and Insurance Protection

During the period of this Agreement should the bargaining unit of sworn police officers below the rank of sergeant recognized by the City of Chicago, or the police lieutenants unit recognized by the City of Chicago, or the police lieutenants unit recognized by the City of Chicago, or the police captains unit recognized by the City of Chicago, or any other bargaining unit recognized by the City of Chicago receive a lump sum payment or a percentage salary or wage increase in excess of that set forth herein or receive improvements in step and /or longevity pay schedules (other than when a particular job function has been reclassified), the City shall grant Local 2 bargaining unit members in comparable ranks increases equivalent to those, and/or any of those, granted to any other such bargaining unit or police unit over the same time period, and increases to other Local 2 unit members sufficient so that the lump sum or percentage of salary or wage differences between classifications and ranks in Local 2's unit be maintained at no less than existed before the increases. It is further agreed that any improvements in insurance coverage and/or benefits greater than those provided in this Agreement that are granted to the bargaining unit of sworn police officers below the rank of sergeant recognized by the City of Chicago or any other bargaining unit recognized by the City of Chicago, or the police sergeants unit recognized by the City

11

of Chicago, the police lieutenants unit recognized by the City of Chicago and/or the police captains unit recognized by the City of Chicago, whether in Health and Welfare Medical Care, Dental, Optical, Life or AD&D, shall also be made effective for the bargaining unit represented by Local 2.

This provision is for the purpose, among others, of maintaining, on behalf of Local 2 represented employees, no less than historical parity between the two (2) groups of sworn employees.

D. Paychecks shall normally be due and payable to employees at 0800 at their work place on the established pay dates of the first (1st) and sixteenth (16th) of each month. If the paychecks are available to the District Chiefs for earlier distribution, they shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Premium pay for any overtime or holiday work shall be received by the employee on the pay date for the pay period following the period in which such work was performed, but in no event later than the second (2nd) pay period following the period in which such work was performed, except for EMS platoon employees no later than the third (3rd) pay period following the period in which such work was performed.

E. Effective January 1, 2006, the maximum rate of pay on the salary schedule for employees covered by this Agreement will be available to employees with twenty-five (25) years of service. The salary schedule for the

red-circled employees with more than thirty (30) years of service prior to January 1, 2006 is also set forth in Appendix B.

#### Section 5.2 - Straight-Time Hourly Rate

The regular straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay shall be determined and computed by dividing the employee's annual salary by 2080 for the eight (8) hour shift employees and by 2120 for the twenty-four (24) hour shift employees.

#### Section 5.3 - Overtime Rate

Employees shall receive overtime pay at the rate of time and one-half for all work performed beyond their regularly scheduled hours consisting of fifteen (15) minutes or more. Such employees shall receive pay at the overtime rate for one-half (1/2) hour. Work consisting of more than one-half (1/2) hour shall be paid in one-half (1/2) hour increments. The City's managerial rights to make and enforce rules regarding employee lateness or other gratuitous and/or informal periods of time off during regular working hours are reserved.

#### Section 5.4 - Recall

A. Employees recalled to duty shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the overtime rate.

B. Employees who are recalled to duty after 0700 on the day to be worked shall receive a minimum of five (5) hours pay at the overtime rate.

#### Section 5.5 - Longevity Pay

The Employer agrees to pay longevity pay in accordance with the salary schedules attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement and identified as Appendix B. Effective July 1, 1995, longevity pay shall be increased to a 4% differential for F1 at Steps 10 and 11.

Effective January 1, 2004, F6 at Step 10 shall be increased by .5% and F6 at Step 11 shall be increased by 1.1%.

#### Section 5.6 - Holdover

Employees may be held over for a maximum of four (4) hours to work beyond their regular shift to cover unexpected and unscheduled manpower shortages. A platoon employee being held over may secure a substitute to work for him from other employees within the District on his shift and of the same rank. He/She may use the marshal line for this purpose, subject to approval of the Company Officer. Where the shortage is in the rank of Firefighter the Firefighter with the least seniority shall be held over unless a more senior Firefighter volunteers. Employees held over fifteen (15) minutes or more shall be paid in accordance with Section 5.3 of this Agreement. Administration of this provision shall be consistent with the application of Sections 9.2 and 16.3 of this Agreement.

#### Section 5.7 - Duty Availability Pay

A. All employees, except EMS employees assigned to platoon duty, shall earn duty availability pay each quarter. For each month, or any portion thereof, the employee shall be paid one-third (1/3) of the payment for that quarter. The first payment shall be made January, 2001 and each April, July, October and January thereafter, by the end of the applicable month.

The quarterly payment amounts for all employees, except EMS employees assigned to platoon duty, shall be increased to the following amounts on the dates specified:

B. EMS employees assigned to platoon duty shall earn duty availability pay for each quarter. For each month or any portion thereof, the employee shall be paid one-third (1/3) of the payment for that quarter. The first payment shall be made January, 2001 and each April, July, October and January thereafter, by the end of the applicable month. Beginning in April of 2007, EMS Platoon employees will earn duty

Effective Payment Date

Amount Per Quarter

January, 2006 January, 2011 January, 2012

\$730.00 \$755.00 \$805.00

13

availability pay at the rate of \$688.00 per quarter, with the first quarterly payment to be made in July of 2007. These quarterly payment amounts for EMS employees assigned to platoon duty shall be increased to the following amount on the date specified:

Effective Payment Date Amount Per Quarter

July, 2007 \$688.00

#### Section 5.8 - Incentive - Reclassification/Regraded Salary

- A. 1. All non-probationary employees shall be paid a one-time payment by the City of \$750.00 upon receiving their EMT-B license and obtaining approval to function in the Chicago EMS System. All employees who obtain their EMT-P license shall be paid a one-time payment of \$1,500.00 upon receiving said license, and obtaining approval to function in the Chicago EMS System. To qualify for such payments, employees shall sign a five (5) year commitment to participate as a cross-trained dual status EMT-B or EMT-P and comply with the provisions of Sections 16.4C7(b), (c) and (d). Employees who choose to voluntarily participate, but not sign the five (5) year commitment shall not receive the one-time payment.
- 2. This one-time payment provision does not apply to those employees currently participating in the mandatory five (5) year (or effective the date of contract ratification, seven (7) year) dual status commitment pursuant to Section 16.4C3 or to future employees who crossover pursuant to Section
- B. All employees who are or become cross-trained dual status FS&R and EMT-B or EMT-P licensed employees, shall be classified and graded as such. These employees shall be paid annual salaries for the classified/graded cross-trained dual status FS&R and EMT-B or EMT-P positions reflecting 4% and 7% respectively (effective January 1, 2011, 5% and 7.5% respectively) higher than non-dual status employees, except employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, who obtain their EMT-B license and approval to function in the Chicago EMS System shall receive the 5% incentive commencing at Step 4 (after 30 month). This shall be pursuant to Contract Appendix B.

#### ARTICLE VI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

Section A - Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the complete and entire Agreement between the parties and concludes collective bargaining (except as provided for in the

January, 2011 January, 2012

\$713.00 \$805.00

16.4C3.

14

grievance procedure) for its term. Amendments and modifications of this Agreement may be made by mutual written agreement of the parties to this Agreement.

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the Employer and the Union, for the duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Section B - Prevailing Rights

The following rights, privileges and benefits enjoyed by employees prior to February 13, 1980 will be maintained for the duration of this Agreement and shall not be diminished, modified or eliminated during the term of this Agreement unless changed by mutual written consent.

#### 1. Employee Assistance Program

The Department has historically maintained an Employee Assistance Program to assist employees who may suffer from alcoholism, drug dependency, or other illnesses which should be treated. It is understood that alcoholism or drug dependency in and of themselves shall not be the basis for discipline; however, if coupled with deteriorating and impaired job performance, they may be the basis for discipline. The Department shall continue to maintain such an Employee Assistance Program though changes may be necessary to incorporate new knowledge in the field, as has been done in the past.

The above is not intended to detract from the provisions of General Order No. 87-008 dated February 1, 1987, but to supplement the same with a commitment towards intervention and rehabilitation

through cooperative efforts of counselors in the Employee Assistance Program of the Union and the Department.

It is provided, however, that probationary employees shall not be eligible to participate in the Department's Employee Assistance Program, and any probationary employee who tests positive in violation of General Order 87-008 shall not be entitled to a supplemental (last chance) agreement and shall be terminated.

15

#### 2. Athletic Facilities

Off duty employees shall be permitted use of Department athletic facilities subject to reasonable departmental policies regarding time of use and conduct. It is understood that an injury caused by such use by off duty employees shall be considered a non-duty injury.

#### 3. Newly Promoted

The City will assign, as needed, newly promoted Lieutenants to the Fire Prevention Bureau at the discretion of the Fire Commissioner.

#### 4. Lockers

The Department shall continue to provide locker space to all employees on platoon duty in the Bureau of Operations for the purpose of securing personal belongings and as a closet for dress uniforms, extra work clothes and civilian dress. Subject to the availability of lockers, platoon relief and detailed personnel and employees other than those assigned to the Bureau of Operations may be allowed use of lockers with the approval of the District Chief/Director.

#### 5. Furnishing of Fire House

For each Fire House the City will furnish one (1) stove, one (1) refrigerator, kitchen table(s), chairs, desk(s), as well as sufficient beds, mattresses, pillows and blankets for each on duty employee. These items will be identified with inventory control numbers and/or accounted for on an inventory sheet. Only these identified items will be replaced when necessary at the City's discretion.

#### 6. Training Instructor Incentive Pay

An employee below the rank of Lieutenant/Ambulance Commander who is assigned/detailed to the Fire Academy as an Instructor, shall be paid at a minimum the pay of a Lieutenant/Ambulance Commander (F4), and at the employee's current pay step. An employee at or above the rank of Lieutenant/Ambulance Commander shall be paid at the next higher rank/classification, and at the employee's current pay step. However, a Battalion Chief so assigned who is at Step 10 or 11 shall be paid at the highest step of grade F7; a Battalion Chief at Step 7, 8 or 9 shall be paid at the next to highest step of grade F7; and Battalion Chiefs at Steps 1 through 6 shall be paid at the third (3rd) from highest step of grade F7. The employee shall return to his/her current career service pay grade and step as soon as the employee's assignment as Training Instructor has ended.

#### 7. Pro-rata Vacations - New Employees

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, a newly hired employee shall be eligible for and receive a pro-rata vacation in the year following the year in which the employee is hired. For each month of service, or any portion thereof, the employee shall accrue furlough time pursuant to Section 7.1. However, a new employee not successfully completing academy training shall not be eligible for this pro-rata vacation benefit.

#### 8. No Docking of Pay of Employees Taking Promotion Examinations

No employee who otherwise would be on duty shall be docked for time spent taking a promotional examination. During the period involved, the provisions of Section 16.3 and Section 16.4 with respect to minimum manning as well as acting out of classification shall be waived.

#### ARTICLE VII. PAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### **Section 7.1 - Vacations**

A. Eligibility and Allowance

- 1. Every employee shall be eligible for paid vacation after completion of one (1) year of service. However, employees shall start to earn their vacation allowance as of their date of hire. Platoon and forty (40) hour employees shall accrue pro-rata vacation for each month of service or any portion thereof, in each year in accordance with Section 7.1A2 (a), (b) and (c).
- 2. Eligible employees shall be granted an annual paid vacation as follows:
- (a) Forty (40) hour employees five (5) weeks. After completion often (10) years of service or more prior to July 1st six (6) weeks for that calendar year. The sixth week of vacation, at the employee's option, may be taken in a full week or in daily increments. After completion of twenty-five (25) years of service or more prior to July 1 of that calendar year, forty (40) hour employees shall receive three (3) additional days of paid vacation per calendar year.
- Forty (40) hour employees shall receive an additional day of paid vacation for any holiday which falls during a vacation.
- (b) Platoon employees (except for Emergency Medical Services) twelve (12) duty days. After completion of twenty-five (25) years of service or more prior to July 1 of that calendar year, Platoon employees shall have the option of selecting either: one (1) additional duty day off or payment of 17

their regular straight-time and basic hourly rate for that additional duty day [i.e. thirteen (13) duty days upon completion of twenty-five (25) years of service or more prior to July 1 of that calendar year.] Eligible employees shall make their selection on an annual basis at the same time that vacation selections are made. Eligible employees who do not affirmatively select to receive an additional duty day off shall receive payment for one duty day at their regular straight-time and basic hourly rate in lieu of their additional duty day off. Payment shall be made by the last day of the first calendar quarter following the selection period.

(c) Platoon employees - Emergency Medical Services

Years of Service Number of Vacation Duty Days

After 1 Year 3 days

After 5 Years 6 days

After 15 Years 9 days

After 25 Years 10 days

After completing of one (1), five (5), fifteen (15) or twenty-five (25) years of service or more prior to July 1, the employee shall receive the vacation set forth above for that calendar year.

- 3. In order to insure that all Platoon employees (except EMS platoon employees) receive their twelve (12) duty days off, all such employees shall receive three (3) furlough periods; and each furlough period shall include four (4) duty days; additionally, those employees who are entitled to thirteen (13) duty days (as provided in Subsection 2(b) above) and who have elected to receive an additional duty day off, rather than payment in lieu of that duty day off, shall receive an additional furlough period which shall include one (1) duty day.
- 4. For EMS platoon employees each vacation period shall consist of one (1) duty day, and on the basis of seniority and rank such employees shall select and be assigned all vacation duty days to which the employee is entitled. After completion of twenty-five (25) years of service or more prior to July 1 of that calendar year, EMS Platoon employees shall have the option of selecting either: one (1) additional duty day off or payment of their regular straight-time and basic hourly rate for that one day. Eligible employees shall make their selection on an annual basis at the same time that vacation selections are made. Eligible employees who do not affirmatively select to receive all of their ten (10) duty days off shall receive payment for one (1) duty day at their regular straight-time and basic hourly rate in lieu of one (1) of their duty days off. Payment shall be

made by the last day of the first quarter following the selection period.

5. Consistent with current Department pay practices for platoon employees (except for Bureau of

Emergency Medical Services) one (1) duty day is the equivalent of three (3) calendar days and for forty (40) hour employees one (1) duty day is the equivalent of one (1) calendar day. When a day is set forth in the Agreement, the day means a duty day consistent with the above.

B. Selection of Vacation Periods

Selection of vacation periods, shall be in accordance with the Fire Department schedule(s) establishing the annual furlough periods for uniformed personnel. It is provided, however, that employees shall select and be assigned all furlough picks on one selection sheet. In accordance with the schedule(s), employees shall select their furloughs within their respective Bureau, Division, District, Platoon, Daley Day and Classification, by seniority except Captains and Lieutenants shall pick together by seniority and P.I.C.'s and Ambulance Commanders shall pick together by seniority, provided, however, that employees assigned to O'Hare Airport and employees assigned to Midway Airport (except for E.M.S. and Battalion Chief employees so assigned), together will select their furloughs within these assignments, by Platoon and Daley Day, using seniority as the criterion. No later than November 15th, of each year, the Department shall post furlough assignments, and at least 24 hours before the posting of furlough assignments, provide to the Union a master copy of assigned furloughs for all employees for the coming year.

- C. Vacation Benefits Upon Termination
- 1. An employee who is separated from the service by reason of resignation, death, retirement or discharge (except for discharge by reason of a felony conviction relating to or arising out of or in connection with his service as a Firefighter) shall be compensated at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay at the time of separation, for all unused vacation duty days accumulated, including those vacation duty days accumulated in the year of separation, on a pro-rata basis. Vacation time shall not accumulate from year to year except as provided herein.
- 2. (a) An employee who is separated from service by reason of retirement following sick or injury leave which was a result of a duty connected injury, illness or disability, or determined to be an occupational disability or duty disability following retirement, shall be compensated at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay at the time of separation for all unused vacation duty days accumulated, including vacation days accumulated during such sick or injury leave.
- (b) An employee who is separated from service by reason of retirement at age sixty (60) or above following sick or injury leave which was a result of a non-duty-connected injury, illness or disability shall be compensated at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay at the time of separation for all unused vacation duty days accumulated, including vacation days accumulated during such sick or injury leave.
- (c) An employee who is separated from service by reason of retirement at age fifty-nine (59) or below following sick or injury leave which was a result of a non-duty connected injury, illness or disability, or determined to be other than a duty disability or occupational disability following retirement, shall be compensated at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay at the time of separation for all unused vacation duty days accumulated, prior to such sick or injury leave, except, at the employee's option, the employee may schedule or re-schedule and use, during or after such non-duty leave, the vacation duty days accumulated prior to such non-duty leave.
- 3. An employee who is separated from the service by reason of resignation, death, retirement or discharge (except for discharge by reason of a felony conviction relating to or arising out of or in connection with his service as a Firefighter) after twenty (20) years of service or more shall be compensated an additional amount equivalent to six and one-half (6.5) vacation duty days (effective January 1, 2011, seven (7) vacation duty days), if a platoon employee, at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of pay, and if a forty (40) hour employee, an additional amount equivalent to nineteen and one-half (19.5) eight (8) hour vacation duty days (effective January 1, 2011, twenty-one (21) eight (8) hour vacation duty days) at the employee's straight-time and basic hourly rate of

pay.

- D. Vacations Upon Return to Duty from Sick or Injury Leave
- 1. An employee who returns to duty after a sick or injury leave, provided such leave was a result of a duty connected injury, illness or disability, shall receive paid vacation for all unused vacation duty days accumulated before and during such leave; and
- 2. An employee who returns to duty after a sick or injury leave, when such leave was a result of a non-duty connected injury, illness or disability, (a) shall not receive paid vacation for unused vacation days accumulated before such leave and which are scheduled and fall during such leave, but (b) shall receive paid vacation for unused vacation duty days, which are scheduled after 20

the leave and shall receive paid vacation for vacation earned during such leave.

#### Section 7.2 - Paid Holidays

A. Recognized Holidays

The following holidays are those which shall be recognized and observed:

New Year's Day Labor Day

Martin Luther King's Birthday Columbus Day

Lincoln's Birthday Veteran's Day

Washington's Birthday Thanksgiving Day

Casimir Pulaski Day Christmas Day

Memorial Day Flag Day (June 14th)\* Independence Day

Holidays will be observed on the day designated by the City for observance.

\*Flag Day (June 14th) for Platoon employees and the second Friday in June for all forty (40) hour employees.

B. Forty (40) Hour Employees

An employee scheduled to work an eight (8) hour day, forty (40) hour week schedule, will normally be released from work without loss of salary for recognized holidays, provided the employee has worked the last full scheduled work days immediately preceding and immediately following the holiday.

A forty (40) hour employee who works on a recognized holiday shall be paid time and one-half for all hours worked in addition to his regular pay (i.e., one and one-half times the employee's hourly rate of pay plus his/her regular pay).

- C. Platoon Employees Fire Suppression and Rescue
- 1. Working As Regularly Scheduled on Holiday

Platoon employees who work as regularly scheduled on any of the thirteen (13) recognized holidays shall be paid double time for all hours worked (i.e., at the straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked plus regular pay). For platoon employees, only such employees who work the shift beginning at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed shall be considered as working on the holiday.

2. Holiday on Furlough

If a holiday falls on one of the furlough days of any platoon employee, he shall be paid for that day as if he/she had worked on the holiday (i.e., one (1) duty day, twenty-four (24) hours of pay, at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to his regular furlough pay).

3. Holiday on Daley Day

If a holiday falls on a Daley Day of a platoon employee who does not work on that day, the employee shall be paid for that day as if he/she had worked on the holiday (i.e., one (1) duty day, twenty-four (24) hours of pay, at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to his regular pay).

4. Medical Roll (Medical Status) Holiday

Platoon employees on the medical roll (medical status) shall be paid twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay when a holiday falls on their Daley Day, and those platoon employees on the medical roll (medical status) because of duty-related injury, illness or disability shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay when a holiday falls on their regularly scheduled work day.

#### 5. Rehire on a Holiday/Daley Day

Platoon employees rehired on a Daley Day which is a holiday shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay plus time and one-half for all hours worked. Thus, an employee who works the entire twenty-four (24) hour shift shall receive total compensation of sixty (60) hours pay (twenty-four (24) hours holiday pay plus thirty-six (36) hours pay). If relieved of rehire before the end of the shift, the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay plus time and one-half for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee).

#### 6. Rehire on Off-Shift/Holiday

Platoon employees rehired on an off-shift (not a Daley Day) which is a holiday shall receive forty-eight (48) hours of pay as compensation, assuming the employee works the entire twenty-four (24) hour shift. If the employee is relieved of rehire before conclusion of the shift, the employee shall receive twice the hourly rate of pay for each hour worked (with minimum recall guarantee).

#### 7. Duty Lay-up on Holiday

Platoon employees working on a holiday who are relieved because of an injury on duty or duty-related illness shall receive holiday pay as set forth below:

- (a) If it is a regularly scheduled work day, the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours pay in addition to regular pay;
- (b) if it is the employee's Daley Day, the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours holiday pay plus one and one-half (1-1/2) times the hourly rate of pay for each hour the employee was scheduled to work;
- (c) if it is an off-shift day (not a Daley Day), the employee shall receive twice the hourly rate of pay for each hour the employee was scheduled to work.

#### 8. Non-Duty Lay-up/Holiday

A platoon employee working on a holiday who is relieved because of a non-duty illness shall receive holiday pay for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee), except if working a Daley Day the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours holiday pay plus time and one-half for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee).

#### 9. Drug-Alcohol Test/Holiday

A platoon employee working on a holiday who is relieved of duty following a drug or alcohol test (i.e., given pursuant to drug order) shall receive full pay as provided in subparagraph 7 above if the test results are negative. But if the test results are positive, then the employee will only receive holiday pay for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee).

#### 10. Military Leave/Holiday

Platoon employees on a paid military leave of absence shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay if the holiday falls on their scheduled work day and is within either the fourteen (14) or fifteen (15) day calendar period set forth in Section 7.4, and platoon employees shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay if a holiday falls on their Daley Day during such military leave.

- D. Platoon Employees Emergency Medical Services
- 1. Working as Regularly Scheduled on Holiday

Platoon employees who work as regularly scheduled on any of the thirteen (13) recognized holidays shall be paid double time for all

23

hours worked (i.e., at the straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked plus regular pay). For platoon employees, those employees who work the shift beginning at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed shall be considered as working on the holiday, and those employees who work on the preceding shift between the hours of midnight and 8:00 a.m. inclusive shall also be considered as working on the holiday for that eight (8) hour period (i.e., one (1) duty day, twenty-four (24) hours of pay at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to regular pay for those employees whose shift begins at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed, and for those employees who would have worked from midnight to 8:00 a.m. on the shift preceding the holiday, eight (8) hours of pay, at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to regular pay).

#### 2. Holiday on Furlough

If a holiday falls on one of the furlough days of any platoon employee, he/she shall be paid for that

day as if he/she worked on the holiday (i.e., one (1) duty day, twenty-four (24) hours of pay, at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to his regular furlough pay for those employees whose shift begins at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed, and for those employees who would have worked from midnight to 8:00 a.m. on the shift preceding the holiday, eight (8) hours of pay, at the straight-time hourly rate of pay in addition to regular furlough pay).

#### 3. Medical Roll (Medical Status) Holiday

Platoon employees on the medical roll (medical status) because of a duty-related injury, illness or disability shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay when a holiday falls on their regularly scheduled work day, and platoon employees on the medical roll (medical status) because of a duty-related injury, illness or disability shall receive eight (8) hours of holiday pay when their regularly scheduled work day immediately precedes the holiday.

#### 4. Rehire on a Holiday/Off Shift Day

Employees rehired pursuant to Section 9.2 on a day which is a holiday shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay plus time and one-half for all hours worked. Thus, an employee who works the entire shift shall receive total compensation of sixty (60) hours pay (twenty-four (24) hours holiday pay plus thirty-six (36) hours pay). If relieved of rehire before the end of the shift, the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay plus time and one-half for all hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee). Employees on rehire pursuant to Section 9.2 and working from midnight to 8:00 a.m. on the shift preceding the holiday shall receive eight (8) hours of holiday pay plus time and one-half for all hours worked (with minimum recall guaranteed).

#### 5. Duty Lay-up on Holiday

Platoon employees working on the shift beginning at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed, and those employees working on the shift immediately preceding the holiday, who are relieved because of an injury on duty or duty-related illness shall receive holiday pay as set forth below: (a) if it is a regularly scheduled work day, the employee whose shift begins at 8:00 a.m. the day the holiday is observed shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of pay in addition to regular pay, and the employee whose shift immediately precedes the holiday shall receive eight (8) hours of pay in addition to regular pay;

(b) if the employee is rehired pursuant to Section 9.2 on the shift which begins at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed, the employee shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay plus one and one-half times the hourly rate of pay for each hour the employee was scheduled to work, and the employee rehired pursuant to Section 9.2 whose shift immediately precedes the holiday shall receive eight (8) hours of holiday plus one and one-half times the hourly rate of pay for each hour the employee was scheduled to work.

#### 6. Non-Duty Lay-up/Holiday

A Platoon employee working on the shift beginning at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed who is relieved because of a non-duty illness shall receive holiday pay for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee), and a Platoon employee working on the shift immediately preceding the holiday and who is relieved because of a non-duty illness shall receive holiday pay for hours worked between midnight and 8:00 a.m. (with minimum recall guarantee).

#### 7. Drug-Alcohol Test/Holiday

A Platoon employee working on the shift beginning at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed and who is relieved of duty following a drug or alcohol test (i.e., given pursuant to drug order), and a Platoon employee working on the shift beginning immediately preceding the holiday who is relieved of duty following a drug or alcohol test (i.e., given pursuant to drug order) shall receive full pay as provided in subparagraph 6 above if the test results are negative. But if the test results are positive, then the employee will only receive holiday pay for hours worked (with minimum recall guarantee). Holiday pay for employees working on the shift which

#### 25

begins at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed is for all hours on that shift.

Holiday pay for employees working on the shift immediately preceding the holiday is only for hours between midnight and 8:00 a.m.

#### 8. Military Leave/Holiday

A Platoon employee on a paid military leave of absence shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of holiday pay if his/her scheduled work day begins at 8:00 a.m. on the day the holiday is observed and eight (8) hours of holiday pay if his scheduled work day immediately precedes the holiday and such scheduled work day is within either the fourteen (14) or fifteen (15) calendar period set forth in Section 7.4.

#### Section 7.3 - Sick and Injury Leave

Any member of the Fire Department receiving any injury on duty or duty-related disability so as to prevent him from attending to his duties as such member of the Fire Department shall, for the duration of twelve (12) months, providing his/her disability shall last that time, or for such portion of twelve months as such disability or sickness shall continue to receive full pay and benefits; and such disability shall not be considered as rendering necessary his/her retirement from service in the Fire Department during such period. The fact of such disability, its nature or cause of his/her injury, and its duration shall be certified to by the Department physician or by the production of such other evidence as shall be satisfactory to the Fire Commissioner. Any employee absent from work on account of a non-duty injury or illness for any period of time not exceeding twelve (12) months in any twenty-four (24) consecutive month period, shall receive full pay and benefits for the period of absence, provided such injury or illness is certified by the Department's physician or by the production of such other evidence as shall be satisfactory to the Fire Commissioner.

In the event a dispute arises as to the disability of the member, or the nature or cause of his injury, such dispute shall be referred to the grievance procedure under Article X.

Any member of the Fire Department who is receiving his usual City salary while on disability is prohibited from engaging in any employment other than with the Fire Department. Any member found to be in violation of this Section shall be subject to the loss of his salary from the Fire Department while an employee.

No member of the Fire Department who is on the pension roll, or who is receiving any benefit from the pension fund by reason of any such disability or injury, shall be entitled to receive any part of his salary during such time as he shall remain on pension roll or receives any benefits therefrom.

The Employer further agrees to pay all hospital and medical costs of an employee incurring a duty connected injury, illness or disability.

#### Section 7.4 - Military Leaves

Any employee who is a member of a reserve force of the United States or of the State of Illinois, other than the National Guard, and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States or the State of Illinois, shall be granted a paid leave of absence during the period of such activity, but not to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days in any calendar year.

Any employee who is a member of the National Guard of the United States or of the State of Illinois and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States or the State of Illinois, shall be granted a paid leave of absence during the period of such activity, but not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days in any calendar year.

Said paid leaves of absence shall not reduce the employee's vacation or other leave benefits.

#### **Section 7.5 - Funeral and Bereavement Leave**

A. In the event of a death in the immediate family of an employee, the employee shall be granted three (3) consecutive calendar days off without loss of pay. The immediate family is defined as the employee's spouse, parents, children (including step and half), brother (including step and half), sister (including step and half), father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, current step parents and brother-in-law and sister-in-law, except that for brother-in-law and sister-in-law the benefit shall be for the day of the funeral only.

B. In the event of death of a domestic partner, the employee shall be granted three (3) consecutive days of leave with pay following the death provided that the employee has registered the name of the employee's domestic partner with the Department of Personnel.

Domestic partners are defined as two persons regardless of their gender, who have a close personal relationship, sharing the same regular and permanent residence for at least six (6) months; are each eighteen (18) years of age or older, not married to anyone, not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State of Illinois, and are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare and jointly sharing their financial responsibilities.

C. When an employee is entitled to bereavement leave pursuant to Section 7.5A or 7.5B above, and when death occurs and the funeral is to be held out of Illinois and beyond the states contiguous thereto, the employee shall be entitled to a maximum of five (5) consecutive calendar 27

days, (but which for platoon employees shall include no more than one working day). For purposes of this Section 7.5C, those states contiguous to the State of Illinois are: Missouri, Iowa, Wisconsin, Indiana, Kentucky and Michigan.

#### Section 7.6 - Administrative Days - Trades & Exchanges

A. Administrative Days

Forty (40) hour employees shall receive, each year, four (4) administrative scheduled days off or pay in lieu thereof, at the employee's option. Administrative Days will be used (or paid for) each calendar year and will not be carried over.

Forty (40) hour employees shall receive, each year, four (4) administrative scheduled days off or pay in lieu thereof, at the employee's option. Administrative Days used by Fire Prevention Bureau employees shall be ten (10) hours each. Pay in lieu of Administrative Days off for all forty (40) hour employees shall be paid at eight (8) hours. Administrative Days will be used (or paid for) each calendar year and will not be carried over.

- B. The following shall implement the preceding paragraph:
- 1. Administrative Days off may be requested and shall be scheduled on a quarterly basis (January-March, April-June, July-September, October-December). Employees, however, may request, and upon Department approval, receive up to two (2) scheduled days off in the first quarter (January-March) three (3) scheduled days off in the second quarter (April-June) and four (4) scheduled days off in the third quarter (July-September).
- 2. Requests for Administrative Days off shall he given to the appropriate superior no later than ten (10) business days prior to the day desired. The Department within three (3) business days of the request shall approve the request provided such will not interfere with efficient operations as reasonably determined by the Deputy Commissioner or his designee. Seniority, although not determinative, shall be considered in granting Administrative Days.
- 3. A platoon employee who permanently transfers to forty (40) hour duty shall be entitled to and may schedule one Administrative Day off in the quarter in which the employee transfers to forty (40) hour duty and one Administrative Day off thereafter in each quarter or any portion thereof in which the employee works in the forty (40) hour mode. Such employee is entitled to schedule Administrative Days off and/or to receive pay in lieu thereof as provided in this Section.
- 4. An employee detailed on a temporary basis to a forty (40) hour position is entitled to receive one Administrative Day off or pay in lieu thereof for each continuous three months on detail. Short term details of less than three months would not entitle an employee to an Administrative Day off or pay in lieu thereof. Detailed employees will not be subject to quarterly scheduling or accrual as stated above.
- 5. An employee may request pay in lieu of an Administrative Day off in accordance with the schedule set forth in paragraph 1 (i.e., up to two (2) days pay in the first quarter, etc.). Such request shall be given to the appropriate supervisor no later than ten (10) business days prior to the last day of the quarter in which the

request is made. When such timely request is made, the employee will be paid by the end of the second pay period following the last day of the quarter in which the request is made. Said payment will be at the pay rate in effect at the time the payment is made.

- 6. If an employee does not request pay or receive an Administrative Day off in any given quarter and does not request pay or receive that accrued Administrative Day off in any subsequent quarter of that year, he/she will be paid for that day by February 15 of the following year or at separation from the Department. Said payment will be at the pay rate in effect at the time the payment is made. Effective January 1, 1997, payments as provided in this Section 7.6B shall be at the hourly rate of pay in effect at the time payment is made.
- 7. If an employee receives pay in lieu of an Administrative Day but does not subsequently accrue said Administrative Day as a result of resignation, death, retirement or discharge or transfer to platoon duty, the employee will be required to repay, through payroll deduction, the paid additional Administration Day.
- 8. Candidate employees shall be entitled to one (1) Administrative Day within the ninety (90) day training period. This day shall be granted at the discretion of the Director of Training.
- C. Trades & Exchanges

The practice and policy with respect to the exchange of Daley Days or Tours of Duty shall be continued for the term of this Agreement which is as follows:

#### **EXCHANGE OF DALEY DAYS**

1. A Daley Day Exchange policy has been established to allow FS&R employees of the same Bureau (Citywide), working the same shift, to exchange Daley Days.

#### 29

- 2. Daley Day Exchanges will be a direct exchange between two (2) FS&R employees for either a twelve (12) hour period or a twenty-four (24) hour period, except there may be an exchange for less than twelve (12) hours for purposes of training or education. All exchanges will be within the same Bureau.
- 3. To maintain orderly scheduling of manpower, exchanges of Daley Days will be accomplished by FS&R employees of the same rank. However, Company Officers (Captains and Lieutenants) will be allowed to exchange Daley Days at the discretion of the Deputy District Chief.
- 4. All FS&R employees can exchange Daley Days with employees of the same rank within the Bureau (Citywide) irrespective of whether EMT qualified, provided that where necessary to have sufficient designated positions of EMT qualified employees on designated ALS Fire Companies to maintain such companies in service, the cross-trained, dual status employees may be required to trade with other cross-trained, dual status employees of same rank and classification, with exceptions for emergencies at the reasonable discretion of the Bureau Commander or designee.
- 5. Approval of Daley Day exchanges will be denied when there is evidence of financial remuneration to either party involved and further, no Daley Day exchanges will be considered that are requested for the purpose of outside employment of any nature.

#### TRADED TOURS OF DUTY

- 6. A traded tour policy has been established to allow employees to trade a tour of duty (City-wide) in the event that a Daley Day exchange cannot be effected.
- 7. A trade of either a twelve (12) hour period or a twenty-four (24) hour period will be allowed, except there may be a trade for less than twelve (12) hours for purposes of training or education. All trades will be within the same Bureau and Division (City-wide). In case of emergency, the Deputy District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic will be authorized to waive the hours provision regarding a traded tour of duty. To maintain orderly scheduling of manpower, trades will be accomplished by employees of the same rank. However, Company Officers (Captains and Lieutenants; Paramedics-in-Charge and Ambulance Commanders) will be allowed to trade tours of duty at the discretion of the Deputy District Chief or Chief Paramedic; However, all FS&R employees can trade tours of duty with employees of the same rank within the Bureau (City-wide) irrespective of whether EMT qualified, provided that where necessary to have sufficient designated positions of EMT qualified employees on designated ALS Fire Companies to maintain such companies in service, the cross-trained, dual status

30

employees may be required to trade with other cross-trained, dual status employees of same rank and classification, with exceptions for emergencies at the reasonable discretion of the Bureau Commander or designee.

8. Approval of Traded Tours of Duty will be denied when there is evidence of financial remuneration to either party involved and further, no traded tours will be considered that are requested for the purpose of outside employment of any nature.

#### **ENTITLEMENT**

- 9. No FS&R employee may exceed a maximum of nine (9) (effective January 1, 2011, twelve (12)) exchanges and/or trades, or combination thereof within each one-half (1/2) calendar year (i.e., January 1st through June 30th and July 1st through December 31st). No EMS employee may exceed a maximum of twelve (12) trades within each one-half (1/2) calendar year (i.e., January 1st through June 30th and July 1st through December 31st). For all exchanges and/or trades payback time is not included within the established time frame and shall be in addition.
- 10. A maximum of three (3) (effective January 1, 2011, four (4)) consecutive trades, exchanges, or payback days to a maximum of fifteen (15) (effective January 1, 2011, twenty (20)) calendar days without a scheduled work day in between will be allowed to an employee. (A Daley Day is not a scheduled work day.)

Furloughs may be extended before and/or after to a maximum of twenty nine (29) (effective January 1, 2011, thirty-five (35)) calendar days including the furlough by trades, exchanges, or payback days with the permission of the District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic which permission shall not be denied without good reason.

#### **QUALIFICATIONS**

- 11. Requests for exchanges, trades, and payback days must be submitted a minimum of two working days in advance of the date requested. In case of emergency, the Deputy District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic will be authorized to waive this provision. Requests may be disapproved only for the reasons set forth herein.
- 12. All exchanges and trades must be reconciled by the parties involved in the exchange or trade prior to promotions, reassignments, retirements, etc. ALL payback days must be completed within four months of the FIRST exchange or trade. Paybacks may be either before or after the exchange or trade. Paybacks within a Bureau may be City-wide within three (3) months after the effective date of a transfer. The Department will assume 31

no responsibility for time lost in exchange of Daley Day or trades of duty tours.

#### **PROCEDURES**

- 13. The requesting employee will prepare a CFD Form 11.107 (Rev. 6/85) and submit it to the Deputy District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic through the chain of command.
- When requesting a payback day the requesting member will prepare a CFD Form 11.108 (Request for Pay Back) (Rev. 6/85) and submit it to the Deputy District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic through the chain of command.
- 14. Upon approval/disapproval by the Deputy District Chief or the Deputy Chief Paramedic, a copy will be returned to the Battalion Chief, Company Officer and requesting employee.
- 15. On the day of the Exchange of Daley Day, traded tour of duty, or payback, the proper entries will be made in the Company Journal and Attendance and Assignment Record.
- 16. Approved exchange of Daley Days, traded tours of duty or payback time, that are prevented from being consummated because of some unforeseen event, will be addressed in the following manner:
- a. The Employer, in an effort to cover any and all unforeseen events that may result in shortages of manpower relative to exchanges, trades or payback time, will provide an employee either by detail or hire-back in order to maintain orderly scheduling.
- b. After the Employer determines which employee owes the duty time, the Employer shall request payment of this time within four (4) months of the exchange, trade or payback. Time owed and not paid back to the Employer within the four (4) month period may at the Employer's discretion, result in the docking of time owed. Local No. 2 will be advised of any contemplated docking.

c. It is expressly understood, however, that the Employer can request payment of the time owed in order to accomplish orderly scheduling of manpower and the emergency needs of the Fire Department. In addition, payment of this time will be accomplished irrespective of the District's Seniority Overtime Assignment List.

32

#### RESPONSIBILITY

- 17. It will be the responsibility of:
- a. the employee, when granted a Daley Day exchange, traded tour of duty or payback day, to ensure that the member scheduled to work is notified of the particular request being approved/disapproved.
- b. the immediate supervisor of employees who have requested a Daley Day exchange, traded tour of duty, or payback day, to document in their Company Journal the approval/disapproval of said request when received from District/Division headquarters.
- c. the immediate supervisor on the day of the exchange of Daley Day, traded tour of duty, or payback day, to make the proper entries of same in the Company Journal as well as the Attendance and Assignment record.
- d. District Chiefs/Deputy Chief Paramedics and division directors to keep an accurate accounting of each employee's number of Daley Day exchanges and traded tour of duty or combination thereof under their command.

#### Section 7.7 - Educational Leaves

- A. Employees may be granted paid leaves of absence for educational purposes to attend conferences, seminars, briefing sessions, or other functions of a similar nature that are intended to improve, maintain or upgrade the individual's certifications, skill and professional ability. Approval of such requests for leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- B. Employees who are required while off duty to attend State of Illinois EMS-related licensure training programs and examinations, shall be compensated in a one-time annual payment prior to August 1st at time-and one-half their straight-time hourly rate of pay for the number of off-duty hours of those total hours required that year for licensure by the State of Illinois.
- C. To satisfy the requirement that EMT-B licensed employees train on ambulance companies under the direction of EMT-P personnel for twenty-four (24) hours in each calendar year for purpose of licensing, EMT-B employees may be detailed while on duty to an ALS ambulance for a twenty-four (24) hour period in each calendar year.

#### Section 7.8 - Educational Reimbursement

The Department agrees to provide tuition reimbursement for employees for extra-departmental education subject to the following conditions:

33

- A. To be eligible for reimbursement:
- 1. Each course taken must be job-related or necessary for a degree.
- Proof of acceptance for a degree program must be presented upon request.
- 3. Each course taken must grant college level credit.
- 4. Each course must be taken through an accredited college or university, including but not limited to on-line courses of study taken on-line, or EMT training facility within the State of Illinois.
- B. Employees must file applications for reimbursement on the appropriate forms no later than thirty (30) days after the beginning of the course of study.
- C. Reimbursement will be granted on the following basis:
- 1. Grade "A" 100%
- 2. Grade "B" and other grades classified by the school as passing 75%
- D. Reimbursement may be denied if an employee's work performance is deemed inadequate or if the employee has a record of sustained infractions of Department orders, directives or procedures.
- E. The amount an employee receives in financial aid, including, but not limited to, grants and scholarships for courses will be deducted from the cost of those courses before determining the amount of tuition to be reimbursed by the City.
- F. Reimbursement will be made for a maximum of two (2) courses per school term.
- G. Reimbursement will be granted when an employee is required by the Fire Commissioner to attend an educational or training program.

H. In the event an employee commences an undergraduate or graduate degree (including a law degree) program after the execution of this Agreement, and obtains an undergraduate or graduate degree with the assistance of the tuition reimbursement program, and the employee, within one (1) year of obtaining such degree, voluntarily resigns from the Department, all tuition costs (100%) reimbursed to the employee by the Employer for obtaining such degree shall be repaid to the Employer. If the employee voluntarily resigns after one (1) year but less than two (2) years after obtaining the graduate degree, the employee shall repay one-half (50%) of the tuition reimbursement to the Employer. If the employee does not complete the degree program and voluntarily resigns from the Department, the employee shall repay 100% of all tuition reimbursement received for any course completed within two (2) years of such resignation. Employees receiving tuition reimbursement for such degrees

34

shall, as a condition of receiving such reimbursement, execute an appropriate form consistent with this paragraph.

The provision shall not apply to reimbursement under Subsection G of this Article, nor shall this provision apply to employees who resign from the Department for the purpose of accepting employment within another City of Chicago Department.

I. The City shall obtain a tuition waiver and college credit program in partnership with the City College program, which shall include training for EMT-B licensing and for EMT-P licensing, or provide full tuition reimbursement without being subject to the conditions of subparagraphs A through H.

#### Section 7.9 - Jury Duty - Subpoena

A. An employee who serves on a jury or is subject to a proper subpoena on a duty day (except if the employee is a party to non-work related litigation or as provided in Article 10.5) shall be granted a leave of absence with pay subject to the requirements and restrictions set forth below.

The Employer may require documentation of attendance and the employee must deposit his/her jury duty pay or witness fees with the City Comptroller for those days that the employee was scheduled to work for the Employer and receives pay for such work. It is further provided that the employee must return to work no later than two hours after dismissal by the Court or dismissal by the party issuing the subpoena.

As soon as an employee learns that he/she will be serving on a jury or required to appear pursuant to a subpoena, the employee shall advise the designated supervisor in writing on a form to be supplied by the Employer.

The Employer shall acknowledge receipt, time stamp at District and return a copy of said form to the employee. The Employer will grant leave with pay for forty (40) hour employees, for platoon employees subpoenaed for work-related litigation where the City or the employee is a party, and for up to twelve (12) platoon employees for jury duty or subpoena for other litigation.

If more than twelve (12) platoon employees on any given duty day are required to appear as set forth above, any additional employees shall be requested to seek a postponement. If a postponement cannot be obtained, their leave will be without pay. The Employer shall notify platoon employees if the maximum number of platoon employees has been reached on a given day as soon as it is known.

B. Whenever an employee is subject to a proper subpoena to appear in court, or to appear for deposition, for the purpose of testifying about a 35

matter directly related to and arising out of the performance of the employee's official duties, the time spent testifying shall be compensated.

If the employee is required to testify on a non-duty day, the employee shall be paid for the time spent in responding to the subpoena, at one and one-half times the employee's straight-time hourly rate as defined in Section 5.2, but not to exceed eight (8) hours per day.

Any amount received as a witness fee shall be deposited with the City Comptroller. The Department may require documentation of attendance. The employee must notify his or her supervisor of the

subpoena in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.9A above.

#### ARTICLE VIII. UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### Section 8.1 - General

A leave of absence without pay may be granted to an employee for personal reasons by the Fire Commissioner, provided the purpose of the leave is deemed beneficial to the City service (as, for example, an educational purpose relevant to the employee's future in the Department, or for purposes of accepting an elective or appointive office).

A leave of absence shall not be granted for the purpose of seeking or accepting any employment with any employer other than the City of Chicago.

An extension of leave shall not be approved unless it is consistent with the administrative procedures of this Article. The granting or extension of an unpaid leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.

#### Section 8.2 - Procedures

All unpaid leaves of absence shall be governed by the following procedures:

- A. Leaves must be applied for by the employee seeking the leave on forms prescribed by the Fire Commissioner. Before the leave begins it must be approved by the Fire Commissioner or designee.
- B. Leaves of absence shall not be sought or granted for a period exceeding one (1) year. All leaves of absence shall be granted for a specified period of time and with a specified termination date; provided, however, that an employee on such leave, with approval of the Fire Commissioner, may terminate such leave and return to work prior to the specified termination date. Approval of the Fire Commissioner shall not be unreasonably withheld or denied.
- C. The Fire Department Director of Personnel shall be responsible for giving both the employee and the Fire Commissioner timely notification of an upcoming expiration of a leave of absence. The Fire Department Director of Personnel shall so notify the employee by registered mail with 36
- return receipt requested. Said notice shall advise the employee that his or her resignation will be effective within thirty (30) days of receipt of said notice. The employee shall then be responsible for notifying the Fire Department Director of Personnel of his or her intention to return to work.
- D. The employee shall be responsible for making application for any extension of a leave of absence. Such application shall be made to the Fire Department Director of Personnel on appropriate forms prior to the expiration of a leave.

An extension of leave shall not be approved unless it is consistent with the purposes of this Article. Any such extension must be approved by both the Fire Department Director of Personnel and the Fire Commissioner, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or denied.

- E. If an employee fails to return to work upon expiration of his/ her leave of absence, without making application for extension, it shall be considered that the employee resigned effective as of the last day of the authorized leave of absence.
- F. A leave of absence may be cancelled by the Fire Commissioner upon evidence that the cause for its original authorization was fraudulent or has as a matter of fact ceased to exist.
- G. When a leave has been granted properly, and when the employee is prepared to return to work in conformance with the terms and conditions of this Article, the following shall apply:
- 1. An employee returning from a leave of three (3) months or less shall be fully restored to his or her position.
- 2. An employee returning from a leave of more than three (3) months shall be fully restored to his or her position, if available, or, if not available, the employee shall be restored to a position of equal rank.
- H. Any employee who is on a leave of absence from the Fire Department shall not be considered in the certification and appointment from promotional eligible lists.

#### **Section 8.3 - Family Medical Leave Act**

Employees shall be entitled to leave without pay as provided in the Family Medical Leave Act,

provided that the employee has the option to elect to use accrued paid leave to which the employee is entitled, and provided that health care benefits shall continue if the employee continues to make his/her health care contributions.

37

#### **ARTICLE IX. SENIORITY RIGHTS**

#### Section 9.1 - Seniority

A. Seniority is defined as an employee's length of continuous service since his last date of hire. If more than one person is hired on the same day they shall be placed on the seniority list according to their rank on the eligibility list.

B. New employees will serve a probationary period of nine (9) months of employment. Any inactive status during the probationary period shall not count toward completion of the probationary period, except that duty-related medical leave of a total often (10) working days or less shall not extend the probationary period.

Any probationary employee may be discharged during the probationary period upon written notice (or verbal notice confirmed in writing) to the employee. A copy of the notice showing the effective date of the termination shall be provided to the Union.

Terminations of probationary employees shall not be subject to the grievance procedure; however, upon the Union's request made within ten (10) days of notice of discharge to the employee and the Union, the employee and the Union may present evidence relating to the validity of the reasons or mitigating circumstances to the Department at a meeting between the Department and the Union; but any action taken by the Department shall be final and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

The seniority of the employee retained beyond the probationary period shall date back to his/her date of hire.

It is further provided that for an additional three (3) months of employment beyond the probationary period any new employee may be tested for substance abuse and if the test results are positive the employee may be terminated and such termination shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. C. An employee's continuous service and the employment relationship shall be terminated when an employee:

- 1. Resigns or quits with the following exceptions:
- a. An employee who resigned and was reinstated prior to March 8, 1980 shall retain the seniority date listed on the 1982 seniority list provided such date is not adjusted otherwise as provided or permitted in the Seniority Settlement Agreement of February 1, 1983. 38
- b. An employee who resigned in the past and was not reinstated until March 8, 1980 or later, or who resigns in the future, shall have his seniority based on his/her last date of hire, which shall be the day of his return to service, unless he/she requests or requested reinstatement on or before thirty (30) days after the effective date of his/her resignation and such request is or was ultimately granted, in which case he/she shall continue to use the seniority date in effect prior to his/her resignation provided such date is not adjusted otherwise as provided or permitted in the Seniority Settlement Agreement of February 1, 1983.
- 2. Is discharged for just cause;
- 3. Retires or is retired;
- 4. Is absent for three (3) consecutive days (workdays) without notifying the Employer's authorized representative;
- 5. Is laid off and fails to report for work within ten (10) calendar days after mailing by certified mail a notification of recall to the employee's last known address as shown on the City's personnel records. A copy of recall notification shall be sent to the Union. If the Union within six (6) working days of the mailing date provides the Employer with a corrected address, the Employer will send a second recall

notice, and an additional five (5) days notice shall be allowed;

- 6. Does not report to work after the termination of an authorized leave of absence, pursuant to Articles VII and VIII.
- D. A suspension shall not affect an employee's length of continuous service.
- E. An employee granted an unpaid leave of absence of thirty (30) days or less shall not incur a break in continuous service for such leave.
- F. An employee granted an unpaid leave of absence in excess of thirty (30) days shall not incur a break in continuous service if such leave is taken for the good of the Department, including, but not limited to, leave for educational and/or professional reasons.
- G. If an employee takes a leave of absence which is not for educational or professional reasons or other reasons for the good of the Fire Department, and such leave extends beyond thirty (30) days, the employee's seniority date will be adjusted by the length of the leave in excess of thirty (30) days. H. Any employee who returns to active duty after a period during which he received duty.
- occupational and/or ordinary disability benefits shall have

39

his/her seniority continued to be based on his/her last date of hire without adjustment.

I. On or before April 1st and October 1st of each year the Employer will post on employee bulletin boards a current seniority list showing the departmental seniority and classification seniority of each employee. A copy of the seniority list shall be simultaneously provided to the Union. The Employer shall not be responsible for any errors in the seniority list unless such errors are brought to the attention of the Fire Department Director of Personnel, in writing, within ten (10) calendar days after the list is posted. Any disputed seniority dates not able to be adjusted satisfactorily will be subject to Article X.

#### Section 9.2 - Overtime Distribution

#### A. Platoon Employees

After all detailing has been accomplished, and when the need for overtime exists due to the lack of manpower, or due to vacation, sickness, injury or other unforeseen causes, such overtime shall be distributed in strict sequential order to members of the bargaining unit on a voluntary basis; by rank and classification; by means of an Overtime Distribution List in each district, bureau, EMS division or in an agreed-upon specialized unit on each shift; by Daley Day or middle off-shift day for EMS personnel. (These lists originally were established on the basis of seniority.)

Such lists shall show the employee seniority number, Company, Platoon, Daley Day, or middle off-shift day for EMS Personnel and special Fire Department certification(s), and the last date the employee worked or refused overtime or was unavailable for overtime and the reason for such unavailability. Employees assigned to a new or different Overtime Distribution List after the overtime list has been established shall be inserted into the list according to the last date the employee worked or refused overtime. In case of any questions regarding insertion according to the above, such shall be discussed between the Business Agent or his designee and the designated Employer representative in attempting resolution.

An employee shall move to the bottom of the overtime lists of the respective rank or classification only if he or she refuses or works the overtime offered; provided, however, that the employee on the bottom of the overtime list at the time the overtime work becomes available and is offered shall be required to accept and work the overtime when all other employees have refused.

In the event that an employee refuses overtime strictly on the basis of the fact that he or she is scheduled for military training or scheduled to attend a Department-sponsored EMS Continuing Medical Education ("CME") class on the date that he or she would be scheduled to work overtime, that employee shall retain his or her position on the overtime list of the

40

respective rank or classification. Employees must provide proof of attendance at military training or

proof of attendance at the CME class in question upon request, or lose their position on the overtime list

An exception to offering overtime in strict sequential order on the overtime lists may be made when specialized personnel are needed for positions on Squads, the Hazardous Material Unit, Airport Certified Drivers, ARFF Certified Red Stripe Personnel, or other agreed-upon specialized units. In case specialized personnel are needed for such units, the Employer shall go down the Overtime Distribution List until reaching the first person certified for the specialty required and offer the overtime. Employees with such specialty certification(s) shall be asterisked on the list. If that person refuses, the overtime assignment shall be offered to the next certified employee on the list. If that person refuses, the overtime assignment shall be offered to the next certified employee on the list. Such employees shall move to the bottom of the list of the respective rank or classification upon refusing or working the overtime offered; provided, however, that the certified employee on the bottom of the overtime list shall be required to accept the overtime assignment when all other employees have refused.

Overtime distribution on ALS Fire Companies shall be by strict sequential order by District(s) irrespective of EMT specialized qualification; except, after detailing and double detailing, when there is no other way to maintain the ALS Fire Company in service with the required EMT positions, then employees may be rehired who have such specialty certification which shall be asterisked on the Overtime Distribution List.

It is further provided:

- 1. If any District cannot fill its manpower needs from its Overtime Distribution List, then such needs shall be filled from the overtime list from the next District in numerical sequence and if insufficient personnel are available in such District, then from the next District in numerical sequence (e.g., District 6 to District 7 to District 1) until sufficient personnel are acquired.
- 2. In the event, however, there are insufficient employees obtained, as above provided, to fill manpower needs, then platoon employees from the shift following the shift where the overtime is needed shall be called for overtime from the Overtime Distribution List upon which their names appear, utilizing the same procedures as above, and if there are insufficient employees obtained from that following shift, then platoon employees from the shift preceding the shift where the overtime is needed shall be called for overtime from the Overtime Distribution List upon which their names appear, utilizing the same procedures as above. No employee, however, shall be required to work with less than twenty-four (24) hours off between platoon shifts, except pursuant to Section 5.6; and further, if there are insufficient employees available for overtime rehire pursuant to the foregoing procedures in this Section, then the holdover

#### 41

provision, Section 5.6, shall be invoked up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours, irrespective of the four (4) hour maximum limitation set forth in Section 5.6.

It is provided, however, when an employee is mandatorily rehired as provided above and has pending obligations, (for example, documented travel plans, tickets, confirmed reservations, or an emergency), the employee will be excused from the rehire, providing the City can rehire another employee using the above agreed-upon procedures. If the City succeeds in finding another employee, the employee that was originally mandatorily rehired will be excused, but will go to the bottom of the Overtime Distribution List. Excusing the employee from mandatory rehire will be at the reasonable discretion of the District Chief or his designee or the Deputy Chief Paramedic or his designee.

For EMS platoon employees, in the event there are insufficient employees available for overtime rehire, after following the procedures through subparagraph 1 above, then the holdover provision, Section 5.6, shall be invoked up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours, irrespective of the four (4) hour maximum limitation set forth in Section 5.6.

3. If any overtime distribution does not consist of at least twelve (12) consecutive hours, the employee receiving such overtime shall not lose his/her position on the overtime list.

- 4. No employee shall be on more than one overtime list.
- 5. Overtime Distribution Lists shall be continuously updated and current and be made available to Union Business Agents upon reasonable request, but not later than three (3) business days.
- B. Forty (40) Hour Employees

After all detailing has been accomplished, and when the need for overtime exists due to the lack of manpower, or due to vacation, sickness, injury or other unforeseen causes, such overtime shall be distributed in strict sequential order to members of the bargaining unit on a voluntary basis; by rank and classification; by means of an Overtime Distribution List in each Bureau, District or Division on each shift. (These lists originally were established on the basis of seniority.)

Such lists shall show the employees seniority number, District or Division, and special Fire Department certification(s), and the last date the employee worked or refused overtime or was unavailable for overtime and the reason for such unavailability. Employees assigned to a new or different Overtime Distribution List after the overtime list has been established shall be inserted into the list according to the last date the employee worked or refused overtime. In case of any questions regarding

insertion according to the above, such shall be discussed between the Business Agent or his designee and the designated Employer representative in attempting resolution.

An employee shall move to the bottom of the overtime lists of the respective rank or classification only if he or she refuses or works the overtime offered; provided, however, that the employee on the bottom of the overtime list at the time the overtime work becomes available and is offered shall be required to accept and work the overtime when all other employees have refused.

In the event that an employee refuses overtime strictly on the basis of the fact that he or she is scheduled for military training or scheduled to attend a Department-sponsored EMS Continuing Medical Education ("CME") class on the date the employee would be scheduled to work overtime, that employee shall retain his or her position on the overtime list of the respective rank or classification. Employees must provide proof of attendance at military training and proof of attendance at the CME class in question upon request, or lose their position on the overtime list. An exception to offering overtime in strict sequential order on the overtime lists may be made when specialized personnel are needed to perform the duties of Public Education Specialist, Pump Test Operator, and Gas Leak Inspector, or other agreed-upon specialized positions. In case specialized personnel are needed for such duties, the Employer shall go down the overtime list until reaching the first person certified for the specialty required and offer the overtime. Employees with such specialty certification(s) shall be asterisked on the list.

It is further provided:

- 1. No employee shall be on more than one Overtime Distribution List.
- 2. Overtime Distribution Lists shall be continuously updated and current and be made available to Union Business Agents upon reasonable requests, but not later than three (3) business days.
- C. Remedy for Pass Over (McVady Donohue Arbitration Awards)

If an employee is passed over for the employee's rightful turn for overtime, the employee shall be paid the amount the employee would have earned if the employee had worked the overtime, and the employee shall not have his/her position on the Overtime Distribution List altered by reason of the payment.

D. Relieving Employees from Rehire Assignments

The following is agreed-upon procedure regarding relieving employees from overtime distribution rehire assignments.

43

1. It is recognized that the Department may continue to relieve employees from overtime rehire assignments or detail them to other overtime rehire assignments when, because of the return to duty of employees from lay-up or otherwise, there are an excess of employees on rehire. This procedure and its implementation shall not in any way detract from or invalidate minimum manning

#### requirements.

- 2. It is provided that the Department shall implement a procedure to exercise its best reasonable efforts that when employees are to be relieved of overtime rehire assignments, employees are to be relieved in the reverse order in which they were rehired from the overtime distributions list(s), in the District, except that employees rehired from outside the District shall first be relieved from overtime assignments in the District.
- 3. It is further provided that employees so relieved from rehire shall, upon arrival of their replacement, be permitted by their Company Officer to leave without loss of minimum recall pay, unless there is another overtime situation in the District to which the rehire may be assigned at that time. In case there is any question as to who should be relieved, the matter shall be discussed between the Business Agent or his designee and the designated Employer representative.

#### Section 9.3 - Vacancies and Promotions

#### A. Vacancies

Promotional vacancies within the bargaining unit created as a result of death, resignation, retirement and discharge for just cause, and which the Employer must fill to maintain the minimum manning agreed to in this Agreement, shall be filled within forty-five (45) days of the last day the employee actually worked on duty or was discharged. Promotions which are required to fill vacancies shall be made from established lists resulting from job related examinations given to the employees in the classification immediately below the vacancy. Permanent assignments to vacant promotional positions shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVI, Section 16.7.

#### B. Promotional Eligibility Lists

1. No employee shall be eligible to take a promotional examination until the employee has completed the probationary period. The ranking of employees on promotional lists shall be based upon the employee's ascertained merit which shall be determined by promotional examinations consisting of the following three (3) criteria: written, seniority and oral/proficiency (hereafter referred to as the "administered examination"). Promotions shall be made on

44

the basis of the administered examination, and effective for administered examinations given after January 1, 1997, promotions may also be made pursuant to a performance selection process as set forth in subparagraph 4.

The weights to be accorded the criteria of the administered examination shall be consistent with the requirements of federal law, and are subject to review by the Justice Department. The City will announce the weights of the criteria of the administered examination at the time the Department of Personnel officially announces the examination.

Effective for administered examinations given after January 1, 2003, the total weight assigned to the written criteria shall be no less than twenty-five percent (25%); the total weight assigned to the oral/proficiency criteria shall be no less than twenty-five percent (25%); and the total weight assigned to the seniority criteria shall be no less than thirty percent (30%) of the final score of the administered examination.

Full mark for seniority shall be given, as follows:

- a. for promotion to Engineer or to Lieutenant ninety-six (96) or more months;
- b. for promotion to Captain one hundred forty-four (144) or more months;
- c. for promotion to Battalion Chief two hundred four (204) or more months.

Lesser amounts of seniority shall receive a pro-rata mark; for example:

A firefighter with ninety-six (96) or more months of seniority would receive 100% of the seniority criteria specified for promotion to engineer or lieutenant while a firefighter with forty-eight (48) months seniority would receive one-half (1/2) of the specified seniority criteria (accordingly, if the specified seniority criteria is thirty percent (30%), the firefighter with ninety-six (96) or more months of seniority would receive the full mark, while a firefighter with forty-eight (48) months would receive one-half

(1/2) of the thirty percent (30%) seniority criteria, or fifteen percent (15%)). The seniority mark shall be determined as of the date of the examination announcement.

Additional credit shall be given to candidates who have at the time of the administered examination the following degrees or licensures:

a. For promotion to Lieutenant and/or Captain.

Any candidate who has an Associate's or Bachelor's degree in fire science or who has an EMT-B or EMT-P license and is being compensated as a result of such licensure will receive the full amount of credit;

45

b. For promotion to Battalion Chief.

Any candidate who has an Associate's degree in fire science or a Bachelor's degree will receive the full amount of credit.

The amount of credit to be given for these degrees and licensures shall be described in the examination announcement. In no event shall a candidate with the required degree be eligible for anything less than full credit.

2. Promotional vacancies shall be filled by the Commissioner from eligible employees certified from the applicable promotional eligibility list. After each promotional examination, the City shall develop an eligibility list based upon employees eligible for promotion based on their performance on the administered examination. No less than thirty (30) days prior to any promotions, the City shall provide to the Union a copy of the promotional eligibility list. Such list shall reflect each employee's full name, seniority number, race, gender, total score and rank on the list. Vacancies will customarily be filled by employees in the order of their ranking on the eligibility list.

Employees who are passed over on an eligibility list strictly by operation of the preceding paragraph and who otherwise would have been promoted had promotions been made in rank order from the eligibility list shall have his or her name inserted at the top of the new eligibility list in rank order as it appeared on the previous eligibility list for the same promoted position, and shall be promoted from the new eligibility list to vacancies which will customarily be filled by employees in the order of their ranking on the eligibility list.

It is provided, however, that irrespective of an employee's ranking on the eligibility list, an employee eligible for promotion to a vacancy in the position of Captain or Battalion Chief shall be passed over on the eligibility list and not be promoted if the employee has not completed at least thirty (30) months in the classification immediately below the vacancy, and no employee may be promoted to the position of engineer or lieutenant, and shall be passed over on the eligibility list, without fifty-four (54) months in the classification of firefighter and/or engineer.

An employee certified for promotion to a vacancy may be passed over for any vacancy on an order subject to the following conditions:

- a. No employee may be passed over on more than two (2) orders, unless the employee does not meet the time in grade requirements outlined above.
- b. No employee shall be promoted from a new promotional eligibility list until all employees who may have been passed over

46

on a previous promotional order have been promoted, unless the employee does not meet the time in grade requirements.

- c. An employee may be passed over on an order only for the following reasons:
- (i) At the time the vacancy occurs the employee is on an injury leave of six (6) months or more for a non-duty-related injury; provided, however, that upon the employee's return to duty from such leave he/she shall be promoted on the next order.
- (ii) A major disciplinary infraction (i.e. charges resulting in a suspension of fifteen (15) days or more); provided, however, that if such disciplinary infraction is not sustained, the employee shall be promoted on the next order. No disciplinary infraction may be used for more than one order as a reason to pass over an employee on a promotional order.
- (iii) In order to comply with any injunctive or final and unappealable order of a court, administrative agency, administrative law judge, hearing officer or arbitrator.

The Employer shall specify the specific reason in the event that it decides to pass over an employee on an order.

- 3. Each applicant for promotion shall be given a copy of his/her answer sheet following the conclusion of the written examination, prior to the candidate's departure from the exam site. Each applicant will be allowed to challenge test questions on the written examination in writing. During the announced challenge period, the applicant will be allowed to review the written examination for that purpose. A copy of the correct answer key for the written examination shall be provided by the City to the Union after the promotional eligibility list has been finalized and approved by the Department of Justice. Upon request, the candidate shall thereafter have the right to receive a copy of the written examination. The City shall provide the Technical Report of a promotional examination to the Union within thirty (30) days of a promotion made from the eligibility list created as a result of such examination.
- 4. Performance Selection Process
- a. Up to sixteen percent (16%) of the promotions to the rank of Lieutenant, up to sixteen percent (16%) of the promotions to the rank of Captain, and up to sixteen percent (16%) of the promotions to the rank of Battalion Chief on each promotional order may be made by the Fire Commissioner on the basis of performance. The following criteria must be met by any applicant prior to being eligible for performance promotion:
- (i) passing the appropriate administered examination with a grade of seventy (70) or better;
- (ii) meeting the following time in rank requirements at the time of the promotion:
- (a) One hundred and twenty (120) months in the classification of Firefighter and/or Engineer for promotion to the position of Lieutenant;
- (b) Seventy-two (72) months in the classification of Lieutenant for promotion to the position of Captain;
- (c) Seventy-two (72) months in the classification of Captain for promotion to the position of Battalion Chief.
- b. Battalion Chiefs may nominate candidates for consideration for Performance Selection Process for each rank of Lieutenant, Captain and Battalion Chief. In addition, Exempt rank personnel in the positions of Deputy District Chief, District Chief and Bureau Heads may nominate candidates for consideration in the Performance Selection Process to the promotional ranks of Lieutenant, Captain and Battalion Chief as directed by the Fire Commissioner. Nominations shall be made after the promotional administered examination is announced but before the examination is held. All nominations shall be forwarded to the Performance Selection Board, which will consist of the First Deputy Fire Commissioner, the Deputy Commissioners, and the Director of Personnel. The City shall provide the Union with a list of nominees before the written portion of the administered examination.
- c. The Performance Selection Board will consider the nominations, taking into account each candidate's performance, awards and commendations, leadership ability, specialized training, relevant education and experience, attendance file, disciplinary file, and any other information deemed relevant to determine whether to recommend the candidate to the Commissioner.
- d. The Performance Selection Board will submit its recommendations to the Fire Commissioner for consideration. The City shall provide the Union with the Board's recommendations to the Fire Commissioner before any promotional order is issued. The Fire Commissioner shall make performance selection promotions from recommendations. The list of Nominees shall be void upon removal of the eligibility list.
- e. Only candidates nominated as per subparagraph b above may be recommended by the Performance Selection Board to the Fire

Commissioner, and only candidates recommended by the Performance Selection Board may be considered by the Commissioner in determining performance selection promotions.

- f. The City will apprise the Union, in writing, of the identity of the personnel, if any, who receive performance selection promotions at the time of such promotions.
- g. Provided that the provisions set forth in subparagraph 4.a through fare followed, the Fire Commissioner's performance selection decision shall be final and not subject to the grievance procedure.
- 5. The City may charge an appropriate fee for all promotional examinations not to exceed the charge established by City Council Ordinance, which fee shall not exceed \$75.00.

- 6. In the event that any court of competent jurisdiction enjoins the City from making promotions pursuant to this Agreement, or issues a final and unappealable order that promotions be made in a manner inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, compliance with that order shall not be deemed a violation of this Agreement. In the event the City is unable to make further promotions without violating any such order, the City and Local 2 shall negotiate a resolution that permits promotions consistent with such order.
- C. EMS Positions
- 1. Career positions within Emergency Medical Services (EMS) shall be:
- a. EMS Field Chief
- b. Ambulance Commander
- c. Paramedic-in-Charge (P.I.C.)
- d. Paramedic
- 2. Notwithstanding Sections 9.3A and 9.3B, promotions for EMS employees shall come from lists as they may from time to time be established, provided that no employee may be promoted until completion of at least eighteen (18) months in the classification immediately below the vacancy, and for promotion to the position of Field Chief and Ambulance Commander thirty (30) months in the classification immediately below the vacancy. No list shall be used for more than eight (8) years.
- 3. a. Field Chiefs shall be paid at the F6 pay rate, Paramedic-in-Charge (P.I.C) at the F3A pay rate, and Ambulance Commander at the F5 pay rate. There shall be appointed one (1) Ambulance Commander for each Ambulance Company. After the initial appointment of Ambulance Commanders, transfer vacancies in and promotions to the Ambulance Commander position shall be filled pursuant to Section 16.7C. Promotions to the position of

49

Ambulance Commander shall be made to employees in the position of P.I.C, on the basis of seniority. Effective January 1, 2007, promotions to the position of Ambulance Commander shall be filled pursuant to 9.3.C.2.above.

- b. Ambulance Commanders and P.I.C.'s shall be on the same Overtime Distribution List.
- 4. Promotions to the position of Field Chief shall be made to employees in the position of Ambulance Commander.

#### Section 9.4 - Layoff and Recall

In the event it becomes necessary to layoff employees, for any reason, employees shall be laid off in inverse order of their seniority. Employees shall be recalled from layoff according to their seniority. No new employees shall be hired until all employees on layoff status, desiring to return to work, have been recalled.

#### **ARTICLE X. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE Section 10.1 - Definition**

Any grievance or dispute which may arise between the parties, including the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement, shall be settled in the following manner.

#### Section 10.2 - Procedure, Steps and Time Limits

Step I. - The employee, with or without the Steward (or the Steward alone in the case of a Union Grievance), shall take up the grievance or dispute in writing or orally with the Employer's authorized representative within ten (10) business days of its occurrence, or if later, the date on which either the employee or his/her Union Steward knew or reasonably should have known of its occurrence. The Employer's authorized representative shall then attempt to adjust the matter and shall respond in writing or orally to the Steward within five (5) business days.

Step II - If the grievance is not settled in Step I and the Union with or without the employee wishes to appeal the grievance in Step II of the grievance procedure, it shall be referred in writing to the Fire Commissioner or his/her designated representative within five (5) working days after the receipt of the Employer's answer in Step I. The written grievance shall be signed and shall set forth all relevant facts, the provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the requested remedy.

The Fire Commissioner or his/her designated representative shall discuss the grievance within ten (10) working days of receipt of the notice of appeal with the employee and the authorized Union representative at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. If no settlement is reached, the Fire Commissioner or his/her

50

designated representative shall give the Employer's written answer to the Union within ten (10) working days following their meeting.

Step III - If the grievance remains unresolved within fifteen (15) business days after the reply of the Fire Commissioner is due, either party may, by written notice to the other party, invoke arbitration.

#### Section 10.3 - Arbitration

A. Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written notice of arbitration the parties shall meet or otherwise attempt to select an impartial Arbitrator by mutual agreement, preferably from a previously agreed to list.

B. If after ten (10) working days the parties are unable to mutually agree upon selection of an Arbitrator, the party invoking arbitration shall request the services of the American Arbitration Association (AAA), unless the parties mutually agree to utilize the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS), as described herein. The party invoking arbitration shall request that AAA submit simultaneously to both parties an identical list of seven (7) names of persons chosen from the labor panel. Each party shall thereafter cross off any names objected to, number the remaining names indicating the order of preference, and return the list to AAA. From among the persons who have been approved on both lists, and in accordance with the designated order of mutual preference, the AAA shall invite the acceptance of the Arbitrator to serve. If the parties fail to agree upon any of the persons named or if those named decline or are unable to act, or if for any other reason the appointment cannot be made from the submitted list, the AAA shall submit a second and, if necessary, third list. Thereafter, the AAA shall have the power to make the appointment from other members of the panel without the submission of any additional lists. The parties, by mutual agreement in writing, may submit more than one (1) grievance to the same Arbitrator. If the parties mutually agree to utilize the services of FMCS, the parties will contact the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) and request a panel of eight (8) arbitrators. Upon receipt of the panel, either party may strike the first panel and request a second panel of eight (8) arbitrators. No subsequent panel may be requested except with the mutual written agreement of the Employer and the Union. Upon receipt of the panel, the parties will alternately strike names, with the party striking first to be determined by coin toss, until one (1) arbitrator remains, who shall then be notified of his selection.

#### C. Expedited Arbitration

Within the ten (10) day period referred to in Section 10.3(A) the Employer and the Union may by mutual agreement elect to utilize an expedited arbitration process in lieu of the arbitration process set forth in Section 10.3(B). Within seven (7) working days after such agreement for expedited 51

arbitration, the parties shall meet or otherwise attempt to select an impartial Arbitrator preferably from a previously agreed to list. If the parties cannot mutually agree on the selection of an Arbitrator, the parties shall request the services of the American Arbitration Association as described in Section 10.3 (B), unless the parties mutually agree to utilize the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services as described in Section 10.3(B).

#### **Section 10.4 - Authority of the Arbitrator**

The Arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. The Arbitrator shall only consider and make a decision with respect to the specific issue or issues of contract interpretation or application appealed to arbitration and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other issues not so submitted. The Arbitrator shall submit in writing his decision to the Employer and to the Union within thirty (30) days following the close of hearing unless the parties agree to an extension thereof. The decision shall be based solely upon the Arbitrator's interpretation of the meaning or application of the terms of this Agreement to the facts of the grievance presented. Subject to the Arbitrator's compliance with provisions of this

Section, the decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding. It is further provided that the Arbitrator has the express authority to award interest on back pay remedies and other monetary remedies at rates determined to be appropriate by the Arbitrator.

#### Section 10.5 - Expenses of Arbitration

The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the party whose position is not sustained by the Arbitrator. The Arbitrator, in the event of a decision not wholly sustaining the position of either party, shall determine the appropriate allocation of his fees and expenses. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. The cost of a transcript shall be shared if the necessity of a transcript is mutually agreed-upon between the parties.

#### **Section 10.6 - Processing and Time Limits**

Grievances may be investigated and processed during working hours by Union Stewards, representatives, and grievance committees, provided such activities do not interfere with the operations of the Fire Department.

A grievance not filed or appealed within the established time limits shall be deemed waived. If the Employer fails to reply within the established time limits then, at the Union's option, it may automatically advance to the next step.

The time limits set forth in this Article may be extended by mutual written consent of the parties. The term "working days" means the days of the week, Monday through Friday, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays.

52

#### **Section 10.7 - Processing Grievances**

Employees selected by the Union to act as Union representatives shall be known as "Stewards." The names of the employees selected as Stewards, and other Union representatives who may represent employees at each step of the grievance procedure, shall be certified in writing to the Employer by the Union. Any Union representative whose participation in grievance meetings, held pursuant to the provisions of the Article, is necessary shall be released from work without loss of pay to attend such meetings. Grievance meetings shall be scheduled in a manner which does not interfere with City operations.

#### **Section 10.8 - Meetings Between the Parties**

Upon request of either party, the Union President or designee and the Fire Commissioner or designee shall meet every three (3) months at a mutually agreeable time and place to exchange views and discuss matters of mutual concern that do not involve negotiations and that do not constitute the processing of a pending grievance.

#### Section 10.9 - Medical Grievances

Effective sixty (60) days after the ratification of this Agreement, grievances concerning medical issues shall follow the procedure below. Medical issues are defined as grievances involving medical issues, including but not limited to the nonpayment of duty-related hospital or medical bills; removal of an employee from duty for medical reasons; refusal to return an employee to duty from medical rolls; classification of any injury as non-duty-related and the Benefits Management Office's denial of payment of medical and hospital bills of an employee or his or her covered dependent under the City of Chicago Medical Care Plan for Employees. Step One: Initiating a Medical Grievance. Grievances concerning the Benefits Management Office's denial of payment of medical and hospital bills will be filed with the Bureau of Employee Relations within ten (10) business days following the events or circumstances giving rise to the grievance or, if later, the date on which either the employee or his Union Steward knew or reasonably should have known of the events or circumstances giving rise to the grievance.

If the determination at Step One is not satisfactory, the Union may by written request made within fifteen (15) business days of the Step One response, or the expiration of the period for the said response submit the matter for mediation.

Step Two: Mediation of Medical Grievances. At mediation, representatives of the Union, the Fire Department, the Benefits Management Office and the Finance Committee of the City Council, shall participate, as needed. Any settlement reached in the mediation proceedings shall be binding upon the parties. Medical mediation sessions shall occur every sixty (60) days. The parties shall split evenly the cost of the Mediator's fees and

expenses.

53

The grievant shall be provided with the relevant medical records within the possession of the Medical Section of the Personnel Division, the Committee on Finance, Benefits Management Office and Bureau of Employee Relations. A release shall be required for production of medical records. The relevant medical records shall include the determination by the Medical Section of the Personnel Division of the grievant's status and the response to the grievance. The above records shall be submitted to the Union by the Department within forty-five (45) days of the Department's receipt of the Union's release and mediation agenda, setting forth the grievant's name. Relevant records from the Medical Section of the Personnel Division, the Committee on Finance, the Benefits Management Office and Bureau of Employee Relations shall be provided as stated above and throughout the grievance process until the grievance is fully resolved.

Relevant documents to be produced by the Benefits Management Office in mediation are limited to medical records, claim forms, medical bills, explanation of benefits, and recommendation to and decision of the Benefits Committee regarding the claim. This definition of relevant records to be produced by the Benefits Management Office does not preclude the Union from subpoenaing additional relevant documentation in response to the scheduling of an arbitration of a grievance. Step Three: Arbitration. If the grievance is not resolved at Step Two, the Union upon written request within thirty (30) days of the date of mediation, may demand arbitration. The Mediator shall not be selected as the Arbitrator for the same case. The arbitration hearing shall be scheduled to commence within thirty (30) days of the selection of the Arbitrator. If they fail to agree, a list of seven neutrals who are members of the National Academy of Arbitrators and who have offices within the Chicago Metropolitan Area shall be requested from the American Arbitration Association (AAA), unless the parties mutually agree to utilize the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS). Within five (5) days after receipt of the list, the parties shall select an Arbitrator. Both the Employer and the Union shall alternately strike names from the list with the party striking first to be determined by coin toss. The remaining person shall be the Arbitrator.

#### ARTICLE XI. NO STRIKE AND NO LOCKOUT

No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the Employer during the term of this Agreement as a result of a dispute with the Union arising out of the terms of this Agreement.

No strikes of any kind and no slowdown, picketing or other concerted interference with, or interruption of, service shall be caused, sanctioned, instigated, condoned, supported or participated in by the Union or any employee during the term of this Agreement. Any or all employees who violate this clause shall be subject to immediate discharge.

#### ARTICLE XII. SAFETY, HEALTH & WELFARE

Section 12.1 - Hospitalization and Medical Coverage, Dental, Optical, Life Insurance Programs A. The Employer's medical, dental, prescription drug, life insurance and vision plans for eligible employees and eligible dependents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. The definition of eligible employees and eligible dependents is set forth in each respective program or plan. Eligible dependents under these plans are the employee's spouse and those dependents who are unmarried and less than twenty-five (25) (effective 10/1/2010, twenty-six (26)) years of age regardless of an employee's date of hire. Effective 1/1/2011, children until age 26 are covered, married or unmarried, and even if not a dependent. Contributions for coverage are set forth in Section 12.1G.

B. The Employer also agrees to make available to the following other persons the above described hospitalization and medical program, the dental plan, and the optical plan: employees who retire on or after age sixty (60) and their eligible dependents; widows and children of employees killed in the line of duty; former employees on pension disability (both duty and occupational) and their eligible dependents; widows and children of deceased employees who were formerly on pension disability.

The Employer will contribute the full cost of coverage for any of the above enumerated persons who elect coverage under any plan or plans. However, coverage under a plan for such persons shall terminate when a person either reaches the age for full Medicare eligibility under federal law or ceases to be a dependent as defined in a plan, whichever occurs first. After a person reaches the age for full Medicare eligibility, the person shall be covered under the medical program for annuitants provided the person pays the applicable contributions.

- C. Employees who retire on or after ratification of this Agreement, pursuant to the pension statute, but before attainment of age sixty (60), and their eligible dependents, shall be covered under the PPO hospitalization and medical program in effect for annuitants until they reach the age of full Medicare eligibility and become eligible for Medicare under federal law, provided they pay the contributions otherwise applicable to annuitants. After reaching the age of full Medicare eligibility, and becoming Medicare eligible, they shall be covered under the medical program for annuitants eligible for Medicare provided they pay the applicable contributions.
- D. Pending the final determination of benefits by the Board or Trustees of the Firemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund, employees who apply for duty, ordinary, or occupational disability benefits will be required to contribute the same amount as active employees for health care benefits; and the Employer will continue to provide the same health care benefits as for active employees.

Employees who receive duty or occupational disability benefits will continue to receive those benefits at no cost, pursuant to paragraph (B) above, without any refund of their previous contributions. Employees who are awarded ordinary disability benefits will be required to contribute at the Public Health Services Act (PHSA) rate reduced by the administrative fee of two percent (2%) as of the first day of the month following the Fund's final determination of the employee's claim.

The Employer agrees to pay all hospital, medical and prescription costs of an employee who is on a leave of absence for duty or occupational disability purposes, all at no cost to the employee. The Employer shall make pension contributions on behalf of the employees as if the employee had remained in active service.

- E. The City will amend its Section 125 plan to implement a Flexible Spending Account (FSA), which will permit employees to fund, on a pretax basis, an individual account that the employee may use to pay for qualified unreimbursed medical expenses, as provided under Section 213 of the Internal Revenue Code.
- Subject to IRS regulations, the FSA will allow participants to pay the following qualified expenses on a pretax basis: dental expenses; vision expenses; health plan contributions, deductibles, and co-payments; prescription drug co-payments, over-the-counter drugs and other unreimbursed medical expenses.
- Participation is voluntary and participants may contribute up to \$5,000 annually on a pre-tax basis, which will be deducted pro-rata each payroll period.
- Employees may enroll in the FSA or change the amount of their election once per year during open enrollment or when they have a change in family status.
- As mandated by the Internal Revenue Code, a "use it or lose it" rule applies to Section 125 plans.
- Any amount that remains in the participant's account at the end of the year will be forfeited.
   Effective upon ratification, the City agrees to make available to employees covered under this Agreement, pursuant to an FSA, the same Dependent Care Benefit as provided to other City employees who participate in the LMCC, under the same terms and conditions.
- F. The City-paid life insurance for all employees covered by this Agreement shall be \$25,000, effective July 1, 2010, \$75,000, and the City-paid A.D. & D. insurance shall be \$5,000. In all other respects, the life insurance program will conform to the provisions and costs of the life insurance coverage accorded to other sworn City employees. A summary of the City Life Insurance Program will be placed in the Agreement as Appendix E. 56
- G. Pre-Tax Contribution
- 1. Employees shall contribute the following pre-tax amounts per pay period, in accordance with their selected level of coverage:

Level of Coverage Single Single + 1 Family Percentage of Salary 1.0281% 1.5797% 1.9705%

2. For those with an annual salary at or above \$90,000.00, their pre-tax contributions per pay period shall be:

Level of Coverage Single Single + 1 Family

\$38.60 \$59.30 \$73.95

3. Employees shall contribute the following pre-tax amounts per pay period, in accordance with their selected level of coverage:

Level of Coverage Single Single + 1 Family

Percentage of Salary 1.2921 % of payroll per pay period 1.9854% of payroll per pay period 2.4765% of payroll per pay period

Contributions at selec	ted salary l	ted salary levels per pay periodows:							
ANNUAL SALARY	SINGLE (1	SINGLE (1.292'SINGLE +1 (1.9FAMILY							
	·		(2.4765%)						
\$15,000	\$8.08	\$12.41	\$15.48						
\$20,000	\$10.77	\$16.55	\$20.64						
\$30,000	\$16.15	\$24.82	\$30.96						
\$40,000	\$21.54	\$33.09	\$41.28						
\$50,000	\$26.92	\$41.36	\$51.59						
\$60,000	\$32.30	\$49.64	\$61.91						
\$70,000	\$37.69	\$57.91	\$72.23						
\$80,000	\$43.07	\$66.18	\$82.55						
\$90,000 and Over	\$48.45	\$74.45	\$92.87						
57									

- Η. **Prescription Drug Co-Payments**
- Retail Drugs (1)

The following are the co-payments and effective dates for the lesser of a 30-day supply or 100 units of the following prescription drugs:

TYPE	Effective January 1,	Effective July 1, 2006
	2003	
Generic Type 1	\$10	\$10.00
Brand Formulary Tier 2	\$20	\$30.00
Brand Non-Formulary Tier 3	\$10	\$45.00
Brand with Generic Equivalent	\$35	Generic Co-Payment Plus Cost Difference Between Brand and Generic
		Generic

#### (2) Mail Order Drugs

Co-payments for prescriptions obtained through the mail order plan for all health care plans are as follows:

- (1) Generic Tier 1: \$20.00 per prescription; 90 day supply
- (2) Brand Formulary Tier 2: \$60.00
- (3) Brand Non-Formulary Tier 3: Not Available
- (4) Brand with Generic Equivalent: Generic Co-Payment Plus Cost Difference Between Brand and Generic

#### LMCC

I. (1) Local 2 commits to becoming a signatory labor organization of the labor-management cooperation committee known as the Chicago Labor-Management Trust ("Trust"). Upon the ratification of this Agreement, Local 2 agrees to meet with the Employer and representatives from the signatory labor organizations to the Agreement and Declaration of Trust establishing the Trust ("Trust Agreement") for the purpose of determining Local 2's representation within the Trust and the

guidelines and procedures to be used in expanding the Trust to include the members of the bargaining unit. The parties contemplate that Local 2 shall have at least two (2) Trustees appointed to the Trust. After Local 2 becomes a signatory labor organization to the Trust, Local 2 shall be afforded the same right to withdraw from the Trust as is granted to any other signatory labor organization pursuant to the Trust Agreement. Notwithstanding Local 2's participation in the LMCC created by the Trust, the City and the

Union agree to negotiate with respect to health care issues that particularly affect firefighters and/or paramedics and present recommendations to the LMCC regarding such issues.

- (2) Each party reserves the right to reopen this Agreement to negotiate the health care plan set forth in this Agreement for the following reasons:
- (a) Any changes in the applicable laws, including a universal, national or state health care program, mandating significant changes in health insurance benefits that becomes law and is effective during the term of this Agreement and that
- affects the health care benefits or coverage offered to bargaining unit members or dependents; or (b) The lack of achievement of health care cost containment as anticipated by the parties pursuant to the formation and administration of the Chicago Labor Management Cooperation Committee on Health Care pursuant to the Chicago Labor Management Trust ("Trust") on health care, as defined below:
- (i) The parties charge the Trust with the responsibility of approving Plan changes that will result in significant cost containment or savings, as measured by a projected increase of costs for any individual plan of no more than 8% in Fiscal Year 2011 and each fiscal year thereafter when compared to health care costs in Fiscal Year 2010 and in each previous fiscal year thereafter, respectively.
- (ii) Should any Plan changes approved by the Trust fail to result in such cost containment or savings as stated in subsection (i) above, the Trust shall make such adjustments in deductibles, co-pays and coinsurance to prevent the cost increase from exceeding 8% as measured in subsection (i) above.
- (iii) Should the Plan changes approved by the Trust fail to achieve cost containment or savings as stated in subsections (i) and (ii) above by the end of the following fiscal year, either party may elect to reopen negotiations as set forth on the following specific topics:
- · Health Plan set forth in this Agreement
- Structure of the Trust
- Composition of the Trust
- Funding of the Trust

50

- (3) If any one of the foregoing events or conditions occurs, either party has thirty (30) days to notify the other party in writing of its intent to reopen this Agreement to negotiate the health care plan set forth in this Agreement. Thereafter, the parties have ninety (90) days within which to reach an agreement.
- (4) Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party reserves the right to reopen this Agreement to negotiate the health care plan set forth in this Agreement no later than June 30, 2011.
- (5) In the event that this Agreement is reopened to negotiate the health care plan, the health care plan in effect at the time the Agreement is reopened shall not be changed by the Employer without the written consent of Local 2. If the parties are unable to agree on modifications to the health care plan, the dispute shall be submitted to interest arbitration in accordance with Section 20.2.

#### Section 12.2 - Safety and Health

A. Applicable Laws and Regulations

It is agreed that the Employer and all employees will comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing safety and health matters. The Employer will continue to make reasonable provisions, in

compliance with such laws and regulations, for the safety and health of its employees. The Employer shall post all safety and health notices required by law in conspicuous places where notices to employees are customarily posted.

#### B. Joint Committee

The Joint Occupational Safety and Health Committee shall continue for the term of this Agreement. The Fire Commissioner and the Union shall each appoint three members. The Joint Committee shall meet monthly to discuss safety and health matters. The Joint Committee shall make recommendations to the Fire Commissioner as to any safety conditions, rules and equipment which it may deem in need of change and improvement in order to achieve proper standards of safety and health and to minimize accidents, injuries and illness in the Fire Department. The Department shall provide notice to the Joint Committee of contemplated changes in work clothes, protective clothing or turn out gear at least sixty (60) days prior to the implementation of such change. The Fire Commissioner shall promptly issue a report to the Joint Committee as to his views regarding the Joint Committee's recommendations.

All phases of field tests of personal protective equipment will be subject to involvement by the Joint Committee before any resolution relative to acquiring such equipment, provided that such involvement is legal and in compliance with the applicable written ethical rules and regulations of the 60

City of Chicago. Results of such test shall be provided to the Union 30 days prior to acquiring such equipment. C. Inoculations, Tests, Screening

- 1. Upon notification to the Employer by the employee, all employees on a voluntary basis shall be granted, at Employer expense, prophylactic inoculations for:
- a. Hepatitis B Virus (HBV), and
- b. As prophylactic inoculations become available, for:
- (i) Additional strains of Hepatitis;
- (ii) Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) related conditions;
- (iii) Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HIV) antibody positive conditions.
- 2. Upon notification to the Employer by the employee that a bargaining unit employee is significantly exposed in the course of duty to the risk of transmission of disease, as defined by the U.S. Center for Disease Control, from a person determined to have a disease process of a contagious or infectious nature, the employee on a voluntary basis, shall be granted, at Employer expense, medically necessary tests and/or screening, and prophylactic treatment.

#### Section 12.3 - Pensions

A. For the term of this Agreement, the Employer agrees not to exercise its Home Rule power to reduce the benefit provisions of the Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 108 1/2, Article VI, "The Firemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund - Cities Over 500,000."

B. Deferred Compensation

The Employer shall continue to make available to bargaining unit members an I.R.S. qualified deferred compensation program.

#### **ARTICLE XIII. NO DISCRIMINATION Section 13.1 - No Discrimination**

Neither the Employer nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this Agreement to become or not become members of the Union, and there shall be no discrimination against any such employees because of Union

61

membership or non-membership, but this Section is not intended to interfere with the operation of Section 1 of Article III of this Agreement. In accordance with applicable law, neither the Employer nor the Union shall discriminate against any employee covered by this Agreement because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, religion or political affiliation.

#### Section 13.2 - Gender

Whenever a male gender is used in this Agreement it shall be construed to include male and female employees.

#### Section 13.3 - Union's Duty of Fair Representation

The Union recognizes its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees to fairly represent all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion. The Union's duty of fair representation shall be carried out in conformity with the standard enunciated by the United States Supreme Court in Vaca v. Sipes, 386 U.S. 171 (1967).

#### **Section 13.4 - Affirmative Action**

A. The Parties agree to establish and implement an affirmative action program in accordance with the terms and conditions of the IAFF recruitment and equal opportunity programs as further described in Appendix G of this Agreement.

#### B. Polygraphs

The Employer agrees that no prospective employee shall be required to take a polygraph examination as a condition of employment with the Employer, and a prospective employee's refusal to submit to a polygraph examination shall not be cause for rejection for employment.

#### Section 13.5 - Americans With Disabilities Act

Should the Employer be required under the Americans With Disabilities Act to make a reasonable accommodation to the disability of an applicant or incumbent employee that may be in conflict with the right of any employee under this Agreement, the Employer shall bring this matter to the attention of the Union in writing. If the parties cannot reach an agreement on such accommodation, the provisions of Article X shall be available, and the Arbitrator shall consider the Employer's obligation and the Union's obligation (if any exists) under the Americans With Disabilities Act and under this Agreement, provided that no employee shall be displaced by such decision.

#### ARTICLE XIV. MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

It is the right of the Employer to unilaterally determine matters of inherent managerial policy and to implement decisions with respect thereto, which 62

include, but are not limited to, the following: the right to determine services to be offered by its agencies; to establish its overall budget; to direct its employees; to determine the content of examinations, the necessary requirements to participate in the examination process, and the minimum qualifications for all positions; to discipline or discharge employees for proper cause; to relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; to maintain and improve efficiency of governmental operations; to determine the methods, means and personnel by which government operations or a unit thereof are to be conducted; to determine the content of job classifications; to take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and to exercise control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work.

This Agreement shall be construed however as requiring the Employer to follow the provisions of this Agreement in the exercise of the foregoing rights.

#### **ARTICLE XV. DUTIES**

All employees shall be prompt in reporting to their assigned duties, and shall faithfully perform their duties. The assignment of duties not related to fire suppression, prevention, extinguishment and delivery of emergency medical services, including the maintenance of equipment and the customary house duties, shall be grounds for a grievance under Article X. Nothing in the above duties description shall limit assignments during emergency conditions and/or circumstances which threaten citizens' lives and/or property.

#### **ARTICLE XVI. GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### Section 16.1 - Union Bulletin Boards

The Employer agrees to furnish suitable space for bulletin boards in convenient places in each work area to be used only by the Union. The Union shall limit its posting of notices and bulletins to such bulletin boards. The Union shall not use such boards for posting abusive or inflammatory or partisan political material.

All material shall be signed and approved by the authorized representative of the Union prior to posting.

#### Section 16.2 - Discipline and Discharge

A. Disciplinary actions instituted by the Employer shall be for reasons based upon the employee's failure to fulfill his/her responsibilities as an employee. Where the Employer believes just cause exists to institute

disciplinary action it shall have the option to assess the following penalties:

Oral Reprimand Written Reprimand Suspension Discharge

63

Any disciplinary action or measure other than an oral reprimand imposed upon an employee may be appealed through the grievance procedure. The employee may file a written reply to any oral reprimand. If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public. Any disciplinary action taken against a probationary employee shall not be subject to 16.2E below or to the grievance procedure. B. The Employer agrees that employees shall be disciplined and discharged only for just cause. A copy of all suspension and discharge notices shall be provided to the Union. Discharge and disciplinary suspensions shall be subject to review under the grievance procedure up to and including arbitration. Disciplinary actions shall be subject to review under the grievance procedure only. Such review procedures are in lieu of and expressly supersede and preempt the employee notification and appeal procedures specified in Chapter 25.1 of the Municipal Code and any City of Chicago Personnel Rules. Such contractual review procedures shall be the sole and exclusive method of reviewing all disciplinary action.

- C. Any employee found to be unjustly suspended or discharged shall be reinstated with full compensation for all lost time and with full restoration of all other rights, benefits and conditions of employment, without prejudice, unless a lesser remedy is agreed-upon as a grievance settlement or deemed appropriate by an Arbitrator.
- D. Disciplinary actions recorded in the employee's personnel files shall not be used after twelve (12) months to justify subsequent disciplinary action except for a related offense.
- E. The Employer shall conduct disciplinary investigations when it receives complaints or has reason to believe an employee has failed to fulfill his responsibilities as an employee and just cause for discipline exists. It is understood that polygraph examinations will not be used by the Employer in any phase of disciplinary investigations.

Prior to taking any final, disciplinary action and concluding its investigation, the Employer shall notify the employee of the contemplated measure of discipline to be imposed, and shall meet with the employee involved and inform him/her of the reasons for such contemplated disciplinary action. Copies of the following documents shall be given to the employee at this notification and review meeting:

- 1. Allegation of violations of Rules & Regulations
- 2. Statement of charges and specifications
- 3. Employee's initial statement of facts
- Acknowledgment of notification and review
- 5. Disciplinary officer's recommendation

64

6. Copies of the employee's pertinent past discipline

The employee shall be entitled to Union representation at such meetings and shall be given the opportunity to rebut the reasons for such proposed discipline.

F. The Employer's personnel files, disciplinary history files, medical files and completed inactive investigative files, except for information which the Department deems to be confidential, shall be open and available for inspection and copying by the affected employee, or his Union representative with the specific written consent of the employee, during regular business hours.

It is agreed that any material and/or matter not available for inspection, such as provided above, shall not be used in any manner or forum adverse to the employee's interest.

#### Section 16.3 - No Acting Out of Classification and Emergency Manpower Shortages

A. No Acting Out of Classification

No employee shall be required or volunteer to perform duties of any other rank or classification

during the term of this Agreement except as set forth in Section 16.3B and/or 16.4D of this Agreement.

#### B. Emergency Manpower Shortages

To avoid the temporary shutdown of companies due to unexpected or unscheduled absences or incapacity that cannot be immediately covered by detailing, overtime or holdover pursuant to Articles 9.2 or 5.6 respectively, members of the bargaining unit may be temporarily assigned to act in a higher or lower rank subject to the conditions enumerated below:

- i. If acting in a higher rank the employee shall be compensated for the period of acting at the same rate he would earn if promoted to that higher rank or if acting in a lower rank then at the employee's regular rate of pay.
- ii. The acting employee will perform the duties of the higher or lower rank or classification for a maximum of four (4) hours except in the following situations:
- a. The acting employee is relieved by overtime assignment of an employee of the proper rank pursuant to Article 9.2 within the four (4) hours; or 65
- b. If the fourth hour of the acting period runs past midnight, the acting employee shall continue to act for the balance of the tour of duty.

For the purposes of Section 16.3B the four (4) hour period shall begin from the time the shortage occurs if the company is in quarters, or from the time the company returns to quarters if the shortage occurs when the company is not in quarters. The Employer shall diligently attempt to fill the manpower in accordance with Article 9.2 during the four (4) hour period.

In the event that no employee is available for overtime recall pursuant to Article 9.2 the acting employee will continue to act for the balance of the tour of duty and the company will not be put out of service.

- iii. In the Division of Fire Suppression and Rescue the senior person on the particular apparatus on the shift shall have priority for the acting assignment. Priority as to an acting assignment on ALS ambulances shall be to the senior person in the District on the shift.
- iv. The District Chief or his designee immediately shall notify the Union by phone at its office advising as to the existence of any manpower shortage, the assignment of personnel to act in a higher or lower rank and/or recall of employees on overtime. If the event occurs during non-business hours, however, the District Chief or his/her designee will notify the Union by phone at the earliest opportunity on the next business day. In either case, as soon as possible, the District Chief or his/her designees also will cause to be made a written incident report covering the circumstances, including the action taken to comply with the collective bargaining agreement, and forward the report simultaneously both to Department Headquarters and to the Union.

When an employee acts out of classification to fill a shortage occurring before 8:00 p.m. for a period longer than four (4) hours the Union and the Employer shall meet on the next regular business day to negotiate a solution to rectify this condition. It is agreed that the negotiations of the solution will proceed from the premise that the minimum manning provision shall be maintained and the shut down of emergency apparatus avoided.

#### Section 16.4 - Minimum Manning

A. Fire Suppression and Rescue

- 1. The vehicle and equipment manning complements which are currently maintained shall continue to be maintained at those levels (i.e., five (5) men on all trucks, engines and squad companies and effective January 24, 2005, on two (2) HazMat units [5-1-1 and 5-1-2]), and effective March 1, 2006, four (4) men on three (3) Command Vans, except as set forth in Section 16.4D.
- 2. At each airport on each shift the City shall maintain one (1) fire engineer and one (1) firefighter on each crash fire apparatus and also one (1) company officer per shift at each airport for all crash fire apparatus; except no firefighter need be maintained on the crash fire apparatus to which a company officer is assigned

that day. These minimum manning requirements shall not be waived under the provisions of Section 16.4D which shall not be applicable to this Section 16.4A2.

- 3. The number of fire companies shall be maintained and continue to be maintained at no less than those levels maintained on March 1, 2006 (for example, ninety-six (96) engine companies, sixty-one (61) truck companies, four (4) squad companies, two (2) HazMat units, the Fire Boat, and no less than three (3) Command Vans as well as the number of battalions on said date).
- 4. The daily on duty complement of platoon employees in the Air Mask Service shall remain no less than those on duty on January 1, 2010.
- B. EMS and Ambulance Manning

Emergency Medical Services and ambulances shall be staffed as follows:

- 1. One (1) EMS Field Officer per EMS District on a daily basis with a minimum of eight (8) EMS Field Chiefs on a daily basis.
- 2. a. One (1) Paramedic and one (1) Paramedic-in-Charge or one (1) Ambulance Commander in each of sixty (60) or more ambulances on average on a daily basis over a one week period (Monday-Sunday), but no less than fifty-seven (57) ambulances on a daily basis; provided that if due to exceptional circumstances on a given day fifty-seven (57) or more ambulances cannot be maintained in service, or if sixty (60) or more ambulances per day by weekly average cannot be maintained in service, the Union shall be notified in either or both instances, and the Union and the Employer shall

meet on the next regular business day to discuss the reason for the problem and steps to be taken to avoid a repetition; and

- b. Two (2) EMT-B employees in each of fifteen (15) or more additional ambulances on a daily basis.
- 3. The EMT-B employees shall be detailed to the ambulances referenced in 16.4B2b above. The most senior EMT-B employee on each of these ambulances for the day shall be paid at the employee's next pay step and shall be in charge and responsible for any necessary documentation. Such pay for such employees at Step 6 and over shall be no less than the monetary equivalent of the percentage difference between Appendix B, Steps 5 and 6. It is provided that no EMT-B employee shall be detailed to any of these ambulances more than six (6) (effective upon contract ratification, four (4)) of the employee's duty days in a calendar quarter (January-March, April-June, July-September, October-December).
- 4. When required, an EMT-P and/or an EMT-B on an ALS Engine Company shall assist on an ambulance, in which case the ALS Engine shall accompany the ambulance to the hospital.
- 5. When more than one FF/EMT-B or FF/EMT-P are assigned to an ALS or BLS fire company on the same duty shift, the Employer shall have the EMT-P's and EMT-B's rotate within their classifications as the "designated" EMT-P or
- "designated" EMT-B.
- C. Cross-Training Program

Employees who achieve dual certification will receive incentive pay as set forth herein.

- 1. Recognizing that the Division of Emergency Medical Services within the Department is staffed with employees not only specializing in medical service, but highly trained in the nonemergency, non-medical operating procedures of the Department, a program will be established to include in each Fire Fighter Candidate Class, a complement of Certified Chicago Fire Department Emergency Medical Services uniformed personnel. Each candidate Fire Fighter Class, certified by the Department of Personnel from a Fire Fighter entry level eligibility list, shall include a minimum of 10% (ten percent) of such Emergency Medical Services Personnel on the Fire Fighters eligibility list. Those selected in this manner shall be selected on the basis of seniority.
- 2. (a) Emergency Medical Services Personnel who become Fire

Fighter candidates and those who become Fire Fighters shall receive the pay and grade they had received prior to becoming Fire Fighters; however, this is restricted to Paramedics and Paramedic-in-

Charge only. These personnel shall get credit for service rendered as EMS Personnel, in terms of step and grade. EMS personnel over the rank and/or pay of Paramedic-in-Charge who become Fire Fighter Candidates and then become Fire Fighters shall revert to the position and pay of Paramedic-in-Charge. Regarding Paramedic-in-Charge who become Fire Fighters, future promotions to the rank of Fire Engineer, should that occur, shall not cause any change in their pay grade status at the time of such promotion, it being understood that employees shall be entitled to their normal step increases. Thereafter, promotion to the rank of Lieutenant and above shall be treated in accordance with promotional/pay procedures. Effective July 1, 2011, this subparagraph (a) is replaced by subparagraph (b) below.

- (b) Effective July 1, 2011, Emergency Medical Services personnel, irrespective of grade, who become Fire Fighters candidates and those who become Fire Fighters shall get credit for service rendered as EMS personnel in terms of seniority and step, but shall be paid as cross trained Firefighter/Paramedics and shall be entitled to their normal step increases. Promotion to high rank/classification shall be treated in accord with promotional/pay procedures.
- 3. EMS personnel who become cross-trained fire suppression employees shall, as a condition of continued employment, maintain their Paramedic certification for a period of five (5) years from the date of completion of Academy training (effective June 30, 2003 for a period of seven (7) years for those who complete Academy training on or after June 30, 2003). Cross-trained EMS personnel who maintain dual certification shall be paid at no less than F2 pay rate or 7% (effective January 1, 2011, 7.5%) over the pay rate to whichjhey are otherwise entitled, whichever is higher.
- 4. To meet necessary manning requirements arid operational needs, the Employer may detail cross-trained dual certified personnel on fire apparatus or ambulances. Such personnel detailed to an ALS ambulance shall act as the paramedic/driver and the EMS paramedic assigned or detailed to that ambulance shall act as the P.I.C.
- 5. Under Section 16.7 cross-trained personnel who maintain dual certification may bid upon and be assigned to any position for which they are qualified; except, dual certified personnel in the ranks or 69
- classifications of Fire Engineer, Lieutenant, Captain or Battalion Chief may not bid to Ambulance Companies.
- 6. (a) Employees voluntarily participating as cross trained dual status employees and receiving the salary for the classified/graded position may opt out of participation on the July 1<sup>st</sup> or February 1<sup>st</sup> closest to their anniversary date on which participation commenced by notifying the Department in the preceding October for February withdrawals and in the preceding March for July withdrawals. Employees must have participated in the program at least two (2) years from such anniversary date. Effective when participation ceases they shall forfeit the cross trained classification/grade for such position and shall be paid as otherwise provided in Appendix B of the current labor agreement for his/her non cross trained classification/grade.

Employees who choose to voluntarily opt in and participate as cross trained dual status employees may do so by notifying the Department of their intent to opt in on February 1<sup>st</sup> of each year by notifying the Department the preceding October or by notifying the Department of their intent to opt in on July 1<sup>st</sup> by notifying the Department during the preceding March of each year. In addition, effective January 1, 2007, employees who are currently participating as cross trained dual status employees will have their anniversary dates adjusted to either February 1<sup>st</sup> or July 1<sup>st</sup> of the year that their current contract expires. Dates will be adjusted in order to ensure that no employee's contract is extended beyond the two (2), five (5) or seven (7) year term, or any other subsequent term, that they initially agreed to. Employees will be notified by the Department of the expiration date of their contract no less than sixty days prior to said expiration. Notification will include information on the required process to renew their contract. Employees who fail to renew their contract prior to the end of their contract term will be dropped from participation and forfeit the cross trained classification/grade for

such position and shall be paid as otherwise provided in Appendix B of the current labor agreement for his/her non cross trained classification grade.

- (b) Any cross-trained dual status employee who loses his/her EMT-B or EMT-P license will at the time of such loss forfeit the cross-trained classification/grade for such position and shall be paid as otherwise provided in Appendix B for his/her non cross-trained classification/grade.
- (c) Employees participating as cross-trained dual status employees who opt out of participation (as provided in (a) above), or who lose their EMT-B or EMT-P license will be
- detailed from their ALS fire companies on a rotating basis with other non-EMT-B and non EMT-P employees to another fire company on a daily basis if necessary, to maintain the minimum number of EMT qualified employees on the ALS fire company.
- (d) The requirement in Contract Section 16.4C3 that EMS personnel who become cross-trained fire suppression employees shall, as a condition of continued employment, maintain paramedic license for a period of five (5) or seven (7) years shall be interpreted to mean that such employees may not voluntarily relinquish their paramedic license for the referenced period of time. The requirement does not apply to any such employees who lose their paramedic license. Further, upon completion of the five (5) or seven (7) year period, these employees may continue voluntary participation as cross-trained dual status employees, or opt out as provided in (a) above.
- 7. Cross-trained dual status employees above the position of firefighter from time to time may be required to perform EMS duties as an EMT-B or EMT-P, and such shall not be considered a violation of Contract Section 16.3A.
- D. Variance
- a. The minimum manning requirements of Section 16.4A shall be waived after all detailing has been accomplished (the City may exercise wide discretion to cover vacancies provided it follows the information requirements set forth in subparagraph c below) to the extent of one person per company, to a maximum of fifteen (15) positions at any one time.
- b. In addition, the restrictions on acting out set forth in Section 16.3, shall also be waived to a maximum of fifteen (15) at any one time,
- (i) within a fire company for the position of Engineer and above,
- (ii) within an ambulance company for the position of Paramedic-in-Charge and above,
- (iii) within the Bureau of Operations for the position of Battalion Chief and
- (iv) within the Bureau of Operations for the position of Field Chief, and the most senior qualified of the available employees within the company, or within the District (in the case of Battalion Chief or Field Chief) shall act out and be compensated for the period of acting at the same rate he would earn if promoted to that higher rank (or at his/her own regular rate if higher than the rank of the position in which he/she is acting). Whenever feasible, the employee selected shall be from the same Company or the same District

71

- (in the case of Battalion Chief or Field Chief) where that office or vacancy exists; however, the ultimate determination and selection of the appropriate employee to fill the acting out of classification vacancy shall be left to the discretion of the Department.
- c. The Company or District in which the absence occurred, as specified in paragraph 16.4D(a), does not have to be the Company or District which operates with minimum manning or an acting out of classification variance (i.e., the City may detail employees from one company or District to another to cover the particular vacancy at its discretion). However, the Union shall be notified on a daily basis when the original permitted absence occurred and the reason for the absence and the Company or District in which such absence occurred, as well as the Company or District in which the minimum manning or acting out of classification variance was exercised.
- d. 1(a) Notwithstanding the manning and acting variance maximums

of fifteen (15) each, set forth respectively in subparagraphs a. and b. above, it is provided that the maximum number of manning variances (as set forth in subparagraph a) may be increased up to an additional fifteen (15) (to a total of thirty (30)) at any one time, and the maximum number of acting variances (as set forth in subparagraph b) may be increased up to an additional fifteen(15) (to a total of thirty (30)) at any one time. This exception is expressly conditioned upon the strict requirement that there shall be no more than thirty (30) variances in the aggregate (manning and acting) used at any one time, and that for each manning variance over fifteen (15) used at any one time, the number of acting variances shall be reduced by one, and for each acting variance over fifteen (15) used at any one time, the number of manning variances shall be reduced by one. (For example, if at any one time nineteen (19) manning variances are used, only eleven (11) acting variances may be used; if at any one time twenty (20) acting variances are used, only ten (10) manning variances may be used, and vice versa).

(b) Notwithstanding the manning and acting variance maximums of fifteen (15) each, set forth respectively in subparagraphs a. and b. above and subparagraph d.1.(a) above, effective August 1, 2011, it is provided that the maximum number of manning variances (as set forth in subparagraph a) may be increased up to an additional twenty (20) (to a total of thirty-five (35)) at any one time, and the maximum number of acting variances (as set forth in subparagraph b) may be increased up to an additional twenty (20) (to a total of thirty-five (35)) at any one time. This exception is expressly conditioned upon the strict requirement that there shall be no more than thirty-five (35) variances in the

72

aggregate (manning and acting) used at any one time, and that for each manning variance over twenty (20) used at any one time, the number of acting variances shall be reduced by one, and for each acting variance over twenty (20) used at any one time, the number of manning variances shall be reduced by one. (For example, if at any one time twenty-two (22) manning variances are used, only thirteen (13) acting variances may be used, and if any one time twenty-four (24) acting variances are used, only eleven (11) manning variances may be used, and vice versa.)

- 2. It shall not be necessary for the remainder of an employee's shift to rehire for that employee who, during the employee's shift, is removed from attending to his duties on or after 8:00 p.m. (effective October 1, 2011, 1:00 p.m.) to seek medical attention because of a non-duty-related injury or illness.
- 3. Notwithstanding subparagraphs a., b., c, d.1, and d2 above, when an emergency exists as determined by the Fire Commissioner, and relates to possible or actual structural fire activities each truck, engine and squad company shall be manned with no less than five (5) personnel and the Section 16.4 D.b exception to Section 16.3B shall not apply.
- 4. Under no circumstances shall any engine company, truck company, squad company or HazMat unit 5-1-1 or HazMat unit 5-1-2 operate with less than four (4) employees. Further, no ambulance will operate with less than two (2) employees, and three (3) Command Vans shall operate with no less than four (4) employees.
- e. The Union will be notified within 48 hours in writing of the use of variances to manning and acting, and in the event that a manning or an acting variance is used by the City in excess of the maximum number permitted, the employee or employees on the top of their respective Overtime Distribution Lists shall receive pay for the period involved (not less than 12 hours) at 2 Vz (two and one-half) times their hourly rate.

#### Section 16.5 - Residency

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be actual residents of the City of Chicago. In an arbitration, the Union may not challenge the validity of the residency law or requirement. However, it may assert that an employee discharged for failure to meet the residency requirement was not discharged for "just cause," if it can be shown that other City employees similarly situated who also fail to comply with the residency requirement were either not discharged or suffered lesser

#### 73

penalties. In that circumstance, the factual questions together with the question of just cause and whether the discharge was discriminatorily based are matters for the Arbitrator.

#### Section 16.6 - Mileage Allowance

Employees in the Fire Prevention Bureau shall be paid the current IRS rate to a maximum of \$350.00 per month. An employee who receives such compensation shall provide proof of insurance coverage as specified in the Classification and Pay Plan (Automobile Allowance, Provisions "F").

Effective February 1, 2008, the maximum reimbursement shall increase from \$350.00 to \$450.00 per month. Effective February 1, 2009, the maximum reimbursement shall increase to \$550.00 per month. Thereafter, the maximum reimbursement shall increase effective each February 1 by the percentage increase in the Transportation Expenditure Category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): U.S. City Average for the previous year, as rounded to the nearest \$5.00 increment. In addition, should the maximum mileage allowance for any employees represented in other bargaining units recognized by the City be increased further during the term of this Agreement, Local 2 represented employees shall also receive the monthly dollar increase.

Mileage allowance shall normally be received by the employee within thirty (30) days of the date on which the employee's mileage claim is submitted.

#### Section 16.7 - Permanent Assignments and Transfers

- A. The Employer agrees that permanent job positions shall be defined as all bargaining unit job positions which are covered by this Agreement.
- B. All employees shall be eligible for and maintain a permanent job classification and/or rank assignment within the respective bureaus and districts of the Fire Department.
- C. Permanent Assignments and Transfers
- 1. Vacancies in a permanent assignment for any reason, including but not limited to any due to an assigned employee's retirement, resignation, promotion, transfer, death, discharge for cause, authorized leave of absence in excess of three (3) months, and any due to newly created assignments or positions in the Bureau of Operations, Bureau of Fire Prevention, and Bureau of Support Services shall be filled on the basis of seniority. Such assignment vacancies in the classifications and/or ranks of Firefighter, Lieutenant, Captain and Battalion Chief in the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall be filled on the basis of seniority by geographically designated offices in that Bureau, (i.e., South, West, North, Central and North Kedzie). It is provided, however, that upon the posting of reasonable job qualifications, such qualifications to be determined
- by the Employer, for the positions of Training Instructor, Training Officer, Fire Investigations, Squads, Hazardous Material Unit, Air Mask Service, Equipment and Supply, Communications Van and Air Sea Rescue, such jobs shall be filled on the basis of seniority by employees who have such qualifications. It is also provided that vacancies in permanent assignments on ALS Fire Companies shall be referenced separately as ALS Fire Companies on the posted lists of vacancy assignments: however, when an ALS Fire Company has a sufficient number of EMT qualified employees (which shall be fifteen (15) qualified employees), then the senior bidder, whether or not EMT qualified, shall be assigned to the ALS Fire Company.
- 2. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the following assignments or positions all of which require the use of specialized training or skills based upon reasonable minimum job qualifications, the content of which is to be determined by the Employer, need not be filled by the Employer based on seniority, though the Employer shall take seniority into account:
- Research and Planning
- District Aide
- Non-Exempt Administrative Positions
- Personnel
- E.P.D.S.
- Inspection & Audits
- Helicopter Pilots

- Finance & Fiscal Management
- Records
- Property Management
- Building Maintenance
- Fire Communications
- Photo/Media Unit
- 3. Within the first two (2) weeks of the months of January, April, July and October, the Employer shall post a list of any and all assignment vacancies in all departmental work areas with a copy delivered to the Union. Effective upon the date of contract ratification, within the first two (2) weeks of each of the months of January, May and September, the Employer shall post a list of any and all assignment vacancies in all departmental work areas with a copy delivered to the Union. Employees within the same job classification and/or rank desiring a transfer or permanent assignment shall make a transfer application for the vacancy or vacancies of their choice, a copy of which shall be delivered to the Union and the applicant. The Employer shall grant the transfer or permanent assignment to the successful applicant having made application within fifteen (15) days of the vacancy list being posted except where a different assignment is dictated by bona fide

operational needs of the Department. Such exception shall not exceed seven percent (7%) of the number of permanent assignments made in each transfer order. Effective upon the date of contract ratification, transfer orders shall be posted within fifty-five (55) days from the date the vacancy list is closed. Concurrent with the posting of the transfer order the Employer will identify on the order the number and rank of the employees transferred to a permanent assignment which are to be charged against the exception. For the term of this Agreement the original assignment of candidates to active companies shall not be charged against the exception. The original assignments of candidates shall take place after the posting of the transfer order (i.e., not more than thirty (30) days thereafter) and before the posting of the next vacancy order. Any vacancy not bid upon shall be assigned to employees in relief positions, in accordance with Section 16.7D of this Agreement. The City shall post a list of non-ALS fire companies that are scheduled to become ALS fire companies and the dates they are scheduled to become ALS fire companies well in advance (at least ninety (90) days) of the dates, so that employees can have sufficient time to decide whether and when to obtain EMT-B and/or EMT-P license, and/or to transfer.

- 4. The duties of Battalion Aide and the Deputy District Aide shall be performed by an employee permanently assigned to a designated company housed with the Battalion Chief or Deputy District Chief. When vacancies exist in the designated company housed with the Battalion, the Battalion Chief or Deputy District Chief may request a single employee to be permanently assigned to the company for the purpose of assuming the duties of Battalion Aide or Deputy District Aide and said selection shall be without regard to seniority. The Battalion Aide or Deputy District Aide shall be detailed from such permanent assignment to perform the duties of Battalion Aide or Deputy District Aide at the option of the employee and with the approval of the Battalion Chief or the Deputy District Chief. Such detail shall last for thirty (30) day periods which may be extended by mutual agreement of the aide and the Battalion Chief or Deputy District Chief. It is specifically provided, however, that such detailing shall not be an exception to the minimum manning requirements.
- 5. Both probationary employees assigned and employees transferring into Airport Operations must be Airport Rescue Firefighter certified within fifteen (15) months from such assignment. Failure to obtain certification within fifteen (15) months shall require a firefighter to request a transfer.
- D. Relief Positions

76

1. Relief Positions shall not be considered permanent assignments. An employee who does not receive a permanent assignment after

three (3) successive transfer orders may be assigned to any permanent vacant position remaining on the third transfer order after all other requests have been granted; provided, however, that the Employer shall assign the employee to any permanent vacant position remaining on the third transfer order that is closest to the employee's residence, and provided further that the employee may bid for a permanent assignment on the next transfer order without regard to the one (1) year limitation. If more than one employee is subject to this

assignment, the employee(s) on relief the longest will be the first assigned.

- 2. Subject to the foregoing, relief positions shall operate out of the districts rather than headquarters, except in the rank of Battalion Chief and EMS Field Officer which shall operate out of bureau/headquarters. Effective upon contract ratification and upon promotion to the ranks of Paramedic-in-Charge and Ambulance Commander, employees shall be assigned to relief positions. E.M.S. relief positions shall operate out of E.M.S Field Divisions. Initial promotional assignments to relief positions shall be made by the Employer; except that before promotional assignments to relief positions are made, employees then in relief positions and employees in forty (40) hour permanent positions may bid for two (2) and on the basis of seniority receive a minimum of 60% of the relief positions to be filled. Bids shall be closed fifteen (15) days after posting.

  3. It is further provided, that any increase or decrease in the number of Bureaus or Districts or the restructure of any Bureaus or Districts deemed necessary by the Employer which would necessitate a decrease, expansion or rotation of relief positions shall without limitation entitle the senior relief employee(s) to opt for a change to any involved positions of his/her choice.
- 4. The Department will administer the following policy: When the Employer determines that there is an excess on a shift by Daley Day within a District, the least senior relief employee shall be moved unless a more senior relief employee assigned to the shift and Daley Day where such excess exists opts for the change, in which case the senior employee shall be moved. Any dispute in administering this policy shall only be resolved pursuant to discussions between the Business Agent and the District Chief or his designee.
- 5. When the Employer determines that there is an excess in a rank of E.M.S employees on a shift within a Field Division, the least senior relief employee shall be moved unless a more senior relief employee assigned to the shift where such excess exists opts for the change, in which case the senior employee shall be moved. Any dispute in administrating this policy shall only be resolved

pursuant to discussions between the Union Business Agent or Director of EMS and the Deputy Chief Paramedic or his/her designee.

E. The transfer of an employee to a vacancy or assignment of his choice, either pursuant to Section 16.7C or the second and third paragraph of Section 16.7D, that results in the working of successive shifts or a Daley Day change, shall constitute an exception to Section 4.1 of this Agreement.

F. No employee shall be transferred or detailed for punitive reasons.

#### Section 16.8 - Contracting and Subcontracting of Work

The Employer recognizes the integrity of the bargaining unit. It is intended and understood that the work described herein, which encompasses all the work of the Fire Department in all of its Bureaus and facets is exclusively the work of bargaining unit employees and, except as otherwise provided, shall be performed by bargaining unit employees.

During the term of this Agreement the Employer shall not contract out, subcontract, or in any manner transfer out or assign to others any work performed by employees covered in this Agreement, except in the case of an emergency involving a natural or human disaster, or where non-bargaining unit personnel or persons have performed such work since January 1, 1984. Further non-bargaining unit personnel or persons may only perform such work or work similar and related to that which they performed since January 1, 1984, strictly provided that any work performed by non-bargaining unit personnel or persons shall not limit any bargaining unit employee's promotional opportunities, cause any bargaining unit employee's classification to be lowered or eliminated, or cause any bargaining unit employee to be laid off or displaced.

The terms "contract out" or "subcontract" shall include any agreements requiring work by employees to be performed outside the corporate limits of the City of Chicago or the use of other employees of the City or any other City, business, etc., to perform the work of the bargaining unit members.

#### Section 16.9 - Protective Gear and Clothing Allowance

A. The City shall furnish to all uniformed members of the fire fighting services, as prescribed and/or directed by the Fire Commissioner and consistent with the provisions of Section 12.2, dress uniforms, work clothes, and protective clothing and gear, which shall be replaced at the City's expense when worn out through normal use or destroyed or damaged beyond repair. Replacement will be accomplished by the Department as soon as possible and shall be made on an exchange basis, except for a new issue for which no exchange will be necessary. The Employer is not responsible for replacing items lost or stolen. All

clothing, except bunker gear, helmets, fire boots and dress uniforms shall be considered used up after five years.

- B. Effective January 1, 2006, all platoon employees will receive the sum of \$1,250.00 per year, \$625.00 payable on or before March 1st, and \$625.00 payable on or before September 1st. After the March 1, 2007 payment, EMS platoon employees shall not be paid a protective gear and clothing allowance for the term of this Agreement.
- C. Effective January 1, 2006, all forty (40) hour employees will receive the sum of \$1,500.00 per year, \$750.00 payable on or before March 1st and \$750.00 payable on or before September 1st, for cleaning and maintenance of dress uniforms, work clothes and protective clothing.

### Section 16.10 - Hook and Ladder, Squad Drivers, ALS Ambulance Drivers, Tillerman, Shop Apparatus, Ancillary Apparatus

The Employer shall pay the regular Driver and Tillerman of Hook and Ladder Companies, Drivers of Squad Companies, Communications Vans, "B" licensed repair shop drivers (fire fighters permanently assigned to the repair shop)<sub>A</sub>afi4 Helicopter Pilots, and effective January 1, 2006, ALS Ambulance Drivers and Drivers of Ancillary Apparatuses at the employee's next pay step. It is provided, however, that such drivers' pay for employees at step 6 and over shall be no less than the monetary equivalent of the percentage (%) difference between Appendix B, steps 5 and 6. The regular driver of the Company shall be the employee selected by the Company Officer and whose duties normally encompass driving the apparatus or squad.

#### Section 16.11 - Training

A. The Employer and Union are committed to the principle of training for all employees in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Fire Department. Said training shall be provided insofar as it does not adversely affect and interfere with the orderly performance and continuity of municipal services within the Fire Department. Training shall be scheduled by the Fire Commissioner or his designee. The Employer will furnish training to the extent it determines necessary and possible in keeping with operational needs and manpower scheduling, for employees interested in becoming qualified for positions of Training Instructors, Air Mask Service, Air Sea Rescue and Squads. Employees will attend training sessions during their normal hours of duty. Training will be scheduled in a manner which does not undermine or erode the minimum manning standards established in this Agreement.

For the purpose of training, the Employer may schedule for up to eight (8) hours (normally to take place between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.) on a platoon shift during normal duty hours, a total of thirty-five (35) firefighters, engineers and officers, and of this total up to fifteen (15) may be officers.

- 1. It is provided, however:
- a. Such training shall take place within the County of Cook, Illinois, or the Great Lakes Naval Training Center in Lake County, Illinois.
- b. The Employer shall notify employees who are to report for training at locations other than their normal company assignments, no later than their duty day prior to the duty day when they are to report for such training.
- c. At the conclusion of their day's training assignment, employees shall report back to their normal duty assignment.
- d. During the training period and until employees report back to their normal company assignments (but no longer than two (2) hours after the training), the truck and engine companies to which these employees are assigned shall operate with no fewer than four (4) employees.
- 2. It is further provided:
- a. Employees who act in place of an engineer or officer during such training, and until the engineer or officer returns, shall be compensated for that period of acting at the same rate the employee would have earned if promoted to the higher rank. Whenever feasible the employee selected shall be from

the same Company or same District (in the case of Battalion Chief or Field Chief) where that office or vacancy exists; however, the ultimate determination and selection of the appropriate employee to fill the acting out of classification vacancy shall be left to the discretion of the Department.

- b. Any such training on a Saturday shall be up to four (4) hours and no such training shall take place on Sundays and holidays.
- c. No such training shall be scheduled or take place, and if cancelled employees shall be directed to report back to their normal company assignments, when:
- i. the temperature is projected to reach or reaches 20° Fahrenheit or below for Chicago as determined by the National Weather Service;
- ii. the heat index is projected to reach or reaches 90° Fahrenheit or greater for Chicago as determined by the National Weather Service;
   80
- iii. during inclement weather as determined by a superior officer;
- iv. during Fire Prevention Week; or
- v. ordered by a superior officer.
- 3. For any non-compliance by the City with respect to exceeding the number of employees permitted for training, the locations, the periods of time or the dates for training, the employee or employees on the top of their respective Overtime Distribution Lists shall receive pay for the period involved (not less than four (4) hours) at two and one-half (2 1/2) times their hourly rate.
- A. The Employer and Union shall each name three (3) representatives to a training committee. Such committee shall meet and discuss ways to improve training and may, by mutual agreement, make recommendations to the Fire Commissioner. The Commissioner shall promptly issue a report as to his views as to the Committee's recommendation. Members of the training committee shall be provided with access to training materials and curriculum, and shall be allowed to monitor training sessions on their off days conducted prior to or concurrent with the training committee's meetings in order to facilitate the committee's work.
- B. Employees upon their voluntary request shall be permitted to attend non-required and non-mandatory-job-qualification educational functions or seminars at the Fire Academy during off duty hours and without additional pay. There shall be at least ten (10) days written notification to all work locations prior to such educational functions or seminars.
- C. EMT-B/EMT-P Training
- 1. The City shall provide EMT-B training which shall be mandatory for new hires, who shall be required to be licensed by the State of Illinois as an EMT-B prior to the end of their nine (9) months as a probationary employee.
- 2. For non-probationary employees interested in obtaining an EMT-B license, off duty EMT-B training will be available through the Chicago City Colleges, and such employees shall be given the opportunity to function in the Chicago EMS System.

81

#### Section 16.12 - Medical Benefit Letter

Upon written request the Employer shall furnish to all employees who in the course of their employment are injured or become ill resulting from the performance of their duties, a statement showing the period of absence and the amounts received during the period of absence due to such injury or illness. Upon written request the Employer shall also provide to each occupational or duty disability retiree the same statement as above covering the period of absence due to the injury or illness prior to retirement.

The Employer will continue to furnish these documents upon request of the employee until the Internal Revenue Service concludes that they are of no value for tax purposes.

#### Section 16.13 - Indemnification of Employees

A. Employer Responsibility

The Employer shall be responsible for, hold employees harmless from and pay for damages or monies which may be adjudged, assessed, or otherwise levied against an employee covered by this Agreement, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 16.13D.

B. Legal Representation

Employees shall have legal representation by the Employer in any civil cause of action brought against an

employee resulting from or arising out of the performance of duties.

#### C. Cooperation

Employees shall be required to cooperate with the Employer during the course of the investigation, administration or litigation of any claim arising under this Section.

#### D. Applicability

The Employer will provide the protections set forth in Sections 16.13A and 16.13B above so long as the employee is acting within the scope of his employment and where the employee cooperates, as defined in Section 16.13C with the City of Chicago in defense of the action or actions or claims.

#### E. Indemnification

Any obligation of the City of Chicago to indemnify employees for punitive damages assessed, adjudged or otherwise levied shall be based upon City Ordinances and/or State Statutes providing for such indemnification.

#### Section 16.14 - Special Compensation Time

If, as a result of a declaration by the Mayor, all employees of the City of Chicago except for Police and Fire Department employees are given a day off or portion thereof with pay, then all employees covered under this Agreement who are required to work during such excused time shall be given additional pay at the straight-time hourly rate for all the hours that normally would have been worked by such other City employees.

#### Section 16.15 - Specialty Pay

The following employees shall receive specialty pay equal to five percent (5%) of their annual salaries:

- Hazardous Material Technicians
- Certified Divers

Pro-rata payment shall be made quarterly in January, April, July and October.

Effective January 1, 2011, newly hired employees may not receive Hazardous Material Technician specialty pay until commencement of Step 4 in the salary schedule.

Effective upon contract ratification, the City shall maintain no fewer than 200 Certified Divers at any one time. In the event an employee is detailed or assigned to a unit or assignment where the employee is required to dive, the employee shall receive Diver Specialty Pay upon becoming a Certified Diver regardless of the number of Certified Divers then receiving Specialty Pay. Under no circumstances shall the Department require or permit an employee to dive who is not a Certified Diver. Provided further, no employee who is receiving this Specialty Pay as of the date of contract ratification shall be removed from the roster of employees receiving this Specialty Pay regardless of whether there is an excess of 200 Certified Divers.

#### ARTICLE XVII. RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### Section 17.1 -

A. The Union agrees that it and its members shall comply, in full, with all Fire Department Rules and Regulations and Practices and Procedures that are not in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

83

B. The Employer shall name three representatives and the Union shall name three representatives to sit as a committee to review the existing Fire Department Rules and Regulations. Such committee shall meet promptly and may by mutual agreement make recommendations to the Fire Commissioner. The Fire Commissioner shall promptly issue a report as to his views as to the committee's recommendations.

#### Section 17.2 -

New or revised rules and general orders having the effect of changing a rule or regulation may be established from time to time by the Employer. Any such new or revised rule(s) or general order(s) shall be posted ten (10) days before they become effective or enforceable. Where possible, the

Employer shall endeavor to discuss proposals for new rules and regulations and general orders with the Rules and Regulations Committee prior to posting.

Section 17.3 -

The Employer agrees that the uniform rules and regulations of the Fire Department are to be fairly and equitably administered and enforced. Any employee shall have the right to appeal to the grievance procedure for violation of this clause.

#### **Section 17.4 - Career Service Exemption**

Chapter 25.1 of the City Code and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by the Department of Personnel shall continue in effect to the extent that they are not inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE XVIII. SAVINGS CLAUSE**

If any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such provision should be rendered or declared invalid by any court action, or by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the subject matter of such invalid provision shall be open to immediate negotiations.

#### ARTICLE XIX. GUARANTEE OF TERMS

The Employer agrees that this Agreement shall be immediately submitted to the City Council of the City of Chicago for ratification and concurrent adoption in ordinance form pursuant to the City's Home Rule authority. Such action by the Council shall commit the City of Chicago to enact no subsequent ordinances, executive orders or rules and regulations having the force and effect of law which would impair the binding effect of or make unenforceable the terms of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XX. DURATION AND TERMINATION

#### Section 20.1 - Notice

Notification for a Successor Contract

This Agreement and each of its provisions shall be effective as of July 1, 2007, and shall continue in full force and effect until June 30, 2012, and thereafter, unless either party notifies the other in writing by February 1, 2012 or ninety (90) days prior to any June 30<sup>th</sup> anniversary date thereafter that it desires to modify or amend this Agreement. Negotiations shall commence by March 1, 2012 and shall continue for a period of sixty (60) days until May 1, 2012. The parties may extend the negotiation period by mutual agreement. Notwithstanding the above, prior to June 1, 2014, neither party may propose any amendment, revision, modification or change in or regarding Sections 16.4.A., 16.4.B., 16.4.D., 16.3., 16.7A, B., and C.1. of this

#### Section 20.2 - Impasse Resolution - Binding Arbitration Board

In the event that disputed items cannot be resolved during the negotiation periods under Section 20.1, all disputed items shall be referred to a three-person (3) Arbitration Board, one member to be selected by each of the parties and the third member to be jointly agreed-upon by the parties, using the same procedures specified in Article X for the selection of a neutral Arbitrator who shall be a member of the National Academy. The terms decided upon by the Arbitration Board shall be submitted as provided by applicable state law, except:

(a) regardless of when or if any demand for mediation or interest arbitration is served by one party on the

- other, or when or if the parties mediate or when any service of a demand for interest arbitration is made, the Arbitration Board shall have express authority and jurisdiction to award changes in wages, benefits and all forms of compensation retroactive to June 30, 2007 as referenced in Section 20.1.A and to July 1, 2003 as referenced in Section 20.1.B and
- (b) that the Arbitration Board will have the authority to consider a party's final offer on one or more issues, economic or non-economic, that is/are combined as a package offer or a party's alternative offers, provided that such offers are submitted prior to the completion of any evidentiary hearing. The terms of the current Agreement shall continue to bind both parties hereto during all negotiations and impasse resolution procedures.

85

#### Section 20.3 - Ratification and Enactment by the City Council

If the parties reach a complete agreement as to the items for negotiation at the end of either negotiation period (Section 20.1 .A or 20.1 .B), the following procedure shall apply:

i. The Agreement will first be presented to the Union membership with Local No. 2's Executive Board's recommendation for ratification.

ii. Within fifteen (15) days after ratification by the Union membership, the Agreement will be submitted to the City Council of the City of Chicago, with the Fire Commissioner's and Mayor's recommendation for ratification and concurrent adoption in ordinance form pursuant to the City's Home Rule authority. The Employer and Union shall cooperate to secure this legislative approval.

iii. In the event the City Council should reject the recommended Agreement, the parties shall meet again within ten (10) days of the Council's vote to discuss the reasons for the Council's rejection and determine whether any modifications can be made to secure the Council's approval: thereafter, either party may invoke arbitration in accordance with Section 20.2 upon ten (10) days written notice to the other party.

For purposes of this Section, rejection by the City Council will be in accordance with applicable state law.

86

#### Section 20.4 - Signature

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures this day of.

For the City: For the Union:

Richard M. Daley, Mayor

Thomas E. Ryan, Jr., President

Peter R. O'Sullivan, Business Agent

Raymond Orozco, Chief of Staff

Terrance Michael Harty, Vice President

Paul J. Stamper, Business Agent

Robert S. Hoff Fire Commissioner

Michael E. O'Neill, Secretary Treasurer

Roger Perez, Business Agent

Mara Georges, Corporation Counsel

Marc J. McDermott, Director-Contract Enforcement

Joel Burns, Business Agent

Anthony P. Vasquez, Deputy Fire Commissioner

Timothy O'Brien, Director - Public Relations

David Quintavalle, Business Agent

James C. Franczek, Jr., Labor Counsel

Dan Fabrizio,

Director - Political Action

Thomas J. Cody, Business Agent

Peter J. Houlihan,

**Director - Emergency Medical Services** 

Robert S. Sugarman, Attorney

87

#### Appendix A - Confidential Employees

A maximum number of thirty-five (35) employees may be excluded from the bargaining unit as confidential employees.

88

#### Appendix B - Salary Schedules

#### **Key for Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions**

F1 Firefighters and Paramedic Rate

F1B Cross-Trained Dual Certified Firefighter EMT-B Rate

F2 Cross-Trained Certified Firefighter EMT-P Rate

(Old Firefighter/Paramedic Title)

F3 Firefighter Administrative Assistant Rate

F3B Cross-Trained Dual Certified Firefighter Administrative Assistant EMT-B Rate

F3P Cross-Trained Dual Certified Firefighter

Administrative Assistant EMT-P Rate

F3A Fire Engineer and Paramedic-in-Charge Rate

F3AB Cross-Trained Engineer EMT-B Rate

F3AP Cross-Trained Engineer EMT-P Rate

F4 Fire Lieutenant Rate

F4B Cross-Trained Fire Lieutenant EMT-B Rate

F4P Cross-Trained Fire Lieutenant EMT-P Rate

F5 Fire Captain and Paramedic Ambulance Commander Rate

F5B Cross-Trained Fire Captain EMT-B Rate

F5P Cross-Trained Fire Captain EMT-P Rate

F6 Fire Battalion Chief Rate and Paramedic Field Chief Rate

F6B Cross-Trained Battalion Chief EMT-B Rate

F6P Cross-Trained Battalion Chief EMT-P Rate

89

#### Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions

Effective July 1, 2007

LIIE	cuv <del>e</del> Ju	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
CLASS GRAD E		FIRST 12 MONTHS			AFTER 30 MONTHS	AFTER 42 MONTHS			YRS OF	YRS OF	AFTER 25 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006
F1	ANNUAL	46,188	56,286	59,484	62,550	65,640	68,946	71,364	73,848	76,818	79,884	82,680
	MONTHL Y	3,849.00	4,690.50	4,957.00	5,212.50	5,470.00	5,745.50	5,947.00	6,154.00	6,401.50	6,657.00	6,890.00
F1B	ANNUAL	48,036	58,542	61,866	65,052	68,268	71,700	74,214	76,800	79,890	83,076	85,992
		4,003.00	4,878.50	5,155.50	5,421.00	5.689.00	5,975.00	6,184.50	6,400.00	6,657.50	6,923.00	7,166.00
F2	Y ANNUAL	57,282	60,222	63,648	66,930	70,236	73,770	76,356	79,014	82,194	85,476	88,470
		4,773.50	5,018.50	5,304.00	5,577.50	5.853.00	6,147.50	6,363.00	6,584.50	6,849.50	7,123.00	7,372.50
F3	Y ANNUAL	57,102	60,318	63,366	66,450	69,780	73,224	. 75,702	78,312	81,204	83,610	86,532
		4,758.50	5,026.50	5,280.50	5,537.50	5,815.00	6,102.00	6,308.50	6,526.00	6,767.00	6,967.50	7,211.00
F3B	Y ANNUAL	59,388	62,730	65,898	69,108	72,576	76,152	78,732	81,444	84.450	86,952	89,994
		4,949.00	5,227.50	5,491.50	5,759.00	6,048.00	6,346.00	6,561.00	6,787.00	7,037.50	7,246.00	7,499.50
F3P	Y ANNUAL	61.104	64,542	67,800	71,100	74,664	78,348	81,000	83,796	86,886	89,466	92,592
	MONTHL Y	5.092.00	5,378.50	5,650.00	5,925.00	6,222.00	6,529.00	6,750.00	6,983.00	7.240.50	7,455.50	7,716.00
F3A	Y ANNUAL	58,218	61,51B	64,626	67,764	71,154	74,706	77,208	79,926	82,830	85,248	88,230
		4,851.50	5,126.50	5.3B5.50	5,647.00	5,929.50	6,225.50	6,434.00	6,660.50	6.902.50	7,104.00	7,352.50
F3AB	Y ANNUAL	60,546	63,978	67,212	70,470	74,004	77,694	80,304	83,124	86,142	88,656	91,752
	MONTHL Y	5,045.50	5,331.50	5,601.00	5,872.50	6,167.00	6,474.50	6,692.00	6,927.00	7,178.50	7,388.00	7,646.00
F3AP	ANNUAL	62,292	65,826	69,144	72,510	76,140	79,938	82,614	85,518	88,626	91.21B	94,404
	MONTHL Y	5,191.00	5,4B5.50	5,762.00	6,042.50	6.345.00	6,661.50	6,884.50	7,126.50	7,385.50	7,601.50	7,867.00
F4	ANNUAL	65,010	68,238	71,706	75,342	79,050	82,974	85,722	88,410	91,254	94.206	97,032
	MONTHL Y	5,417.50	5,686.50	5,975.50	6,278.50	6,587.50	6,914.50	7,143.50	7,367.50	7,604.50	7,850.50	8,086.00
F4B	ANNUAL	67,614	70,962	74,574	78,354	82,218	86,292	89,154	91,950	94,902	97.980	100,914
		5,634.50	5,913.50	6,214.50	6,529.50	6,851.50	7,191.00	7,429.50	7,662.50	7,908.50	8,165.00	8,409.50
F4P	Y ANNUAL	69,564	73,008	76,728	80,616	84,588	88,782	91,722	94,596	97,638	100,800	103,824

File #:	O2011	-12. <b>\</b>	/ersion:	1
---------	-------	---------------	----------	---

	MONTHL 5,797.00 Y	6,084.00	6,394.00	6,718.00	7,049.00	7,398.50	7,643.50	7,883.00	8,136.50	B.400.00	8,652.00
F5	ANNUAL 73,548	77.190	80,994	85,074	89.286	93,816	96,648	99,624	102,648	105,792	10B.456
	MONTHL 6,129.00 Y	6,432.50	6,749.50	7.0B9.50	7,440.50	7,818.00	0,054.00	8,302.00	8,554.00	8,816.00	9,038.00
F5B	ANNUAL 76,488	80,280	84,234	8B.482	92,856	97.566	100.518	103,614	106,758	110.022	112,794
	MONTHL 6,374.00 Y	6.690.00	7,019.50	7,373.50	7,738.00	8,130.50	8,376.50	8,634.50	8,896.50	9.168.50	9,399.50
F5P	ANNUAL 78,702	82,596	86,664	91,032	95,538	100,386	103,416	106,602	109,836	113,196	116,052
	MONTHL 6,558.50 Y	6,883.00	7,222.00	7,586.00	7,961.50	8,365.50	8,618.00	8,883.50	9,153.00	9,433.00	9,671.00
F6	ANNUAL 80,994	85,074	89,286	93,816	98,454	103,296	106,254	109,260	112,284	115,632	117,972
	MONTHL 6,749.50 Y	7,089.50	7,440.50	7,818.00	8,204.50	8,608.00	8,854.50	9,105.00	9,357.00	9,636.00	9,831.00
F6B	ANNUAL 84,234	88,482	92,856	97,566	102,396	107,430	110,502	113,634	116,778	120,252	122,688
	MONTHL 7,019.50 Y	7,373.50	7,738.00	8,130.50	8,533.00	8,952.50	9,208.50	9,469.50	9,731.50	10,021.00	10,224.00
F6P	ANNUAL 86,664	91,032	95,538	100,386	105,348	110,526	113,694	116,910	120,144	123,726	126,228
	MONTHL 7,222.00	7,586.00	7,961.50	8,365.50	8,779.00	9,210.50	9,474.50	9,742.50	10,012.00	10,310.50	10,519.00

# Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions

Effective January 1	. 2008
---------------------	--------

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
CLASS GRAD E		FIRST 12 MONTHS		AFTER 18 MONTHS					15 YRS	AFTER 20 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 25 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006
F1	ANNUAL	47,574	57,972	61,266	64,428	67,608	71,016	73,506	76,062	79,122	82,278	85,158
	MONTHL Y	3,964,50	4,831.00	5,105.50	5,369.00	5,634.00	5,918.00	6,125.50	6,338.50	6,593.50	6,856.50	7,096.50
F1B	ANNUAL	49,476	60,300	63,720	67,002	70,314	73,854	76,440	79,104	82,284	85.566	88,572
	MONTHL Y	4,123.00	5,025.00	5,310.00	5,583.50	5,859.50	6,154.50	6,370.00	6,592.00	6,857.00	7,130.50	7,381.00
F2	ANNUAL	53,998	62,028	65.556	68,940	72,342	75,984	78,648	81,384	84,660	88,038	91,122
	MONTHL Y	4,916.50	5,169.00	5,463.00	5,745.00	6.02B.50	6,332.00	6,554.00	6,782.00	7,055.00	7,336.50	7,593.50
F3	ANNUAL	58,818	62,130	65,268	68,442	71,874	75,420	77.976	80,664	83,640	86,118	89,130
	MONTHL Y	4,901.50	5,177.50	5,439.00	5,703.50	5,989.50	6,285.00	6.498.00	6,722.00	6,970.00	7,176.50	7,427.50
F3B	ANNUAL	61,170	64,614	67,872	71,184	74,754	78,438	81,096	83,886	86,982	89,562	92,694
	MONTHL Y	5,097.50	5.384.50	5,656.00	5,932.00	6,229.50	6,536.50	6,758.00	6,990.50	7,248.50	7,463.50	7,724.50
F3P	ANNUAL	62,940	66,480	69,834	73,236	76,902	80,700	83,430	86,310	89,490	92,148	95,370
	MONTHL Y	5,245.00	5,540.00	5,819.50	6,103.00	6,408.50	6,725.00	6,952.50	7,192.50	7,457.50	7,679.00	7,947.50
F3A	ANNUAL	59,964	63,366	66,564	69,796	73,290	76,950	79,524	82,326	85,314	87,804	90,876
	MONTHL Y	4,997.00	5,280.50	5,547.00	5,816.50	6,107.50	6,412.50	6,627.00	6,860.50	7,109.50	7,317.00	7,573.00
F3AB	•	62,364	65,898	69,228	72,582	76,224	80,022	82,716	85,620	88,728	91,314	94,506
	MONTHL Y	5,197.00	5,491.50	5,769.00	6,048.50	6,352.00	6,66B.50	6,893.00	7,135.00	7,394.00	7,609.50	7,875.50
F3AP	ANNUAL	64,158	67,800	71,220	74,688	78,426	82,338	85,092	88,086	91.284	93.954	97,236
	MONTHL Y	5,346.50	5,650.00	5,935.00	6,224.00	6,535.50	6,861.50	7,091.00	7,340.50	7,607.00	7,829.50	8,103.00
F4	ANNUAL	66,960	70,284	73,860	77,604	81,420	85,464	88,296	91,062	93,990	97,032	99,942
	MONTHL Y	5,580.00	5,857.00	6,155.00	6,467.00	6,785.00	7,122.00	7,358.00	7,588.50	7,832.50	8,0B6.00	8,328.50
F4B	ANNUAL	69,642	73,092	76,812	80,706	84,684	88,878	91,830	94,710	97,752	100,920	103,944
	MONTHL Y	5,803.50	6,091.00	6,401.00	6,725.50	7,057.00	7,406.50	7,652.50	7,892.50	8,146.00	8,410.00	8,662.00

File #	: O2011	-12. V	ersion:	1
--------	---------	--------	---------	---

F4P	ANNUAL 71,652	75,198	79,032	83,034	87,126	91,446	94,476	97,434 100,566	103,824	106,938
	MONTHL 5,971.00 Y	6,266.50	6,586.00	6,919.50	7,260.50	7,620.50	7,873.00	8,119.50 8,380.50	8.652.00	8,911.50
F5	ANNUAL 75,756	79,506	83,424	87,624	91,962	96,630	99,546	102,612 105,726	108.966	111,708
	MONTHL 6,313.00 Y	6,625.50	6,952.00	7,302.00	7.663.50	8,052.50	8,295.50	8,551.00 8,810.50	9,080.50	9,309.00
F5B	ANNUAL 78,780	82,686	86,760	91,134	95,640	100,494	103,536	106,722 109,962	113,322	116,178
	MONTHL 6,565.00 Y	6,890.50	7,230.00	7,594,50	7,970.00	8,374.50	8,628.00	8,893.50 9,163.50	9,443,50	9,681.50
F5P	ANNUAL 81,066	85,074	89,262	93,762	98,406	103,398	106,518	109,800 113,130	116,592	119,532
	MONTHL 6,755.50 Y	7,089.50	7,438.50	7,813.50	8,200.50	8,616.50	8,876.50	9,150.00 9,427.50	9,716.00	9.961.00
F6	ANNUAL 83,424	87,624	91,962	96,630	101,406	106.392	109,440	112.536 115,650	119,100	121,512
	MONTHL 6,952.00 Y	7,302.00	7,663.50	8,052.50	8,450.50	8,866.00	9,120.00	9.37B.009,637.50	9,925.00	10,126.00
F6B	ANNUAL 86,760	91,134	95,640	100,494	105,468	110,652	113,820	117,042 120,282	123,858	126,366
	MONTHL 7,230.00 Y	7,594.50	7,970.00	8,374.50	8,789.00	9,221.00	9,485.00	9,753.50 10,023.50	10,321.50	10,530.50
F6P	ANNUAL 89,262	93,762	98,406	103,398	108,510	113,844	117,102	120,420 123,750	127,440	130,014
	MONTHL 7,438.50 Y	7,813.50	8,200.50	8,616.50	9,042.50	9,487.00	9,758.50	10,035.0 10,312.50 0	10,620.00	10,834.50

# Salary Schedul e for Uniformed Fire Department Positions Effective January 1, 2009

CD		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
CLASS GRAD E		FIRST 12 MONTHS		2AFTER 18 MONTHS	AFTER 30 MONTHS		AFTER 54 MONTHS	AFTER 10 YRS OF SERVICE	15 YRS	YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 25 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006
F1	ANNUAL	48,528	59,130	62,490	65,718	68,958	72.438	74,976	77,586	80,706	83,922	86,862
	MONTHL	4,044.00	4,927.50	5,207.50	5,476.50	5,746.50	6,036.50	6,248.00	6,465.50	6,725.50	6,993.50	7,238.50
F1B	ANNUAL	50,466	61,506	64,992	68,340	71,718	75,330	77,970	80,688	83,928	87,276	90,342
	MONTHL Y	4,205.50	5,125.50	5,416.00	5,695.00	5,976.50	6,277.50	6,497.50	6,724.00	6,994.00	7,273.00	7,528.50
F2	ANNUAL	60,180	63,270	66,870	70,320	73.7B8	77,502	80,220	83,010	86,352	89,796	92,946
	MONTHL Y	5,015.00	5,272.50	5,572.50	5,860.00	6,149.00	6,458.50	6,685.00	6,917.50	7,196.00	7,483.00	7,745.50
F3	ANNUAL	59,994	63,372	66,576	69,810	73,314	76,926	79,536	82,278	85,314	87,840	90,912
	MONTHL Y	. 4.999.50	5,281.00	5,548.00	5,817.50	6,109.50	6,410.50	6,628.00	6,856.50	7,109.50	7,320.00	7,576.00
F3B	ANNUAL	62,394	65,904	69,228	72,606	76.248	80,004	82,716	85,566	88,722	91,356	94,548
	MONTHL Y	. 5,199.50	5,492.00	5,769.00	6,050.50	6,354.00	6,667.00	6,893.00	7,130.50	7,393.50	7,613.00	7,879.00
F3P	ANNUAL	64,200	67,812	71,232	74,700	78,438	82,314	85,098	88,038	91,278	93,990	97,278
	MONTHL Y	5.350.00	5,651.00	5.936.00	6.225.00	6,536.50	6,859.50	7,091.50	7,336.50	7,606.50	7,832.50	8,106.50
F3A	ANNUAL	61,164	64,632	67.896	71,196	74,754	78,492	81,114	83.970	87,018	89,562	92,694
	MONTHL Y	5,097.00	5,386.00	5,658.00	5,933.00	6,229.50	6,541.00	6,759.50	6.997.50	7,251.50	7,463.50	7,724.50
F3AB	ANNUAL	63,612	67,218	70,614	74,034	77,748	81,624	84,372	87,330	90,504	93,138	96,396
	MONTHL Y	5.301.00	5,601.50	5,884.50	6,169.50	6,479.00	6,802.00	7,031.00	7,277.50	7,542.00	7,761.50	8,033.00
F3AP	ANNUAL	65,442	69,156	72,642	76,182	79,992	83,982	86,796	89,850	93,108	95.832	99,180
	MONTHL Y	. 5,453.50	5,763.00	6,053.50	6.348.50	6,666.00	6,998.50	7,233.00	7,487.50	7,759.00	7,986.00	8,265.00
F4	ANNUAL	68,298	71,688	75,336	79,158	83,046	87,174	90,060	92,886	95,868	98.970	101.940
	MONTHL Y	5,691.50	5,974.00	6,278.00	6,596.50	6,920.50	7,264.50	7,505.00	7,740.50	7,989.00	8,247.50	8,495.00

File #: O2011-12,	Version: 1
-------------------	------------

E4D	ANNU 1A1 74 004	74.550	70.040	00 000	00.070	00.054	00.000	00 000 00 700	400.000	400.000
F4B	ANNUAL 71,034	74,556	78,348	82,320	86,376	90,654	93,666	96,606 99,708	102,936	106,020
	MONTHL 5,919.50	6,213.00	6,529.00	6,860.00	7,198.00	7,554.50	7,805.50	8,050.50 8,309.00	8,578.00	8,835.00
F4P	ANNUAL 73,086	76,704	80,610	84,696	88,866	93,276	96,366	99,384 102,576	105,900	109,074
	MONTHL 6,090.50	6,392.00	6,717.50	7,058.00	7.405.50	7,773.00	8.030.50	8,282.00 8,548.00	8,825.00	9,089.50
F5	ANNUAL 77,274	81,096	85,092	89,376	93,804	98,562	101,538	104,664 107.B38	111,144	113,940
	MONTHL 6,439,50	6.75B.00	7.091.00	7,448.00	7,817.00	8,213.50	8,461.50	8,722.00 8,986.50	9,262.00	9,495.00
F5B	ANNUAL 80,358	84,342	88,494	92,958	97,554	102,504	105,606	108,858 112,164	115,590	118,500
	MONTHL 6,696.50 Y	7,028.50	7,374.50	7,746.50	8,129.50	8,542.00	8,800.50	9,071.50 9,347.00	9,632.50	9,875.00
F5P	ANNUAL 82,686	86,778	91.050	95,640	100.374	105,468	108,648	111,996 115,392	118,926	121,920
	MONTHL 6,890.50	7,231.50	7,587.50	7,970.00	8,364.50	8,789.00	9,054.00	9,333.00 9,616.00	9,910.50	10.160.00
F6	ANNUAL 85,092	89,376	93,804	98,562	103,434	108,522	111,630	114,786 117,966	121,482	123,942
	MONTHL 7,091.00 Y	7,448.00	7,817.00	8,213.50	8,619.50	9,043.50	9,302.50	9,565.50 9,830.50	10,123.50	10,328.50
F6B	ANNUAL 88,494	92,958	97.554	102,504	107,580	112,866	116,094	119,382 122,688	126,336	128,892
	MONTHL 7,374.50 Y	7,746.50	8,129.50	8.542.00	8,965.00	9,405.50	9,674.50	9,948,50 10,224.00	10,528.00	10,741.00
F6P	ANNUAL 91,050	95,640	100,374	105,468	110,682	116,118	119,442	122,826 126,228	129,990	132,612
	MONTHL 7,587.50 Y	7,970.00	8,364.50	8,789.00	9,223.50	9,676.50	9,953.50	10,235.5 10,519.00 0	10,832.50	11,051.00

## Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions

Effective January 1, 2010

CO GO		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
CLASS GRAD E		FIRST 12 MONTHS		AFTER 1B MONTHS	AFTER 30 MONTHS	AFTER 42 MONTHS		AFTER 10 YRS OF SERVICE	15 YRS	AFTER 20 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 25 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006
F1	ANNUAL	49,014	59,724	63,114	66,378	69,648	73,164	75,726	78,360	81,516	84,762	87,732
	MONTHL	4,084.50	4,977.00	5,259.50	5,531.50	5,804.00	6,097.00	6,310.50	6,530.00	6.793.00	7,063.50	7,311.00
F1B	ANNUAL	50,970	62,124	65,640	69,024	72,438	76,086	78,750	81,492	84,768	88,146	91,248
		4,247.50	5,177.00	5,470.00	5,752.00	6,036.50	6,340.50	6.562.50	6,791.00	7,064.00	7,345.50	7,604.00
F2	Y ANNUAL	60,780	63,900	67,536	71,022	74,526	78,276	81,024	83,838	87,216	90,696	93,876
	MONTHL	. 5,065.00	5,325.00	5,628.00	5,918.50	6,210.50	6,523.00	6,752.00	6,986.50	7,268.00	7,558.00	7,823.00
F3	ANNUAL	60,594	64,008	67,242	70,506	74,046	77,694	80,334	83,100	86,166	88,716	91,824
	MONTHL Y	5,049.50	5,334.00	5,603.50	5,875.50	6,170.50	6,474.50	6,694.50	6,925.00	7,180.50	7,393.00	7,652.00
F3B	ANNUAL	63,018	66,564	69,918	73,332	77,010	80,802	83,544	86,424	89,610	92,268	95,496
	MONTHL Y	. 5,251.50	5,547.00	5,826.50	6,111.00	6,417.50	6,733.50	6,962.00	7,202.00	7,467.50	7,689.00	7,958.00
F3P	ANNUAL	64,842	68,490	71,946	75,450	79,224	83,136	85,950	88,920	92,190	94,932	98,250
	MONTHL Y	. 5,403.50	5,707.50	5,995.50	6,287.50	6,602.00	6,928.00	7,162.50	7,410.00	7,682.50	7,911.00	8,187.50
F3A	ANNUAL	61,776	65,280	68,574	71,910	75,504	79,278	81,924	84,810	87,888	90,456	93,618
	MONTHL Y	. 5,148.00	5,440.00	5,714.50	5,992.50	6,292.00	6,606.50	6,827.00	7,067.50	7.324.00	7,538.00	7,801.50
F3AB	ANNUAL	64,248	67,890	71,322	74,772	78,528	82,440	85,218	88,206	91,410	94,068	97,362
	MONTHL Y	5,354.00	5,657.50	5,943.50	6,231.00	6,544.00	6,870.00	7,101.50	7,350.50	7,617.50	7,839.00	8,113.50
F3AP	Y ANNUAL	66,096	69,846	73,368	76,944	80,790	84,822	87,666	90,750	94,038	96,792	100,170
	MONTHL Y	. 5,508.00	5,820.50	6,114.00	6,412.00	6,732.50	7,068.50	7,305.50	7,562.50	7,836.50	8,066.00	8,347.50

File #	#: O2011-12, <b>Ve</b> i	sion: 1									
F4	ANNUAL 68.982 MONTHL 5,748.50 Y	72,402 6,033.50	76,092 6,341.00	79,950 6,662.50	83,874 6,989.50	88,044 7.337.00	90,960 7.580.00	93,816 96,828 7,818.00 8,069.00	99,960 8,330.00	102,960 8,580.00	
F4B	ANNUAL 71,742 MONTHL 5,978.50	75,300 6,275.00	79,134 6,594.50	83,142 6,928.50	87,240 7,270.00	91,560 7,630.00	94,602 7,883.50	97.572 100,704 8,131.00 8,392.00	103,968 8,664.00	107,082 8,923.50	
F4P	Y ANNUAL 73,818 MONTHL 6,151.50	77,472 6,456.00	81,414 6,784.50	85,542 7,128.50	89,754 7,479.50	94,206 7,850.50	97,332 8,111.00	100,380 103,602 8,365.00 8,633.50	106,962 8,913.50	110,166 9,180.50	
F5	Y ANNUAL 78,048 MONTHL 6,504.00	81,906 6,825.50	85.944 7,162.00	90,270 7,522.50	94,740 7,895.00	99,546 6,295.50	102,552 8,546.00	105,708 108,918 8,809.00 9,076.50	112,254 9,354.50	115,080 9,590.00	
F5B	Y ANNUAL 81,162 MONTHL 6,763.50	85,188 7,099.00	89,376 7,448.00	93,888 7,824.00	98,532 8,211.00	103,530 8,627.50	106,662 8,888.50	109,944 113,286 9,162.00 9,440.50	116,748 9,729.00	119,688 9,974.00	
F5P	Y ANNUAL 83,514 MONTHL 6,959.50	87,648 7,304.00	91,962 7,663.50	96,594 8,049.50	101,376 8,448.00	106,524 8,877.00	109,734 9,144.50	113,118 116,544 9,426.50 9,712.00	120,114 10,009.50	123,138	
F6	Y ANNUAL 85,944 MONTHL 7,162.00	90,270 7,522.50	94,740 7,895.00	99,546 8,295.50	104,466 8,705.50	109,608 9,134.00	112,746 9,395.50	115,932 119,148 9,661.00 9,929.00	122,694 10,224.50	125,184	
F6B	Y ANNUAL 89,376	93,888	98,532	103,530	108,654	113,994	117,252	120,576 123,912	127,602	130,182	
F6P	MONTHL 7,448.00 Y ANNUAL 91,962	7,824.00 96,594	8,211.00 101,376	8,627.50 106,524	9,054.50	9,499.50	9,771.00	10,048.0 10,326.00 0 124,056 127,488	131,292	133,938	
	MONTHL 7,663.50 8,049.50 8,448.00 8,877.00 9,315.50 9,773.50 10,053.00 10,338.0 10,624.00 10,941.00 11.161.50 0  Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions										
•	ctive January		STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8 STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11	
CLASS GRAD E			AFTER 18 MONTHS				AFTER 10 YRS OF SERVICE	15 YRS YRS OF OF SERVICE SERVIC	AFTER 25 YRS OF SERVICE	AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006	
F1	ANNUAL 49,992	60,918	64,374	67,704	71,040	74,628	77,238	E 79,926 83,148	86,460	89,484	
	MONTHL 4,166.00 Y	5,076.50	5,364.50	5,642.00	5,920.00	6,219.00	6.436.50	6,660.50 6,929.00	7,205.00	7,457.00	
F1B	ANNUAL 52,500 MONTHL 4,375.00	63,990 5,332.50	67,608 5,634.00	71,094 5,924.50	74,610 6,217.50	78,366 6,530.50	81,114 6,759.50	83,934 87,312 6,994.50 7,276.00	90,792 7,566.00	93,984 7,832.00	
F2	Y ANNUAL 62,298 MONTHL 5,191.50	65,496 5,458.00	69,222 5,768.50	72,798 6,066.50	76,392 6,366.00	80,232 6,686.00	83,052 6,921.00	85,932 89.394 7,161.00 7,449.50	92,964 7,747.00	96,222 8,018.50	
F3	Y ANNUAL 61,806 MONTHL 5,150.50	65,286 5,440.50	68,586 5.715.50	71,916 5,993.00	75,528 6,294.00	79,248 6,604.00	81,942 6,828.50	84,762 87,888 7,063.50 7,324.00	90,492 7,541.00	93,660 7.805.00	
F3B	Y ANNUAL 64,908 MONTHL 5,409.00	68,562 5.713.50	72,018 6,001.50	75,534 6,294.50	79,320 6,610.00	83,226 6,935.50	86,052 7,171.00	89,016 92,298 7,418.00 7,691.50	95,034 7,919.50	98.358 8,196.50	
F3P	Y ANNUAL 66,462 MONTHL 5,538.50	70,200 5,850.00	73.746 6,145.50	77,334 6,444.50	81,204 6,767.00	85,212 7,101.00	88,098 7,341.50	91,146 94,494 7,595.50 7,874.50	97,308 8,109.00	100,704 8,392.00	
FSA	Y ANNUAL 63,012 MONTHL 5.251.00	66,588 5,549.00	69,948 5,829.00	73,350 6,112.50	77,016 6,418.00	80,862 6,738.50	83,562 6,963.50	86,508 89,646 7,209.00 7,470.50	92.26B 7,689.00	95,490 7,957.50	
F3AB	Y ANNUAL 66,174 MONTHL 5,514.50 Y	69,924 5,827.00	73,464 6,122.00	77,016 6,418.00	80.8B6 6,740.50	84,912 7,076.00	87.774 7,314.50	90.852 94,152 7,571.00 7,846.00	96,888 8,074.00	100,284 8,357.00	

82,812

86,940

89,856

93,018 96,390

78,870

75,204

F3AP ANNUAL 67,746

71,592

102,672

99,210

File #	t: O20	11-12.	Version:	1
--------	--------	--------	----------	---

	MONTHL 5,645.50 Y	5,966.00	6,267.00	6,572.50	6,901.00	7,245.00	7,488.00	7,751.50	8,032.50	8,267.50	8,556.00
F4	ANNUAL 70,362	73,848	77,616	81,552	85,554	89,802	92,778	95,694	98,766	101,958	105,018
	MONTHL 5,863.50 Y	6,154.00	6,468.00	6,796.00	7,129.50	7,483.50	7,731.50	7,974.50	8,230.50	8,496.50	8,751.50
F4B	ANNUAL 73,896	77,562	81,510	85,638	89,856	94,308	97,440	100,500	103,728	107,088	110,292
	MONTHL 6,156.00 Y	6,463.50	6,792.50	7,136.50	7,488.00	7,859.00	8,120.00	8,375.00	8,644.00	8,924.00	9,191.00
F4P	ANNUAL 75,666	79,410	83,448	87,678	91,998	96,564	99,768	102,888	106,194	109,638	112,920
	MONTHL 6,305.50 Y	6,617.50	6,954.00	7,306.50	7,666.50	8,047.00	8,314.00	8,574.00	8,849.50	9,136.50	9,410.00
F5	ANNUAL 79,608	83,544	87,660	92,076	96,636	101,538	104,604	107,820	111,096	114,498	117,384
	MONTHL 6,634.00 Y	6,962.00	7,305.00	7,673.00	8,053.00	8,461.50	8,717.00	8,985.00	9,258.00	9,541.50	9,782.00
F5B	ANNUAL 83,598	87,744	92,058	96,702	101,490	106,638	109,860	113,244	116,682	120,252	123,276
	MONTHL 6,968.50 Y	7,312.00	7,671.50	8,058.50	8,457.50	8,886.50	9,155.00	9,437.00	9,723.50	10,021.00	10,273.00
F5P	ANNUAL 85,602	89,838	94,260	99,006	103,908	109,188	112,476	115,944	119,460	123,114	126,216
	MONTHL 7,133.50 Y	7,486.50	7,855.00	8,250.50	8,659.00	9,099.00	9,373.00	9,662.00	9,955.00	10,259.50	10,518.00
F6	ANNUAL 87,660	92,076	96,636	101,538	106,554	111,798	115,002	118,248	121,530	125,148	127,686
	MONTHL 7,305.00 Y	7,673.00	8,053.00	8,461.50	8,879.50	9,316.50	9,583.50	9,854.00	10,127.50	10,429.00	10,640.50
F6B	ANNUAL 92,058	96,702	101,490	106,638	111,912	117,414	120,768	124,194	127,632	131,430	134,088
	MONTHL 7,671.50 Y	8,058.50	8,457.50	8,886.50	9,326.00	9,784.50	10,064.00	10,349.5 0	10,636.00	10,952.50	11,174.00
F6P	ANNUAL 94,260	99,006	103,908	109,188	114,582	120,216	123,654	127.158	130,674	134,574	137,286
	MONTHL 7,855.00 Y	8,250.50	8,659.00	9,099.00	9,548.50	10,018.00	10,304.50	10,596.5 0	10,889.50	11,214.50	11,440.50

# Salary Schedule for Uniformed Fire Department Positions

— rr 1.		4 0040
Effective J	ianiiani i	1. 2012
1 11561175	jai illai v	

LIIEC	nive Ja	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
CLASS GRAD E	<b>;</b>	FIRST 12 MONTHS			AFTER 30 MONTHS	AFTER 42 MONTHS		AFTER 10 YRS OF SERVICE		AFTER 20 YRS OF SERVICE		AFTER 30 YRS SVC BEFORE 1/1/2006
F1	ANNUAL	50,490	61,530	65,016	68,382	71,748	75,372	78,012	80,724	83,982	87,324	90,378
	MONTHL	4,207.50	5,127.50	5,418.00	5,698.50	5,979.00	6,281.00	6,501.00	6,727.00	6,998.50	7,277.00	7,531.50
F1B	ANNUAL	53,028	64,632	68,286	71,802	75,354	79,152	81,924	84,774	88,188	91,698	94,926
	MONTHL	4,419.00	5,386.00	5,690.50	5,983.50	6,279.50	6,596.00	6,827.00	7,064.50	7,349.00	7,641.50	7,910.50
F2	ANNUAL	62,922	66,150	69,912	73,524	77,154	81,036	83,880	86,790	90,288	93,894	97,182
	MONTHL Y	5,243.50	5,512.50	5,826.00	6,127.00	6,429.50	6,753.00	6,990.00	7,232.50	7,524.00	7,824.50	8,098.50
F3	ANNUAL	62,424	65,940	69,270	72,636	76,284	80,040	82,764	85,608	88,764	91,398	94,596
	MONTHL Y	5,202.00	5,495.00	5,772.50	6,053.00	6,357.00	6,670.00	6,897.00	7,134.00	7,397.00	7,616.50	7,883.00
F3B	ANNUAL	65,556	69,246	72,738	76,290	80,112	84,060	86,910	89,904	93,222	95,982	99,342
	MONTHL Y	5,463.00	5,770.50	6,061.50	6,357.50	6,676.00	7,005.00	7,242.50	7,492.00	7,768.50	7,998.50	8,278.50
F3P	ANNUAL	67,128	70,902	74,484	78,108	82,014	86,064	88,980	92,058	95,436	98,280	101,712
	MONTHL	5,594.00	5,908.50	6,207.00	6,509.00	6,834.50	7,172.00	7,415.00	7,671.50	7,953.00	8,190.00	8,476.00
F3A	ANNUAL	63,642	67,254	70,650	74,082	77,784	81,672	84,396	87,372	90,540	93,192	96,444
	MONTHL Y	5,303.50	5,604.50	5,887.50	6,173.50	6,482.00	6,806.00	7,033.00	7,281.00	7,545.00	7,766.00	8,037.00
F3AB	ANNUAL	66,834	70,626	74,196	77,784	81,696	85,764	88,650	91,758	95,094	97,854	101,286
	MONTHL Y	5,569.50	5,885.50	6,183.00	6,482.00	6,808.00	7,147.00	7,387.50	7,646.50	7,924.50	8,154.50	8,440.50

File #	#: O2011-12, <b>Vers</b>	sion: 1								
F3AP	ANNUAL 68,424	72,306	75,954	79,656	83,640	87,810	90,756	93,948 97,356	100,200	103,698
	MONTHL 5,702.00	6,025.50	6,329.50	6,638.00	6,970.00	7,317.50	7,563.00	7,829.00 8,113.00	8,350.00	8,641.50
F4	ANNUAL 71,064	74,586	78,390	82,368	86,412	90,702	93,708	96,648 99,756	102,978	106,068
	MONTHL 5,922.00 Y	6,215.50	6,532.50	6,864.00	7,201.00	7,558.50	7,809.00	8,054.00 8,313.00	8,581.50	8,839.00
F4B	ANNUAL 74,634	78,336	82,326	86,496	90,756	95,250	98,412	101,508 104,766	108,156	111,396
	MONTHL 6,219.50	6,528.00	6,860.50	7,208.00	7,563.00	7,937.50	8,201.00	8,459.00 8,730.50	9,013.00	9,283.00
F4P	ANNUAL 76,422	80,202	84,282	88,554	92,916	97,530	100,764	103,914 107,256	110,736	114,048
	MONTHL 6,368.50 Y	6,683.50	7,023.50	7,379.50	7,743.00	8,127.50	8,397.00	8,659.50 8,938.00	9,228.00	9,504.00
F5	ANNUAL 80,406	84,378	88,536	92,994	97,602	102,552	105,648	108,900 112,206	115,644	118,560
	MONTHL 6,700.50 Y	7,031.50	7,378.00	7,749.50	8,133.50	8,546.00	8,804.00	9,075.00 9,350.50	9,637.00	9,880.00
F5B	ANNUAL 84,432	88,620	92,976	97,668	102,504	107,706	110,958	114,378 117,846	121,452	124,506
	MONTHL 7,036.00 Y	7,385.00	7,748.00	8,139.00	8,542.00	8,975.50	9,246.50	9,531.50 9,820.50	10,121.00	10,375.50
F5P	ANNUAL 86,460	90,738	95,202	99,996	104,946	110,280	113,598	117,102 120,654	124,344	127,476
	MONTHL 7,205.00 Y	7,561.50	7,933.50	8,333.00	8,745.50	9,190.00	9,466.50	9,758.50 10,054.50	10,362.00	10,623.00
F6	ANNUAL 88,536	92,994	97,602	102,552	107,622	112,914	116,154	119,430 122,748	126,402	128,964
	MONTHL 7,378.00 Y	7,749.50	8,133.50	8,546.00	8,968.50	9,409.50	9,679.50	9,952.50 10,229.00	10,533.50	10,747.00
F6B	ANNUAL 92,976	97,668	102,504	107,706	113,034	118,590	121,974	125,436 128,910	132,744	135,426
	MONTHL 7,748.00 Y	8,139.00	8,542.00	8,975.50	9,419.50	9,882.50	10,164.50	10,453.0 10,742.50 0	11,062.00	11,285.50
F6P	ANNUAL 95.202	99.996	104.946	110.280	115.728	121.416	124.890	128.430 131.982	135.918	138.660

#### **Notes:**

MONTHL 7,933.50

96

#### **Appendix G- Equal Opportunity**

Section 1 - Compliance with Court Settlements and Decrees

8,745.50 9,190.00 9,644.00

8,333.00

The City of Chicago will immediately take all action necessary to assure compliance with agreements reached and decrees issued in court proceedings affecting hiring, promotion and other employment policies of the Fire Department In addition, to the extent not specifically required by, and not inconsistent with, such agreements or decrees, and to the fullest extent consistent with applicable law, the Department will implement the policies and programs set forth in the following paragraphs.

10,118.00 10,407.50 10,702.5 10,998.50

Section 2 - Hiring and Recruitment

A. Goals

The parties agree that hiring and recruitment programs of the Fire Department shall have as a goal to achieve in the shortest possible time a total force in which approximately thrrty percent shall be Black and fifteen percent Hispanic. To this end, the hiring and recruitment programs should aim to assure that at least 45% of all recruits added to the force hereafter shall consist of Blacks and Hispanics. Within 90 days of the effective date of this Agreement the City will publish the initial steps it plans to take to remove all racial inequalities in the Chicago Fire Department.

#### B. Programs

In addition to such other recruiting procedures and programs as the Fire Department may use, the Department will actively advertise for recruits in communities primarily populated by Black and Hispanic residents and will seek the aid of and will cooperate with church and community organizations in such areas.

Section 3 - Transfers and Promotions

A. Goal

The parties agree that the transfer and promotion policies of the Fire Department shall have, as a goal, the

11,326.50 11,555.00

inclusion of Black and Hispanic personnel in all categories and all ranks in order to reach as quickly as is reasonably possible a level as close to 45% as is reasonably achievable.

#### B. Programs

1.Training

All members of the force shall be given the training and special educational opportunity necessary to qualify them for promotion. This shall include in service training and educational programs as well as opportunity for attendance at

97

educational institutions, where necessary with adequate arrangements for paid time to permit the individual to participate in such programs.

#### 2. Equality of Opportunity

Promotional and transfer opportunities shall be made available to all qualified members of the force. Examinations, where used, and any other standards and descriptions of required qualifications, shall be reviewed and any elements which have the effect of discrimination against Blacks or Hispanics shall be eUrrnnated. The Department will take all reasonable steps, by posting and other means, to encourage Black and Hispanic members of the force and applicants for employment to apply for positions for which they show potential or desire, and are, or can within a reasonable time, become qualified.

#### 3. Remedying Past Discrimination

There shall be an immediate review of the status of all Black and Hispanic firefighters in order to determine those whose time in grade would make them eligible for promotion had not discriminatory practices existed in the past. Within 90 days of each anniversary date of the signing of this contract, the Department shall review the status of all Black and Hispanic members of the force and prepare a written report stating whether there is any reason other than past racial discrimination for the failure of such individual to achieve promotion, and, if so, the facts supporting the conclusion. Where it is found that there is a reason for non-promotion which can be remedied by appropriate training or educational opportunity, special arrangements shall be offered to enable such individual to have the necessary training or educational opportunity. Where no reason other than past discrimination is found for non-promotion of such individuals, preference will be given for the next promotion or promotions available. Where promotions are made on the basis of examination, such past discrimination shall be remedied by giving, in the case of those who achieve a passing grade in such examinations and otherwise qualified, preference over other candidates for promotion with equal or lesser length of service. a. Establish of Responsibility for Implementation. The City shall assign a special Department Affirmative Action Officer to assure implementation of the Chicago Fire Department Affirmative Action Plan. The Affirmative Action Officer shall be of equivalent rank as an Assistant Corrmissioner. It is within the Officer's scope of duties to assign responsibilities for the implementation of the plan on an intra departmental basis to assure that it is carried out in every phase of Department operations. The Officer will report to the Mayor, initially on a bi-monthly basis for six months, thereafter monthly. The Officer is mandated from time to lime to make "on the spot audits" of the effectiveness of the Affirmative Action Plan and shall recommend remedial and corrective action where such is needed. This Officer will serve as a liaison between the City of Chicago and the

#### 98

Community Advisory Board of the Chicago Fire Department, apprising that body of the progress of the Affirmative Action Plan through periodic reports of areas which need attention and corrective action. b. Agreement Prohibits Sex. Discrimination. Opportunities within the Department and at all promotional levels shall be available to persons, regardless of sex and the same provisions herein recommended shall be applicable for female candidates witfrin the Department-Section 4 - Community Advisory Board

#### A. Composition

The City of Chicago shall invite each of a reasonable number of community and church organizations representing a broad segment of the Black, Hispanic, Native American and Asian communities to designate a representative to serve on a Fire Department Community Advisory Board which shall have a total of eleven members. The Board shall include at least four (4) representatives named by organizations identified with the Black communities of Chicago and at least two (2) named by organizations identified with the Hispanic communities of Chicago and two (2) named by Local 2 of the International Association of Fire Fighters.

#### B. Duties and Powers

The Community Advisory Board shall have the duty of monitoring the progress of the Fire Department in the

implementation of this afrixmative action section of this contract, reporting the facts with respect to such progress to the public and to the parties of this contract, and making suggestions for more effective implementation. The Department agrees to make a Progress Report to the Board at least once a year, containing full data as to the nature of the recritment, fiiring, transfer and promotion programs in effect, the progress made during the year toward achievement of the goals described herein, the number and percentage of Blacks and Hispanics hired, transferred or promoted during the year, and the number, percentage and geographical distribution of Blacks and Hispanic holding positions in each category and rank. Copies of written examinations will be made available to the Board for review and for such recommendations as the Board may make for modifications to ehminate or prevent discriminatory impact. The Department will cooperate with the Board by making available such other information, records and statistics as the Board may reasonably request for performance of its duties. The Department will also make available such facilities as may be needed for performance of the Board's functions; including meeting room, secretarial assistance, office supplies and assistance of research, technical assistance specialists and other personnel.

#### 99

#### **EXHIBIT 1: CITY OF CHICAGO HEALTH PLAN**

Benefit	PPO <sup>1</sup>	PPO w/HRA	ELMO
HRA (single/family)	N/A	\$500/\$ 1,000	N/A
Co-Insurance (in/out of network)	90%/60%	90%/60%	N/A
In-Network Deductible	\$300 per person (eff. 1/1/06) S350 per person (1/1/07) max of three per family	51,000 person \$2,000 family	N/A
Out-of-Network Deductible	\$1,500 per person max of three per family	\$3,500 per person max of three per family	Only available in emergencies.
In-Network OPX	\$1,500 per person \$3000 pe family (includes deductible)		
Out-of-Nerwork OPX	\$3500 per person \$7000 per family	\$11,500 per person \$34,000 per family	Only available in emergencies.
ER Co-Payment	\$100, waived if admitted	\$100, waived if admitted	\$100, waived if admitted
Office Visit Co-Payment	90%/60%	90%/60%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)
Pediatric Immunization	See Wellness Benefit	See Wellness Benefit	Covered <sup>1</sup>
Pap Smear/Routine Gynecology	See Wellness Benefit	See Wellness Benefit	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)
Mammograms	See Wellness Benefit	See Wellness Benefit	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)
Outpatient Surgery Deductible	90%/60%	90%/60%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)
Admission Deductible	90%/60%	90%/60%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)
D did di DDO: 1	0 4 6 40 4 6	1 . 0 . 11 . 1 . 1 . 1	1 1 5 6 1 1

Participation in the PPO is mandatory for the first 18 months of employment for all newly-hired employees. Benefits listed as "covered" under the HMO arc not subject to a co-payment unless otherwise indicated.

Benefit	$PPO^1$	PPO w/BDRA	НМО
Outpatient Laboratory	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered
Outpatient Radiology	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered
Physical, Speech, & Occupational Therapy	90%/60% Restoration Only	7 90°/ <sub>0</sub> /60% Restoration Or	al 60 Combined Visits per Calendar Year
Cardiac Rehabilitation	90%/60% Cardiac Rehabili	ta90%/60% Cardiac Rehab	iliCovered
	Administrator (12 weeks or	Administrator (12 weeks	or

Pulmonary Rehabilitation90%/60%90%/60%CoveredRespiratory Therapy90%/60%90%/60%Covered

File #: O2011-12, Version: 1							
Restorative Services and Chiropractic	90%/60	% Chiropractic C	Care 90%/60% C	hiropractic Ca	rCovered, I	Requires Referral	from Prim
Care Chemotherapy, Radiation and Dialysis	90%/60	0/0	90%/60%		Covered		
Outpatient Private Duty Nursing	90%/60		90%/60%			Lequires HMO Ap	proval
Skilled Nursing Care	. 90%/6		90°/o/60%			Up to 120 Days pe	=
Hospice and Home Health Care	90%/60		90%/60%		Covered	5p to 120 Buys p	or Curendu
DME and Prosthetics	90%/60		90%/60%		Covered		
Outpatient Diabetic Education		% 2 Visits Per Li		Visits Per Life			
Routine Foot Care	Not Cov		Not Covered		Not Cover	ed	
Fertility Treatment	90%/60		90%/60%	•		according to HM0	) guideling
Benefit	2070/00	PPO <sup>1</sup>		O w/HRA	11vanaore	HMO	Suracini
Mental Illness and Substance Abuse Ca	re	Inpatient: 90%/ \$5,000 Per Yea	60% Outpatient r Mental Health	: 80% of S and Substanc	e Abuse Ma	ov.Co-Pays for Inp ax \$20.00 Co-Pay Outpatient: 30	i[eff. 1/1/07) visits/year
Hearing Exams and Aids		· ·	C	aring Screening	ng Covered i	in Screening: Cov	
Lifetime Limits		\$1.5 Million Li				No Lifetime Li	
Wellness Benefit  Prescription Drug Co-Payments Retail		immunizations is "Not Subject	(3) mammograto Plan Deducti	ms, and (4) visble	sion exams,	vitAvailable acco le Formulary Tier 2	
Benefit	PPO <sup>1</sup>		w/HRA	НМО		J	
Prescription Drug Co-Payments Mail- Order (Mandatory Mail Order for Maintenance Drugs)	& Gene				•		
Dental Plan		n Current PPO aı		_	=	and Deductibles	
Vision Plan		Benefits Included		ss Benefit and	HMOs		
Flexible Spending Account		xible Spending A					
Disease Management Program		sease Managemen	nt Program				
Exhibit 2: City of Chicago Dental P							
1 Benefit Design		tal HMO Plan (1 el Dentists)	Must Use	Dental Pl	PO Plan In	Network	Ou
Individual Deductible	\$0			\$100 Dor	Dargan Da	er \\$200 Per Per	an Dan V
marviduai Deductible	\$0			(eff. 1/1/0		(eff. 1/1/06)	son, rei i
Annual Maximum Benefit Orthodontic Procedures (Braces)	Unli	mited		£1200 Pe		(611. 1/1/00)	
Braces - Under Age 25 Only Preventative Services	\$230	00 Co-Payment		Not Cove	ered		
Oral Exams (Twice a Year) Cleanings (Twice a Year) X- Rays (Twice a Year) Space Maintainers (Children Under 12)		% Covered in Fi ment (eff. 1/1/0			le \$10 Co-	ull Plan Pays 80 PayAllowable An Pays Balance Charges. No	mount. M of Billed
,	ments (	Member Pays)					
Amalgam (Fillings) - One Surface Permanent	\$18.	\$18.53 (1/1/06) \$20.20 (1/1/07)			Plan Pays 60% of PPOPlan Pays 50% of PPO Allowable. Member P:Allowable Amount. M 40% of PPO Allowabl Pays Balance of Billed Deductible. Charges After Deducti		
Resin - One Surface Anterior Including Acid Etch	521. <sup>3</sup> (1/1/	80(1/1/06) 523. (07)	76	Dedden0.		Charges / Hite	. Deducti

\_

Pin Retention (per tooth) in \$28.34(1/1/06) \$30,89

addition to restoration (1/1/07)

Routine Extraction Single \$21.80 (1/1/06) \$23.76

Tooth (1/1/07)

Dental HMO Plan (Must Use Panel DDental PPO Plan In Network

Surgical Removal of Erupted Tooth \$41.42 (1/1/06) \$45.15 (1/1/07) Plan Pays 60% of PPOPlan Pays 50% of PPO PPO Allowable After IBalance of Billed Char

Surgical Removal of Tooth - Soft Tissu\$53.41 (1/1/06) \$58.22 (171/07) Surgical Removal of Tooth - Partial Bo\$76.30 (1/1/06) \$83.17 (1/1/07) 1 Surgical Removal of Tooth -Compl\$76.30 (1/1/06) \$83.17 (1/1/07) Alveoloplasty - Without Extractions - P\$88.29 (1/1/06) \$96.24 (1/1/07)

Scaling and Root Planning - Per Quadra\$41,42 (1/1/06) \$45.15 (1/1/07)

Anesthesia

Gingivectomy or Gingivoplasty -Per Qu\$167.86(1/1/06) \$182.97 (1/1/07) Gingival Flap Procedure Including Roo\$160.23 (1/1/06) \$174.65 (1/1/07) ! Osseous Surgery, Flap Entry and Clo\$186.39 (1/1/06) \$203.17 (1/1/07) Pulp Capping - Direct or Indirect \$14.17(1/1/06) \$15.45 (1/1/07)

Root Canal Therapy Anterior Bicuspid (1/1/06) (1/1/07) \$136.25 \$148.51 \$148.51

\$197.29 \$215.05

Apicoectomy (First Root) \$126.44 (1/1/06) \$137.82 (1/1/07)
Palliative Treatment \$15.26(1/1/06) \$16.63 (1/1/07)
Limited Occlusion Adjustment \$23.98 (1/1/06) \$26.14(1/1/07)

Dental HMO Plan (Must Use Panel DeDental PPO Plan In Network Out of Ne

Major Restorative Procedures

Inlay - Metallic (On\$252.88 (1/1/06) 5275.64 (1/1/07)

Plan Pays 60% of PPO Allow:Plan Pays 50% of PPO PPO Allowable After DeductiBalance of Billed Char

Onlay - Metallic (TI\$342.26 (1/1/06) \$373.06 (1/1/07) Surfaces)

Core Buildup Inclu\$101.37(1/1/06) \$11049(1/1/07)

1 Temporary Crowr\$68.67 (1/1/06) \$74.85 (1/1/07)

Fractured Tooth (no Conjunction with Pe

Tooth)

1 Crown - \$353.16 (1/1/06) \$384.94 (1/1/07)

Porcelain/Ceramic §

1 Crown - Full Ca\$361.88(1/1/06) \$394.45 (1/i/07)

Metal

Denture - Complete\$444.72 (1/1/06) \$484.74 (1/1/07)

Lower

Lower Denture Reli\$135.16 (1/1/06) \$147.32 (1/1/06)

Chairside

Exhibit 3

The City of Chicago Medical Care Plan for Employees ("Plan") shall consist of three coverage plans: (1) a PPO plan ("PPO"); (2) a PPO Plan with a Health Reimbursement Account ("PPO/HRA"); and (3) two HMO plans ("HMO").

#### 1. Modifications to PPO/HRA Plan Alternative

If the PPO/HRA alternative lacks sufficient employee enrollment or is cost prohibitive, the Employer may discontinue that alternative, provided that the Employer provides reasonable prior notice to the Union and an opportunity for those enrolled in the PPO/HRA to enroll in another plan. For this purpose, "reasonable notice" shall be defined as notification in

Our

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Note: This comparison provides only the highlights of the program. Specific details are contained in the plan document booklet, and any plan provisions, the terms of the actual Plan Documents or other applicable documents will govern in all cases. If a conflict arises between this material

writing of the Employer's intent to discontinue the plan at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed discontinuation where circumstances are within the City's control. In all other cases, the City will provide the maximum notice as is practicable under the circumstances. In addition, in the event that a new health care plan becomes available to the City during a Plan year, the Employer shall have the right to include that hew plan in the Plan alternatives upon reasonable prior notice to and discussion with the Union.

#### 2. Plan Design

- (a) Network Plans:
- (i) The deductibles, co-insurance and out-of-pocket maximums for the PPO Plan and PPO/HRA Plan are set forth in Exhibit I hereto.
- (ii) No change in the composition of the hospital network in effect at the time this Agreement is executed shall be made except in compliance with the following:
- a. The Union shall be notified in writing of the intent to change at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed change where circumstances are within the City's control. In all other cases, the City will provide the maximum notice as is practicable under the circumstances.
- b. The notice referred to shall, at the time the notice is given, provide sufficient information to explain the contemplated action and shall include, at a niirumum, but not be limited to:
- (1) The affected institutions;
- (2) The precise reason(s) the action is being contemplated;
- (3) The numbers of covered participants (employee and/or dependents) receiving in-patient service from such affected facility at the time the notice is given; and 107
- (4) The number of covered participants (employees and/or

dependents) receiving in-patient service from such affected facility during the preceding twelve (12) months.

c. The City shall meet within seven (7) calendar days of a request from the Union to discuss the proposed change, shall provide all additional relevant information which is reasonably available, and shall be responsible for such notices to participants as may be reasonably demanded by the Union. In the event the parties are unable to resolve a dispute within seven (7) calendar days of the first meeting or such other time as may be mutually agreed upon, the dispute shall be submitted to arbitration pursuant to Section 10.9, Step 3 within ten (10) days, and both parties shall cooperate to expedite the proceedings.

No change, modification or alteration covered by this subparagraph 2(a)(ii) shall be made or permitted for arbitrary or discriminatory reasons; nor shall any change, modification or alteration result in the unavailability of quality health care services in a specific geographic area.

The PPO/HRA Plan shall have an HRA account for each employee, to be administered by a claim administrator or other third-party administrator to be selected by the Employer with prior notice to the Union. The account shall be credited with \$500.00 per individual and \$1000.00 per family per Plan year. Such amounts must be used for "qualified medical expenses," as defined by the Employer.

The PPO and PPO/HRA Plans' wellness benefit with a maximum annual amount of \$600.00 per covered individual shall not be subject to deductibles or co-insurance.

All newly hired employees after Contract ratification shall be required to participate in the PPO plan for the first eighteen (18) months of employment. These employees shall be eligible to participate in the first open enrollment period following the eighteen (18) month anniversary of their dates of hire.

The emergency room co-payment for the PPO, PPO/HRA, and HMO Plans shall be waived in the event the individual is immediately admitted to the hospital.

# The Following are the Letters of Agreement

109

#### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Roberts. Sugarman Stephen 13. Horwitz

On Counsel: Howard H. Anion

September 15, 2010

James C. Frariczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will reconfirm the understanding of the City and Local 2 that all supplemental letter agreements which are in writing, and have been signed or initialed through the course of negotiations, are considered incorporated in and part of the Agreement.

Very truly yours, Robert S. Sugajman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

RSS/jmh 110

091410. lr

1\*1

#### Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors ..... .....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 6060S Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 fraiiczek.com <a href="http://fraiiczek.com">http://fraiiczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@fra.nczek.con <a href="mailto:jcf@fra.nczek.con">mailto:jcf@fra.nczek.con</a>.

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Interest on Retroactivity

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter sets forth the parties' agreement with respect to interest on rettoactivity payments.

Within seventy-five (75) days of ratification of the Agreement by the City Council, the City shall make retroactive payments. In the event retroactive payments are not made within seventy-five (75) days, all persons on the payroll at any rime on or after July 1, 2007 shall be enrided to interest at the rate of four-and-one-half percent (4.5%) per annum until fully paid provided that the failure to make timely retroactive payments is the result of circumstances that are within the control of the City or the Department. Any disputes shall be resolved through the parries' grievance procedure.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

fobert S. Sugarman, AttcJfSey Chicago Fire Fighters dJnion, Local No. 2

JCF:mp

Very truly yours,

es C. Franczek, Jr. ^ 'Labor Counsel City of Chicago

#### 111

472776.1

#### MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHICAGO AND

CHICAGO FIRE FIGHTERS UNION, LOCAL NO. 2 REGARDING RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS ■

The parties agree that the health care benefit provided to employees who retire on or after age sixty (60) pursuant to Section 12. IB of the parties' collective bargaining agreement ("Agreement") shall be extended to employees who retire on or after age fifty-five (55), subject to the following terms and conditions:

A. Applicability

This memorandum of understanding applies only to an employee who retires on or after age fifty-five (55) with a retirement date on or after November 1, 2011, and who intends to avail himself/herself of the health care benefit provided

to employees who retire on or after age sixty (60) by Section 12. IB of the Agreement.

B. Health Care Benefits Upon Retirement

1. Employees Who Retire on or After Age Sixty (60)

Employees who retire on or after age sixty (60) shall continue to receive the health care benefit set forth in Section 12. IB of the Agreement.

2. Employees Who Retire on or After Age Fifty-Five 155) and Before Age Sixty 1601

Employees who retire on or after age fifty-five (55) and before age sixty (60) shall be eligible for the health care benefit set forth in Section 12. IB of the Agreement, subject to strict compliance with the following conditions and limitations:

- a) Employees who wish to avail themselves of this benefit must submit written notice of their intent to retire to the official designated for this purpose by the Department no later than November 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of retirement, except that, for retirements effective between November 1 and December 31 of 2011, such notice must be given no later than March 31, 2011.
- b) The effective date of retirement, as referenced above, may not be any earlier than November 1 of the calendar year following submission of notice of intent to retire (except for retirements occurring in 2011 pursuant to written notice provided on or before March 31, 2011).
- c) Effective for retirements occurring in 2011, a maximum of fifty (50) employees shall be permitted to avail themselves of this benefit, of which

#### 112

102010. Ir

forty-five (45) bargaining unit employees in the Department, except for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) employees, and five (5) bargaining unit EMS employees may apply for this benefit. In the event fewer than forty-five (45) bargaining unit non-EMS employees apply for this benefit, the remaining slots shall be allocated to EMS bargaining unit employees, up to the number of forty-five (45), in addition to the five (5) allotted for EMS employees. The same reallocation principle shall apply in the event fewer than five (5) EMS employees apply. In both cases, no more than fifty (50) employees in total shall be permitted to avail themselves of this benefit.

- d) Effective for retirements occurring in 2012 and thereafter, no more than 150 employees shall be permitted to avail themselves of this benefit in any one calendar year. Of these 150 employees, up to 135 employees may come from non-EMS employees and up to fifteen may come from EMS employees, subject to the same reallocation formula set forth in Paragraph c above, and provided that in no event may more than 150 employees in total be permitted to avail themselves of this benefit.
- e) In the event the number of employees who apply for the benefit in each grouping, i.e.; (i) non-EMS employees, and (ii) EMS employees, exceeds the annual numerical limit for that grouping, then the successful applicants will be determined on the basis of seniority, as defined in Section 9.1A of the Agreement.
- f) The written notice of intent to retire, as described in paragraph 2(a) above, is irrevocable, except that the notice of intent may be revoked by the employee under the following circumstances: (i) non-selection because of insufficient seniority as described in paragraph 2(e) above; (ii) the employee is on Medical Status (as defined by the CFD Medical Order) between the dates the employee submits his/her notice of intent to retire and the intended date of retirement; or (iii) death of an employee's spouse or child between the dates the employee stibmits his/her notice of intent to retire and the intended date of retirement. When the designated Department official receives an employee's written revocation of intent to retire, the benefit shall be awarded to the next senior employee or employees in the grouping, who has (have) applied and still desire(s) the benefit.
- g) Each employee who has submitted a written notice of intent to retire, under the terms of paragraph 2(a) above, shall be informed in writing by the Department whether that employee is or is not a successful applicant to receive the benefit that is provided for in this Memorandum of Understanding. Employees and the Union shall be so informed in writing not later than 30 days after the cutoff dates referenced in paragraph 2(a) above.
- h) An employee who has been informed that he/she is a successful applicant and who has received his/her furlough assignments, may keep

#### 113

102010.1r

such furlough assignments or rescind any or all assigned furlough periods and receive furlough buyouts at retirement.

i) The Department shall time stamp each employee's written notice of intent to retire and provide a copy to the employee upon receipt and to the Union within ten (10) days thereafter.

j) As a further condition of eligibility for this benefit, under no circumstances may an employee who has been discharged pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.2 of the Agreement be eligible to avail Mmself/herself of this benefit.

of Chicago

Fighters Union, Local 2

Date

114

I02O10. lr

#### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

22] N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 6060] -1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Roiiekt S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

September 15, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will reconfirm the agreement of the City and Local 2 that uniformed employees of the Chicago Fire Department, their eligible dependents and members of their immediate family (as defined in contract Section 7.5), and retired fire personnel and the retiree's spouse will be exempt from fees for emergency medical services performed by the Chicago Fire Department; and that the provisions of General Order 93-005 (June 2, 1993) shall remain in effect, except as modified herein.

Your rnnfirming this agreement in the space provided below will be appreciated.

Very trul<sup>1</sup>

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney 'Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this T<sup>\*</sup> day of <del>Ocptember</del>, 2010.

RSS/jmh

115

091410.1r

#### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

srfttoMieifS'at' ^aup 221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930 RouertS. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankjn

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Dear Mr. Franczek:

This is to reconfirm that the City of Chicago and Chicago Fire Fighters Union Local No. 2 agree that, notwithstanding anything that may be to the contrary in Medical Plan documents, disputes concerning medical care coverage and benefits may be submitted and resolved pursuant to the provisions of Article X. It is further understood that no such disputes may be subject to Article X resolution until the Benefits Office appeals process has been exhausted.

This is also to confirm the agreement of the parties that the City's Medical Care Plan will not require re-enrollment for current uniformed Fire Department bargaining unit members and their eligible dependents who have complied with the eirollment requirement subsequent to January 1, 1984.

Your confumiing this understanding in the space provided below will be appreciated.

Robert S. Sharpish Attorney - Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

RSS/jmh

116

091410.1r

#### Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 ' Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 • fnmczek.com

<a href="http://fnmczek.com">http://fnmczek.com</a>

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <mailto:jcf@franczek.com>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Wellness Benefit Dear Mi. Sugarman:

This letter confirms our understandings regarding the implementation of the wellness component of the PPO Medical Plan (the "Wellness Benefit") agreed upon by the City and Local 2.

• Annual Routine Physical Exmninations

The Wellness Benefit provides for one (1) annual routine physical examination. The City and Union recognize that there may be instances when it is in the best interest of eligible persons and consistent with the purpose of the Wellness Benefit that they have more than one (1) routine physical examination annually. To be eligible for more than one (1) routine physical examination annually, the person must submit to the Benefits Management Office a statement from his or her physician stating the reasons why more than one (1) annual routine physical examination is necessary. The additional physical eocamination(s) shall be otherwise subject to all of the other conditions of the Wellness Benefit

The parries recognize that the above applies only to routine physical examinations and not to physical examinations necessitated by a doctor's diagnosis of a medical condition requiring treatment

Contact Lenses

Subject to all other aspects of the Wellness Benefit, the City shall make available a twelve (12) month supply of disposable contact lenses.

#### • Wellness Benefit Committee

The Union and City shall appoint no more than two (2) persons each to a Wellness Benefit Committee ("the Committee"). The Committee shall monitor and review the usage of the Wellness Benefit by bargaining unit members and other eligible participants. The Committee, in anticipation of negotiations, may also recommend to the City and the Union design changes to the Wellness

117

493895.1

& FRANCZEK RADELET Mr. RobettS. Sugarman

", September 10,2010

Attorneys and Counselors p 7 pf 7

Benefit, including additions, eliminations or modifications of current benefits. The Committee shall report quarterly to the Union and the City.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below

Very truly yours,

i

/ James C. Franczek, Jr. T / ^^Labor Counsel City of Chicago

Acknowledged and Agreed to this /f^ day of September, 2010.

r3

ibert S. Sugarmaa; Auuiuey Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

JCF:mp

118

493895.1

#### **SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP**

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Roiiert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Honwrrz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, LUinois 60606-6785

Re:

Health Fair

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This confirms the parties' agreement that the City will remit to the Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local 2, \$75,000 per year effective January 1, 2010, upon receipt from the Union of its \$75,000 expenditure in each year.

The parries further agree that these monies are solely for the purpose of supporting a Union-sponsored health fair for its members. The Union agrees that it will advise the City in writing regarding the planning, participation, implementation and results of its health fair(s). The Union and the City will meet after any health fair to discuss the results of the health fair and assess its success, mcluding its benefit to Union members and the effect it had or will have of reducing the City's health care costs for bargaining unit members.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this ^H"^ day of ScplsiglSir, 2010.

RSS/jmh 119 091410.1r

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin September 15, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the parties' agreement that, notvrithstanding the language in Section 12. ID, an employee who applies for duty or occupational disability benefits and timely pays the full cost of health insurance, mcluding the employee contribution during the period that his/her application is pending, shall be reimbursed in full upon determination that the employee qualifies for duty or occupational disability benefits. This understanding is intended to permit an employee to avail the employee of the benefit of the 2005 amendment of Section 12.D or to the same process in effect regarding payment and reimbursement attendant to the application for duty and occupational disability that was in effect prior to the 2005 amendment of Section 12. ID.

Your confirmation of this agreement in the space below will be appreciated.

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

RSS/jmh 120 091410.1r

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors .\_.\_....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 'Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300; Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 3JL2-7S6-6110 jcf@franczek.com <a href="mailto:jcf@franczek.com">mailto:jcf@franczek.com</a>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Florwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Section 5.LC. Wage and Insurance Protections

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter re-confirms our understandings regarding Section 5.I.C. (Wage and Insurance Protections) of the cohective barrjaining agreement It is understood that, if the City and any of the bargaining units represented by PB-PA Unit 156 should agree to incorporate the current non-salary compensation into salary, Section 5.I.C. will not be applied so as to result in different levels of salaries between comparable police and fire ranks, provided that in no event shall the salary differential between fire captain and fire battalion chief be reduced.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

■ •■" Yerj truly yours,

/ yjames C. Franczek, Jr. I^/ Labor Counsel City of Chicago

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

Robert S. SugarmanT^ttbrney Chicago Fire Fghters Union, Local No. 2 JCFmp 121 493945.1

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankjn

September 15, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will reconfirm the agreement of the parties that should the City increase the maximum mileage allowance per month in the Appropriations Ordinance for other employees of the City during the term of this Agreement beyond the requirements of Section 16.6, the City agrees to amend Section 16.6 to reflect the monthly dollar increase. Other aspects of Section 16.6 will remain unchanged.

Very truly yours,

Robert S. Sugafman Attorney

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this "4\" day of September, 2010.

RSS/jmh

**122** 091410. lr

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors . .....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400: Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 3U.9S6.9X92 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago,]!. 60601

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter will confirm the parties' understanding that if the City makes out of rank order promotions for affirmative action purposes from examinations administered after January 1, 1997, the City will:

a. use one standard error of difference (SEP); and

b. use the promotional methodology referenced below.

The SED is determined by the formula: the standard error of measurement (SEM) multiplied by the square root of two (SED = SEM \~2.) The SEM is determined by the formula: the standard deviation of the test scores multiplied by the quantity, the square root of one minus the reliability coefficient for the test (SEM = 6vVl-rcomposites; where 6 represents the standard deviation of observed scores on the overall test, and rcomposites represents the reliability estimate of the overall test) The SEM and the SED will be determined by the City's consultant, to be verified by the Union's consultant, and the City will provide the necessary data to the consultants for tT-iis purpose.

The City acknowledges the band widths shall be no wider than one (1) SED and that it will use the same fixed/skcling band methodology it has been using for promotions during the period of the last agreement, but using one (1) SED for band widths. It is understood that this letter agreement does not apply to performance selection promotions described in Section 9.3.B.4.

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <mailto:jcf@franczek.com> 123 493979.1

# Franczek Radelet m\*- Robert s- sugarman

September 10,2010

Attorneys and Counselors r p 9 cro

It is also agreed that nothing contractually or herein shall be construed to waive any party's or employee's claim involving constitutional or statutory rights or to waive judicial resolution of any such claim. below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in die space provided Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugaafian^ Attorney Chicago FireTughters Union, Local No. 2 Very truly yours,

### Musi £

|fames C. Franczek, Jr^/ /Labor Counsel /City of Chicago

JCF:mp

124

493979.1

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400. Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@rranczelc.com <a href="mailto:jcf@rranczelc.com">mailto:jcf@rranczelc.com</a>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter will reconfirm the agreements between the City and Local 2 that, in the event the City utilizes performance selection promotions from eligibility lists derived from examinations administered after January 1, 1997, the City will forgo making such promotions on the last promotional order before the eligibility list is retired.

The City agrees that the last promotional order will include at least 16% of the total promotions previously made from that eligibility list, and that the last promotions will be in strict rank order from the eligibility list below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided Very truly yours,

fames C. Franczek, Jr. "Labor Counsel City of Chicago

Acknowledged and Agreed to this /•g-\*\*- day of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugarrnan^^tt&mty Chicago Fire Filters Union, Local No. 2 JCF:mp 125 493987.1

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 6060J-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

RouertS. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Anun

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Re: Section 16.15, Specialty Pay

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the parties' agreement relative to implementation of Contract Section 16.15, Specialty Pay.

Hazardous Material Technicians are those employees who have or hereafter obtain State of Illinois certification as Technician A or B.

Certified Divers are those employees who have or hereafter obtain Chicago Fire Department Dive Team Endorsement pursuant to the Department's Scuba Team endorsement procedure in effect September 2005.

If is further agreed that an employee who is both a Hazardous Material Technician and a Certified Diver shall receive specialty pay for each specialty.

Your corjfinnation of this agreement in the space below will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,

Robert S. Sugarman" Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this 1-^ day of September, 2010.

pames C. Franczek, Jr. [Labor Counsel City of Chicago RSS/jmh 126 091410.1r

## \*k Franczek Radelet

j cf@ fir an czek. com September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Vocational Training Program

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter sets forth the parties' agreement with respect to the creation of a vocational training program for employees who are in receipt of duty or occupational disability benefits.

Effective no later than January 1, 2011, the City shall implement an appropriate vocational training program for employees on duty disability or occupational disability who desire to avail themselves of the program and subject to the monies appropriated for the program (which shall be at least §55,000 for 2011 and the same amount for 2012). Representatives from the Union and the City shall meet during the first quarter of 2011 to begin negotiations regarding the development of an appropriate vocational training program. In the event that the parties are unable to agree as to the structure or substance of the program, either party may submit the matter to an arbitrator for final and binding arbitration utilizing the procedures of contract section 10.3C.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

Very truly yours,

City of Chicago

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

JCF:mp 127 493990.1

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors......

300 South Wacker Drive Suiie 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. . 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <a href="mailto:jcf@franczek.com">mailto:jcf@franczek.com</a> September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Physical Fitness Program Dear Mr. Sugarman:

In an effort to enhance physical fitness among the employees covered by this Agreement, the Employer and Union agree to the following:

- 1. Ttgrinning in 2006, every employee covered by this Agreement will have one (1) opportunity annually to schedule an appointment for a physical fitness test Employees will have one (1) opportunity to re-schedule the test, but will be allowed to take the test only once each year. The test must take place prior to November 1 of every year.
- 2. The Employee will complete a waiver which indicates that he/she is volunteering to take this test and will not hold the City liable for any injuries or illness that occurs as a result of his/her participation in the testing process.
- 3. Successful completion of the physical fitness test will result in payment of a physical fitness premium of S350.00, effective July 1, 2010, ?450.00, payable December 1 of the year the Employee successfully completes the test
- 4. It is understood that this is a voluntary program. Employees who participate in the physical fitness test will do so during off-duty hours without compensation.
- 5. Any injury, illness or death that results from participation in this program will not be considered an on-duty injury or a death in the

performance of duty.

6. No employee shall be discharged, suspended, relieved from duty, or (disciplined in any manner under or relating to the physical fitness program provided for in this Letter.

128

493994.1

## a Franczek Radelet

\if Attorneys and Counselors

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman September 10, 2010 Page 2 of 2

7. Employees must pass every test and meet at least die standards listed below to qualify for the physical fitness premium:

	MALE				FEW		ALE	
TEST	23-29	30-39	40-49	50+	23-29	30-39	40-49	50+
Sit & Reach	16.0	15.0	13.S	12.8	18.8	17.8	16.8	16.3
1 Minute Sit Up	37	34	28	23	31	24	19	13
Maximum Bench Press Ratio	.98	.87	.79	.70	.58	.52	.49	.43
1.5 Mile Run	13.46	14.31	15.24	16.21	16.21	16.52	17.53	18.44

8.

helow

The following are not subject to the grievance procedure: Test standards; The results of the testing;

The medical status of an employee who is injured participating in this program, If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided

Very truly yours,

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

Robert S. S Chicago Firi

omey

ters Union, Local No. 2

James C. Franczek, Jr. J (J abor Counsel City of Chicago

JCF:mp 129

493994.1

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago. IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Hoitwm

February 16, 2005

Of Counsel: Howard H. Anion

James C. Franczek, Jr. Labor Counsel, City of Chicago Franczek Sullivan, P.C. 300 S. Wacker Dr., Ste. 3400 Chicago, IL 60606

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the parties' implementing agreement regarding EMS Relief positions.

1. PAYCHECKS AND A&As FOR RELIEVERS

Paychecks and A&As will be maintained at the FS&R Districts.

- 2. All personnel that become EMS Relief will remain in their current EMS
- 3. There will be 12 companies in FDN and 16 companies in FDS that will be affected within the rank of PIC.

FDN - 3, 7, 10, 15, 23, 28, 31, 33, 41, 44, 45, 52

FDS - 1, 4, 5, 14, 22, 24, 30, 34, 35, 36, 37, 49, 50, 55, 57, 58

4. The employees in the rank of PIC on the basis of seniority will have the option to stay permanently assigned or become a reliever. If there are no requests to stay in the company, the least senior PICs will be assigned to the company. PROCEDURE

A. PICs assigned to the companies previously listed in item #3 above will submit a Form 2 radicating their present

ambulance company, EMS seniority number, and further mdicating if they want to be assigned to their current company or be assigned as a reliever within their current Field Division. This Form 2 will be submitted through the employee's chain of command directed to their respective Field Division (North/South) attention Deputy Chief Paramedic.

B. The most senior PICs will keep their current company assignment, if requested.

Re: EMS Relief Implementing Agreement

Division.

130 £>(0

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

James C. Franczek, Jr. February 16, 2005 Page Two

C. PICs that do not submit a Form 2 may be assigned to EMS Relief at the Department's discretion.

D. Any dispute in administrating this implementation agreement shall only be resolved pursuant to discussions between the Director of Contract Enforcement from Local #2 and the Bureau of Employee Relations.

Your corifirmation of this understanding in the space below will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,



Robert S. Sugarman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this 16th day of February, 2005.

Labor Counsel, City of Chicago

131

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors......

300 South Wacker Drive . Suite 3400 . Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 311986.0300 . Fax 312.986.9192 rranczek.com <a href="http://rranczek.com">http://rranczek.com</a>

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <mailto:jcf@franczek.com <meilto:jcf@franczek.com <meilto:jcf@francz

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Field Officer and Ambulance Commander

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter will confirm the agreement of the parties that the promotional lists for Field Officer and Ambulance Commander referenced in contract section 9.3.C.2. shall be pursuant to promotional examinations which shall utilize the same criteria for promotion respectively to Battalion Chief and Captain as set forth in contract section 9.3.B.I. below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided Acknowledged and Agreed to rids y day of September, 2010.

Chicago Fir/ Fighters Union, Local No. 2 JCFmp

' Very truly yours, ames C. Franczek, Jr.' Labor Counsel City of Chicago 132 453999.1

## Franczek Radelet

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626. Chicago, LL 60601

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter is to re-confirm the agreement of the parties with regard to FLSA premium pay to EMS employees assigned to platoon duty.

The parties have made no express provision to exclude meal and/or sleep periods from compensable work time for purposes of computing the number of hours that may be subject to FLSA premium pay, and such shall be included.

That this Labor Agreement does not contain such an express provision shall not be offered by either party in any court, arbitration or other legal forum as evidence of either party's legal position with regard to the propriety of such exclusions for sleep and/or meal periods.

Further, it is understood that the Employer may elect to compute the FLSA regular and/or half-time rate in accordance with 1) all applicable precedents, federal regulations and interpretative bulletins, or 2) the method set forth in the Labor Contract (by dividing the employee's annual salary by 2132, effective January 1, 2006 by 2120). below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided Aclmowledged and Agreed to this /J<sup>rf</sup> day of September, 2010.

Chicago Fire JCFrmp

, Attorney

hion, Local No. 2

Very truly yours,

C. Franczek, Jr. s ('<sub>v</sub>,abor Counsel City of Chicago

133

494012.1

if

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors.....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Pax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110

j cf@franczek.com <mailto:cf@franczek.com>

September-10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Post-Retirement Medical Savings Plan Dear Mr. Sugarman:

The following confirms our understandings regarding a post-retirement medical savings plan (the "Plan"):

I.

Basic Framework

The City will establish a post-retirement medical savings plan (the 'Tlan") in conjunction with the bargaining unit.

The Plan will be administered by an outside third-party vendor.

The vendor will be selected by the City -with input from the bargaining unit committee. The City will determine the required bid process.

Current and future members of the bargaining umt and employees in the exempt ranks are eligible to participate in the Plan.

The Plan will provide individual accounts for each member who participates.

The accounts will be funded on an annual basis.

Account assets will be available on retirement to pay for qualified medical expenses. Eligible tax-dependents can continue to use the account to pay qualified medical expenses after the participant's death. The parties will also endeavor to include a death benefit if legally permitted and feasible. At no time may a participant or dependents receive cash from the account, except as permitted by way of a death benefit

#### 134

494014.1

## Franczek Radelet m\*- Robert s. sugarman

September 10,2010

Attorneys ana Counselors <sup>x</sup> Page <sup>9</sup> of 3

The City will pay start-up costs and annual fees if any. Employees will pay investment management fees and other fees that are typically charged to parncipant accounts by the vendor.

### H. Funding

It is anticipated that accounts will be funded with Holiday Pay. However, any elections, funding and other terms will have to comply with the restrictions and requirements of the vendor which may differ from the terms below. We will also permit the funding of the accounts with ongoing salary deferrals.

HI. Taxes

It is expected that the Plan design will be such that contributions are not subject to federal income or payroll taxes. Thus, it is expected that the money will go in tax-free, will grow tax-free and will not be taxed on distribution when used for qualified medical expenses. It is also expected that the City will not pay FICA, Medicare or other payroll taxes on these amounts.

The City does not make any representations or guarantees regarding the tax impact or consequences of the Plan. Participants should seek their own tax advice.

The City may condition adoption of the Plan on obtaining a favorable IRS letter ruling regarding the expected tax consequences of the Plan.

#### IV. Minimum Participation

The City proposes that a minimal level of participation be required. The purpose is to insure that the a(immisrxative burden is worth it It has been suggested that a minimum percentage of eligible members (e.g. 20%) must elect to participate, and that at a minimum, participants be required to contribute at least 12 hours per year.

#### V. Timing / Mechanics

A subcommittee of the Union and City bargaining teams will be formed to develop the Plan along the lines of the framework identified above. If agreement is reached on the Plan, the Plan will be implemented by January 1, 2012; if agreement is not reached in time for implementation on January 1, 2012, there will be no Plan.

135

494014.1

# Franczek Radelet Mr. Roberts, sugarman

13'-.'^. c\_\_j.\_\_L\_\_in om n

rAttorneys and Counselors September 10 -010

J Page 3 of 3

below.

If the above comporrs with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided

Very truly yours,

Acknowledged and Agreed to this  $x <^{IX} \sim day$  of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugarman?^ uumey

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

JCF:mp

VJames C. Franczek, Jr. ^ ■'/Labor Counsel // City of Chicago

136

494014.1

## **SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP**

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

ROUEHT S. SUGAKMAN

Stephen B. Horwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel-Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Re: Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will reconfirm the agreement of the parties with respect to the position of Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic, formerly designated as District Commander.

Effective upon ratification of the January 1, 1992 - June 30, 1995 Agreement the position of District Commander by agreement was upgraded from pay grade F5 to pay grade F6. Thereafter, effective January 1, 1995, the position of District Commander, up to a maximum of 11 District Commanders, was excluded from the bargaining unit subject to certain express understandings and agreements:

1. Those individuals holcing the position of District Commander on the date of ratification of the 1992-1995 Agreement

had the option of electing to remain witiiin the bargaining unit. Those who so elected reverted to the position of Field Officer, but continued to be paid at the F6 pay grade. Those who accepted appointment to the exempt rank position were paid at the F6 pay grade, and if subsequent to their acceptance they voluntarily relinquish(ed) such appointment or their appointment is or was rescinded by the Fire Commissioner, they reverted or shall revert to the position of Field Officer and continue to be paid at the F6 pay grade. Subsequent to January 1, 1995, the position of District Commander was redesignated Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic.

- 2. It was and is agreed that future appointments to the position of Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic (formerly designated District Commander) at the F6 pay grade shall come from the rank of Field Officer. If a Field Officer who accepts such appointment voluntarily relinquishes the appointment or the Fire Commissioner rescinds the appointment, that individual shall revert to the position of Field Officer at the F5 pay grade.
- 3. It is understood that individuals serving in the exempt rank position of Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic may have their appointment rescinded by the Fire Commissioner at any time for any reason or no reason, the individuals serving in such

137

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ. LLP

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. September 15, 2010 Page Two position may voluntarily relinquish such position, and in either event the mclividual shall revert to the position of Field Officer.

4. It is understood that if the Fire Commissioner suspends for 30 days or more or discharges an}' individual serving in the exempt rank position of Assistant Deputy Chief Paramedic (who shall be considered on a leave of absence from the position of Field Officer) such discipline or discharge shall be considered as being from the Field Officer position and the employee shall be covered by and have recourse to the provisions of the Labor Contract, including but not limited to provisions of Article X (Grievance/Arbitration) and Article XVI, Section 16.2 (Discipline and Discharge).

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney C Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of Scotembu, 2010.

RSS/jmh 138 091410.1r

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

October 12, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. An kin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This is to reconfirm the agreement of the City and Local 2 to continue the practice, except for Fire Suppression and Rescue employees and Emergency Medical Services employees, that trades and exchanges between Firefighters and Fire Officers shall be permitted, and that Firefighters or Officers, when authorized, may act in the position of Fire Officers who are absent, in which case'tHssFirefighter or Officer shall be compensated at the same rate he would earn if promoted\ to the higher rank or at his own rate, whichever is greater.

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this / ^ day of October, 2010.

ijabor Counsel City of Chicago RSS/jmh 139 100810. It

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

RouertS. Sugarman Stephens. Horwitz

September 15, 2010 Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankjn

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This letter reconfirms the Employer's and the Union's understanding regarding the language in Section 16.7.C.1 which provides that... "Such assignment vacancies in the classifications and/or ranks of firefighter, Lieutenant, Captain and Battalion Chief in the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall be filled on the basis of seniority by the geographically designated offices in that Bureau (i.e., South, West, North, Cental and North Kedzie)." The parties recognize that circumstances may change and that as a result of those circumstances and to improve efficiency of operations, by deterrmining the methods, means and personnel by which the Department's operations are to be conducted, the complement of employees assigned to a given office in the Bureau may be increased or decreased at the Employer's discretion. This letter also coriiirms that the referenced modification to Section 16.7.C.1. does not subtract from the intent of Section 16.8 Contracting and Subcontracting of Work.

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney C Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this

^James C. Franczek, Jr. Labor Counsel City of Chicago

RSS/jmh

140

091410.1r

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will reconfirm that the City of Chicago and Chicago Fire Fighters Union Local No. 2 agree that, because of the necessity that meals be prepared and eaten on duty, those employees authorized to be away from the fire house during their duty hours for the purpose of food shopping shall be considered to be engaged in the performance of duties and any injuries sustained while so engaged shall be considered duty-related.

Your confirming this Lmderstanding in the space provided below will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,

Robert; ST Sugarman Attorney C Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

James C. Franczek, Jr. 1/abor Counsel City of Chicago RSS/jmh

141

091410.1r

## fk Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczck.com <a href="http://franczck.com">http://franczck.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@rranczek.com <a href="mailto:jcf@rranczek.com">mailto:jcf@rranczek.com</a>

October 12, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

**Re:** Section 7.4 - Military Leaves of Absence

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This will confirm the agreement of the City of Chicago and Fire Fighters Union Local No. 2, that in addition to the paid

military leave of absence provided for in § 7.4 of the parties' Agreement, any bargaining unit employee who is a member of the reserve force of the United States or of any State, or any bargaining unit employee who is a member of the National Guard of the United States or of any other State, who, on or after September 11, 2001, is ordered or called to active duty shall continue to receive and shall be paid full salary by the City, and shall continue to be entided to all benefits, including, but not limited to, pension contributions, and to be a participant in each policy, plan, or program set forth or referenced in Article XTI of the parties' Agreement, that the employee was a participant in at the time he or she is called to active duty. The payment of full salary during active duty leave shall be conditioned upon payment of military pay to the comptroller.

It is provided, however, that effective January 1, 2005, employees who are deployed for military service in excess of fifteen (15) calendar days in a combat zone (as designated pursuant to the Executive Orders of the President of the United States) shall not be required to reimburse the Employer the amount of military pay they receive.

Further, paid leave for active duty shall terminate upon termination of active duty.

The City acknowledges and agrees that in the event Illinois or Federal law mandates greater benefits than as set forth in this Section, it will apply the provisions of such statute(s) to the members of the bargaining unit Specifically, the City acknowledges that the Military Leave of Absence Act, 5 ILCS 325 ("Act"), provides for leaves of absence for basic training, special or advanced training, and annual training. The Act provides for a paid leave of absence for annual training for which the employee shall continue to receive his or her regular compensation, regardless of the duration of such training. The City will continue to comply with this provision of the Act Similarly the Act provides for paid leave for basic training, and for up to 60 days of special or advanced training. Both of these leaves, under the Act, provide that the employee shall receive his or her regular compensation during the leave(s), but only to the extent such compensation exceeds his or her base pay for military activities. The City agrees to apply these provisions of the Act to

535096.1

# Franczek Radelet ^ Robert s- sugarman

. October 12,2010

Attorneys and Counselors  $\sim p_a g_S o$ 

members of the bargaining unit in this fashion: for the first 14 calendar days (15 calendar days in the event of National Guard service) of such leave, the City will not require the employee to reimburse the City for the amount of his or her base pay for military activities. Service in excess of such limit shall be subject to the reimbursement requirement. In the event an employee is on leave for both basic training and special/advanced training in a calendar year, or for multiple installments of special/advanced training in a calendar year, the employee shall be entided to one allotment of 14 (15 in the case of National Guard service) calendar days of paid leave without reimbursement

The City further agrees that if, during the term of this collective bargaining agreement, Illinois or Federal law is amended to require a more generous treatment of Military Leaves of Absence, it will apply such provisions.

Your confirmation of this understanding in the space provided below will be appreciated.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day oFQctober, 2010.

""^jfa'mes C. Franczek, Jr. // Itabor Counsel l/City of Chicago

Robert S. Sugarman,. Chicago Fire Fighters,Xj£s6n, Local No. 2 143 535096.1

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors.....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczeLcom JAMES G. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <mailto:jcf@franczek.com <mailto:jcf@francz

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Benefits During Act of War - Terrorism Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter will corifirm the agreement of the City of Chicago and the Chicago Fire Fighters Union Local No. 2, that effective September 11, 2001, there will be no act of war exclusion with respect to any of the medical, dental, or vision plans, and life

insurance policies provided or offered to City employees (except the Accidental Death and Dismemberment (ADD) insurance policy which has an act of war exclusion.)

In the event of a terrorist attack, either through military force or biological warfare, any otherwise eligible medical claims would be processed and covered under the terms of the employee's health coverage, or if applicable, workers' compensation or other coverage provided to employees injured or on duty.

As used herein, "act of war" shall mean any armed conflict between military forces of any origin - irrespective of whether one or more combatants is sponsored by any nation - and whether or not war has been declared by constituted authorities.

As used herein, "act of terrorism" shall mean violent acts or acts dangerous to human life that are a violation of the criminal laws of the United States or of any State, or that would be a rri-minal violation if committed within the jurisdiction of the United States or of any State; and which appear to be intended," to mtimidate or coerce a civilian population; to influence the policy of a government by mtimida.ti.on <a href="http://mtimida.ti.on">http://mtimida.ti.on</a> or coercion; or, to affect the conduct of a government by assassination or kidnapping. As used herein, an act of terrorism occurs irrespective of the nationality or citizenship of the perpetrators.

#### 144

494018.1

## \*. Frajnczek Rajdelet

Attorneys and Counselors

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman September 10,2010 Page 2 of 2

below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided Very truly yours,

Acknowledged and Agreed to this /^! day of September, 2010.

. Jarhes C. Franczek, Jr. //./Labor Counsel ^ City of Chicago

Robert S. Sugajaa^anTAltpiaiey Chicago Fir^FighterS"TJnion, Local No. 2

**JCFmp** 

145

494018.1

## **SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP**

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

ROIIEHTS. SUGARMAN

Stephen B. Houwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. A»kin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the parties' agreement that nothing in contract Section 12. IB shall detract from or be considered a waiver of the benefits provided in the Public Safety Employee Benefits Act, 820 ILCS 320/1 et seg., as amended.

Very truly yours,

Robert S. Suga^nan-^ Attorney

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of Se^ember; 2010.

RSS/jmh

146

091410. lr

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Ruuekt S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

October 20, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet, P.C. 300 S. Wacker Dr., Ste. 3400 Chicago, IL 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will coniirm the parties' agreement that notwith standing the effective date of July 1, 2010 for the increase from \$25,000 to \$75,000 in City-paid life insurance referenced in Section 12.1.F. of the Agreement, such increased benefit shall also apply for bargaining unit employees who died in May or June 2010.

If this comports with your understancling, leindly so indicate in the space provided below.

Robert S. Sug^fman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this 3 ^ day of October, 2010.

/^Jiames C. Franczek, Jr. / yLabor Counsel L^ City of Chicago RSS/jmh 147 102010.1r

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

RonmiT S. Sugarman Stephen B. Hokwitz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Anion

October 20, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet, P.C. 300 S. Wacker Dr., Ste. 3400 Chicago, IL 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the parties' agreement that irrespective of the ratification date by the parties of the LMCC referenced in Section 12.1(1). of the Agreement, the benefit of outpatient speech and occupational therapy coverage to include services necessary for the acquisition of a function shall be retroactive to October 15, 2010.

If this comports with your understanding, kindly so indicate in the space provided below.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this pi 3- day of October, 2010.

frames C. Franczek, Jr. Labor Counsel City of Chicago RSS/jmh 148 1020I0.1r

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Rohert S. Sugarman Stephen B. Horwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the agreement of the City of Chicago and Chicago Fire Fighters Union Local No. 2, relative to Contract Section 3.7 that the employee (or Union), not the City, shall be responsible for payment of the "iron-on patch" and ironing of it on the work uniform.

Your confirmation of this understanding in the space below will be appreciated.

Attorney

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this 1-\(^{\text{day}}\) day of Septerrrber, 2010.

RSS/jmh

149

091410.Lt <a href="http://091410.Lt">http://091410.Lt</a>

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors..

300 South "Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110

jcf@franczck.com <mailto:jcf@franczck.com>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Employee Privacy

Dear Mr. Sur^arman:

This letter ran firms that the City will not provide or make available to any member of the media any photo, video, audio or documentary material of an employee who is or was under investigation for alleged misconduct

Further, the identity of any employee (mduding bis family members, telephone number(s) or address) who is under investigation or was under investigation for alleged misconduct shall not be made available to the media

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

ĺ

Very truly yours,

Acknowledged and Agreed to this /S^ day of September, 2010.

JCFnnp 150 494019.1 lit?

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors ......

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400. Chicago, IL 60606

Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR-

312-786-6110 jcf@fxanczek.com <mailto:jcf@fxanczek.com>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Positive Presence for Drug/Alcohol Dear Mr. Sugarman:

The following confirms our undersranrlings regarding the ascertainment of positive presence for Drug/Alcohol. The following changes will be effective on contract ratification by the City Council.

- 1. For the purpose of testing for the itemized situations in Article IV of General Order 87-008 (February 1, 1987) for illegal drugs and/alcohol, the standard for determination of positive presence of alcohol shall be .02 as measured on a certified/calibrated Breathalyzer, and the standard for determination of the positive presence of illegal drugs shall be in accordance with Attachment A to the General Order #04-001 (Chicago Fire Department Random Drug/Alcohol Testing Program.)
- 2. For the purpose of testing for General Order #04-001, (Chicago Fire Department Random/Drug Alcohol Testing Program), the standard for determination of positive presence of alcohol shall be .04 as measured on a certified/calibrated Breathalyzer, and the standard for the determination of positive presence of illegal drugs shall be in accordance with Attachment A to the General Order #04-001 (Chicago Fire Department Random Drug/Alcohol Testing Program.)
- 3. For the purpose of alcohol testing for the Chicago Fire Department Supplemental Recommendation/Agreement, (Known as the Last Chance Agreement), the standard is positive presence of alcohol as measured on a certified/calibrated Breathalyzer. The standard for the determination of positive presence of illegal drugs shall be in accordance with Attachment A to the General Order #04-001 (Chicago Fire Department Random Drug/Alcohol Testing Program.)

**151** 494023.1

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman September 10, 2010 Page 2 of 2 below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided

Very nuly yours,

""J janes C. Franczek, Jr. j

Acknowledged and Agreed to this x/T^Way of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugarman, Attorney

Chicago Fire FighteiaJJnion, Local No. 2

JCF:mp

152

494023.1

### **GENERAL ORDER**

04-0D1

July 23, 2004

SUBJECT:

CHICAGO FIRE DEPARTMENT

RANDOM DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING PROGRAM

1. PURPOSE

This Order:

A. establishes the Policy governing random drug/alcohol testing of all uniformed employees of the Department.

- B. describes responsibilities relative tD this program.
- C. establishes the Random Drug/Alcohol Testing Unit (RDATU).
- D. establishes the protocol for testing.
- E. effective date August 23, 2004.

AH Department uniformed employees will be subject to random drug/alcohol testing. Employees selected for drug/alcohol testing are required to cooperate in the testing process. Failure to cooperate, tampering with specimens for testing or any other activities designed to interfere with or impede the random drug/alcohol testing procedures shall be considered grounds for discipline up to and including discharge.

A. The mission of the Chicago Fire Department, to protect life and property, demands efficient operations and the highest level of fitness of its members. The lives of citizens, employees and coworkers are critically dependent upon the physical fitness, stamina and alertness of emergency service employees. Department members must project a positive representative image which ensures the public confidence in them and governs their professional and personal conduct, both on and off duty, so as not to impair departmental efficiency or detract from a professional image or workplace.

II.

### **POLICY**

153

- B. Any positive presence of illegal drugs and/Dr alcohol as defined in General Order 87-008 is prohibited. The standards for determination of positive presence of illegal drugs shall be in accordance with Attachment A. The standard for determination of positive presence of alcohol shall be .04 as measured on a certified/calibrated Breathalyzer.
- C. Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.
- D. Nothing in this Program detracts from the provisions of General Order 87-008.

#### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

A. A computer program, generating no more than 20 employees and no more frequently than on a daily basis shall be utilized to randomly select employees for drug/alcohol testing. Such tests shall only be conducted on Mondays through Fridays between the hours of 0900 and 1600. There shall be no testing on holidays. Any on-duty employee selected by the computer program will be tested. If an

employee selected is not available because of Daley Day, vacation, lay-up or otherwise off duty, the employee will not have to report for testing and no one else will be selected in the person's place. The City shall retain an independent outside consultant to develop a computer random program for .use by the CFD. Prior to the implementation of such program, the Union may engage a consultant at its expense to review and verify the computer program, and the City will provide necessary data to the consultants for this purpose. The review and verification by the Union's consultant shall take place and be reported to the Department within 30 calendar days of receipt of the City's program and data to the Union's consultant

- B. Drug tBsting will be conducted using a urine test. The employee's urine will be sent to a licensed Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration (SAMHSA) laboratory for a Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GCMS) confirmatory test and analysis. AJI alcohol testing will be done with a certified/calibrated Breathalyzer unit by a certified tester.
- C. Any employee who will not submit urine for testing will be considered in violation of this order and be subject to discipline up to and including
- · discharge.
- D. Each day the City shall provide to the Union's Director of Contract Enforcement, or designee, a list of the employees selected that day (with an asterisk next to the names of the employees tested). Each month the City'shaJi provide to the Union's Director of Contract Enforcement, or designee, an updated roster o^||Department uniformed employees.

### IV. RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Chief/Commanding Officer of the RDATU will be responsible for.
- 1. implementing agreed-upon standard operating procedures to ensure efficient operation and integrity of thB RDATU.
- 2. ensuring the random selection of employees to be tested.
- 3. . notifying the appropriate superior officers) of the employee selected for testing, which officer shall notify the employee.
- 4. ensuring the notification of the appropriate superior officer upon completion of the specimen collection process.
- 5. notification of positive test results to the employee, his/her superior officers (as necessary and appropriate), and to the Union's Director of Contract Enforcement or designee. An employee who tests positive will be relieved of duty and put on administrative leave with pay for a review of the results by the Medical Review Officer. Notification to the appropriate Superior Officer to ensure proper staffing of affected unit shall be initiated immediately by the RDATU staff.
- 6. maintaining the confidentiality and impartiality (randomness) of the testing process.
- B. Superior Officer/Company and Unit Commander/Uniformed Employee Responsibility
- 1. Superior Officers, Company and Unit Commanders and other uniformed employees are responsible for compliance with this Order.
- 2. Employees notified that they have been selected for testing will report on or before their appointed time at the RDATU facility, except that platoon employees will be transported to the RDATU facility. To ensure compliance with minimum manning requirements, platoon employees assigned to vehicles and equipment covered under the minimum manning requirements of Article 16.4A and B of the Labor Agreement between the City and Local 2 shall be replaced until the employee returns to his/her assignment pursuant to subsections 4 and 5 below. A copy of the employee's attendance and assignment sheet which was completed at roll call will accompany the employee to the RDATU.
- 3. Upon arrival at the RDATU, employees will identify themselves (i.e. Department ID, drivers license if a requirement of employment, or other photo identification.)
- 4. No employee will be allowed to return to the employee's duty assignment without completion of the testing process.

5. Upon completion of the collection process, the employee will return to the employee's duty assignment if the results of the tests are negative.

BY ORDERS OF:

Cadiz Trotter Fire Commissioner

### TO BE READ AT ROLL CALL(S) AND POSTED

**Distribution: B** 

156

ATTACHMENT A

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration ("SAMHSA") Guidelines for Cutoff Concentrations in Drug

**Testing Program** 

Substance

Initial Test Level

GC/MS Confirm Test Level

ANABOLIC STEROIDS

**AMPHETAMINES** 

**BARBITURATES** 

**BENZODIAZEPINES** 

COCAINE METABOLITES

MARIJUANA METABOLITES

MDA/MDMR

**METHADONE** 

**OPIATES** 

PHENC YCLIDINE

**PROPOXYPHENE** 

Any Presence  $1000 \text{ ng/mL } 300 \text{ ng/mL } 300 \text{ ng/mL } 300 \text{ ng/mL } 50 \text{ ng/mL } 250 \text{ ng/mL } 300 \text{ ng/mL } 2000 \text{ ng/mL } 25 \text{ ng/mL } 300 \text{ ng/mL } 2000 \text{ ng/mL } 25 \text{ ng/mL } 250 \text{$ 

Any Presence 500 ng/mL 200 ng/mL 200 ng/mL 150 ng/mL 15 ng/mL 200 ng/mL 300 ng/mL 2000 ng/mL 25 ng/mL 300 ng/mL

157

081810.2r

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Reideht S. Sugarman Stephen B. Hohwitz

September 15, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This letter will cornirm the agreement of the City and Local 2 that the provisions of General Order 87-008 (February 1, 1987) and the General Order on Random Drug & Alcohol shall remain in effect, unless modified by the parties.

This letter will also confirm the parties' agreement that the Supplemental Recommendation Agreement (last chance agreement) and the terms of the Supplemental Recommendation Agreement attached hereto also shall remain in effect, unless modified by the parties.

Rober? Sv^ugaxman^-^ Attorney

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

(

RSS/jmh

158

091410,lr

#### CHICAGO FIRE DEPARTMENT SUPPLEMENTAL RECOMMENDATION AGREEMENT

Name: File No.

Consistent with Genera! Order 87-008 and the Department Disciplinary Code/Policy, there will be a recommendation of discipline, as hereinafter set forth, to the Fire Commissioner for his approval based upon the specific offenses which, are lhe subject matter oflnvestigalive Review Number 1.R.A.

Recommended Discipline: Termination

The above recommendation MAY be held in abeyance under certain conditions to which lhe employee must agree, to allow the employee one opportunity to avoid discipline while seeking to correct his/her conduct or behavior through professional rehabilitation and the employee assistance program.

Those conditions are as follows:

I. Medical Tests

The employee agrees to submit to random.screening which shall include testing for the presence of drugs and/or alcohol.

#### II. Program Participation

The member will be required to enroll 'man appropriate rehabilitative or employee assistance program -which is acceptable to the Employee Assistance Counselors. Their recommendation..if approved by the "Fire Commissioner, will permit the discipline to be held in abeyance for a period of one year, provided the employee is making continued progress in such program. If the member tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol at any time during the one year period.-either on or off duty., all discipline held in abeyance will be immediately imposed.

Rehabilitation assistance is available to employees at any .time, but may be used only once to hold discipline in abeyance. Employees completing; a full year of continued progress in a recommended program will be given an oral reprimand with a clear warning that any second involvement with drugs and/or alcohol will result in termination which wijj not be held in abeyance by any further participation in an employee assistance program.

Refusal .to submit to initial medical testing or subsequent tests under the agreed terms shall result in immediate imposition of discipline.

#### III. Program Progress

The employee will be evaluated -by the department 's Employee Assistance Counselors as to • continued progress in the appropriate program. Where the employee fails to properly participate or comply with the terms of the Supplemental

Recommendation/Agreement, .the Disciplinary Officer shall be so notified and the initial recommendation of discipline shall be imposed.

159

#### IV. Criminal Conviction

Where the employee is convicted, at any time, either during participation in any program or not, of any section .of the Cannabis Contra] Act, the Controlled Substance Act or D.U.I, the appropriate discipline, including termination, shall immediately be processed. NOTIFICATION REVIEW DATE:

Employee:

I acknowledge the conditions and agree to abide by the terms of the above Supplemental Recommendation/Agreement as of the dale indicated below. ] further agree to waive any rights I may have to contest or challenge any matters arising out of the drug and alcohol screening conducted in this case, the subject matter of this Supplemental Recommendation/Agreement and the events that Jead up to it.

Employee Name File No.

Employee Signature Dale Employee Assistance Counselor:

I recommend this employee be given the opportunity to have disciplinary action held in abeyance during his/her participation and progress in a program of rehabilitation, which shall be monitored and evaluated by this office with due regard to confidentiality of .the employee.

Employee Assistance Program Counselor Date Disciplinary Officer

The recommendation discipline in this file shall be held in abeyance and this Supplemental Disciplinary Recommendation/Agreement shall be forwarded to the Fire Commissioner for his approval.

'Disciplinary Officer

Approved:

Bureau Deputy Commissioner Approved:

Fire Commissioner

160

## CHICAGO FIRE DEPARTMENT

TERMS OF THE SUPPUEMENTA1/RECOMMENDATTON AGREEMENT EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Under the terms of your SuppJemental/Recommendau'on Agreement, which are hereby incorporated and made a part of this Employee Assistance Program Agreement, the following are specific Employee Assistance Program conditions with which you must comply to hold your discipline In abeyance.

1. I,\_agree to remain free of all drugs/alcohol and any

mind/mood altering chemical or substances.

ANY POSITIVE ALCOHOL/DRUG TEST WITHIN THE ONE (1) YEAR PERIOD WILL CAUSE ALL DISCIPLINE HELD IN ABEYANCE TO BE IMPOSED. ANY FUTURE VIOLATIONS OF THE FIRE DEPARTMENT'S SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY WELL RESULT IN TERMINATION WHICH WELL NOT BE HELD IN ABEYANCE BY THE EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.

- 2. I will enroll, participate and successfully complete a rehabilitation and/or referral program determined to be appropriate by the Employee Assistance Officers. I will submit verification of participation in the required rehabilitation program.
- 3. In the event that I shall require medical attention it is my obligation to notify treating personnel of my history of substance abuse. It is also my obligation to inform the medical Section of any medications I am required to take.. J understand that if I fall to notify the Medical Section as outlined above: and test positive, the discipline held in abeyance will be imposed.
- 4. I will also abide by the following specific terms as directed by the Employee assistance Counselors.
- 5. I understand that progress reports of the lack thereof will be made available to the Disciplinary Officer and thE appropriate Fire Department personnel.
- 6. I understand that any expenses not covered by my health care benefits plan are my responsibility.

I have read and agree to the above terms. I understand that failure to abide by the Supplemental/Recommendation Agreement - Employee Assistance Program will result in discharge.

File Mo.. Signature £AP Counselor Date

161

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

S\*(tlameifS>ai' ^aius 221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930 Romekt S. Sugarman Of Counsel-

Stephen b. Hoiiwrrz Howard H. Anion

July 2, 2009

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Re: Employee Assistance Program

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This will confirm the agreement of the City and Local 2 that, effective January I, 2010 and each January thereafter for the term of the contract, the City will contribute the annual sum of \$65,000.00 in the Erst quarter of each year to the following recipients in the foUqwing amounts:

Rosecrance \$30,000.00 Guildhaus \$25,000.00 Labor Assistance Professionals \$10,000.00 Very truly yours,

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this 31st day of July, 2009.

Jaines C. Franczek, Jr.<sup>1</sup> ibor Counsel 'City of Chicago RSS/jmh 162

070209. lr

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors.....

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606

Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C FRANCZEK JR

313-7S6-6110 jcf@franczelc.com <mailto:jcf@franczelc.com>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman &: Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Alternative Medical Coverage Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter sets forth the parties<sup>5</sup> agreement with respect to the issue of alternate medical coverage in the case of employees who fail to comply with the City's medical plan erirollment requirements.

- 1. The City will offer alternate coverage for inchviduals who (a) are otherwise eligible under the Plan; (b) have been denied coverage under the Plan because they failed to comply with the Plan's emoUmenx requirements; (c) first became eligible for coverage subsequent to the close of the last most recent open enrollmem period; and (d) agree to pay the required premium.
- 2. In addition, persons who are entitled to coverage as the spouse of an eligible employee shall not be eligible for alternate coverage if the spouse is currendy covered by other medical insurance. Also, the employee must not cover another person as spouse ai the time the application for coverage is made by the employee.
- 3. When an employee who has applied for coverage for an otherwise eligible dependent is denied coverage because of failure to meet enrollment deadlines, the employee shall be notified of the availability of the Alternative Coverage. The employee shall have thirty (30) days to respond to the offer of Alternative Coverage. The employee shall elect one of the following:
- a. Retrospective coverage. Coverage shall be effective as of the date the dependent would have been eligible for coverage had the employee completed the enrollment on a timely basis. If the employee elects retrospective coverage, the employee must pay the required premium from the date of eligibility through the next December 31. Premium payment(s) shall be due for the period of retrospective coverage upon submission of the application. Premiums shall be due thereafter no later than the first day of the month for which the coverage is effective.
- b. Prospective coverage only. Coverage shall be effective on the first day of the month following the month in which the required premium is submitted.

163

494025.1

## |. Franczek Radelet

vjW Attorneys and Counselors

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman September 10, 2010 Page 2 of 2

Premiums are due thereafter no later than the first day of the month for which the coverage is effective.

- c. In the event the employee fails to apply for Alternadve coverage within the time specified, the employee may next apply for coverage for the dependent during the open enrollment period. No further offer of Alternative Coverage shall be made to the employee with respect to the applicable dependent.
- 4. The Alternative Coverage shall be provided on the same basis as the coverage of the plan selected by the employee. Coverage shall be made available under the Plan as of the Effective Date of the Alternative Coverage without regard to pre-existing conditions. The dependent covered under the Alternative Coverage will be included in the membership unit of the employee. Further, covered expenses will be included in any calculation of deductible or out-of-pocket expenses, anrmnl and lifetime benefit maximums in accordance with the applicable plan.
- 5. The cost of the Alternative Coverage as of the effective date of this letter shall be SI97.97 per covered person per month. However, no employee shall be required to pay more than \$594 per month effective with the effective date of this amendment The premium for the Alternative Coverage shall be adjusted on each January 1 occurring thereafter by the amount of the change in the Medical Care Component of the Consumer Price Index for Urban wage earners for the most recendy reported 12 months.
- 6. Premiums for the Alternative Coverage shall be made in the form of a check or money order. Cash cannot be accepted, nor can a deduction be made from the paycheck of an employee. In the event an employee submits a check which is returned from the bank because of non-sufficient funds (NSF), the Alternative Coverage shall be terminated as of the last day for which premium payments have been received.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugarman,/<rtttorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Very truly yours,

James C. Franczek, Jr. Labor Counsel City of Chicago

JCF:mp

#### 164

494025.1

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192 rranczelc.com <a href="http://rranczelc.com">http://rranczelc.com</a>

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-7S6-6110 jcf@franc2clc.com <mailto:jcf@franc2clc.com <meilto:jcf@franc2clc.com <meilto:jcf@fran

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman &; Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Re: Retiree Health Benefits Dear Mr. Sugarman:

The purpose of this letter is to set forth the understanding reached between the City and the four (4) Pension Funds regarding retiree health benefits as a result of the settlement of the Konbak litigation.

Effective July 1, 2003, through June 30, 2013, new Settlement Healthcare Plans will replace all current healthcare plans for City

annuitants and their dependents. A description of major features of the Settlement Healdicare Plans is available.

The City will make healthcare benefits to all City retirees and their dependents as set forth in the Korshak settlement agreement through June 30, 2013, and the City will contribute to the Defined Costs described in the Setdement Agreement as follows:

A) 55% of the Defined Costs for Class Members who are or become annuitants on or before June 30, 2005 of the City Pension Funds based upon City service and their eligible dependents.

B) 50% of the Denned Costs for Class Members who become annuitants after June 30, 2005 of the City Pension Funds based upon City service, and who have 20 or more years of service (as defined in the Setdement Agreement), and their eligible dependents. Q 45% of the Defined Costs for Class Members who become annuitants after June 30, 2005 of the City Pension Funds based upon City service, and who have 15 through 19 or more years of service (as defined in the Settlement Agreement), and their eligible dependents.

. D) 40% of the Defined Costs for Class Members who become annuitants after June 30, 2005 of the City Pension Funds based upon City service, and who have 10 through

165

494026.1

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman September 10, 2010 Page 2 of 2

15 or more year's of sendee (as defined in the Setdement Agreement), and their eligible dependents.

E) 0% of the Defined Costs for Class Members who become annuitants after June 30, 2005 and before June 30, 2013 of the City Pension Funds based upon City service, and who have less than 10 years of service (as defined in the Settlement Agreement.) These persons may participate in the City's Setdement Healthcare Plans, but at dieir own cost,

3. For the period after June 30, 2013, there is curtendy no agreement as to the availability of, or responsibility for, City retiree health benefits. However, an independent panel of experts, the Retiree Health Benefits Committee ("RHBC"), will be appointed by the Mayor prior to 2013 to research and make recommendations concerning the state of retiree healthcare benefits, their related cost trends, and issues affecting the offering of any retiree healthcare benefits after June 30, 2013.

4. The City and the Union acknowledge that it is necessary to continue the legislative pension subsidy and to increase the amounts to 585 per month for non-Medicare annuitants and S55 per month for Medicare annuitants for the period July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2008 who are enrolled in any City health benefit plan, and §95 per month for non-Medicare annuitants and S65 per month for Medicare annuitants for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2013 who are enrolled in any City health benefit plan.

5. The City and the Union also acknowledge that the understandings contained herein, with the exception of the contract Section 12.1.B and contract Section 12.1.C, are not subject to the grievance or impasse resolution procedures of their collective bargaining agreement.

below.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided Xery truly yours,

Acknowledged and Agreed to this Sif<sup>^</sup> day of September, 2010. es C. Franczek, Jr. ) Labor Counsel City of Chicago

Rbbert S. Suga rmaafAttorhey Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

**JCFanp** 

166

494026.1

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 Chicago, LL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 Fax 3U.986.9192 franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a> JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczek.com <a href="mailto:jcf@franczek.com">mailto:jcf@franczek.com</a>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, IL 60601

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter will acknowledge that when the City placed Engine Company 61 out of service, Engine Company 61's three (3) assigned Engineer positions were converted to relief positions.

Hie City agreed that, as a result of Engine Company 61 being placed out of service, the number of budgeted Engineer positions has not and will not be reduced.

bel

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided

Acknowledged and Agreed to this / IT"""- day of September, 2010.

Robert S. Suecfman<sup>^</sup> Attorney Chicago FiritFighters Union, Local No. 2

Very truly yours,

r-James C. Franczek, Jr. J I /Labor Counsel j / City of Chicago

JCF:mp

167

494134.1

300 South Wacker Drive Suite 3400 ■ PhDne 312.986.0300 Fax 312.986.9192

Chicago, IL 60606 frajiczek.com <a href="http://frajiczek.com">http://frajiczek.com</a>

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@fcanczek.com <mailto:jcf@fcanczek.com>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Plorwitz 221 Norm LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

The parties acknowledge the Department's historical and traditional practice of balancing manpower, inclusive of identifying employees to be detailed or rehired, on the shift day prior to the work day in question. The Department agrees, effective upon the date of this letter, that as part of this manpower balancing process, it will not utilize or rely upon any employee assigned to a Squad (for the following shift day) to serve as an employee to be detailed to another company. An employee assigned to a Squad may be detailed to another company on the work day in question only in response to a manpower need arising subsequent to the manpower balancing process described immediately above.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

■ ""-\*■>. Very truly yours,

\*\*/v-=-^James C. Franczek, Jr. // Labor Counsel . /' City of Chicago Acknowledged and Agreed to this iS /6~^- day of September, 2010.

Robert S. Sugatman<sup>^</sup>momey

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

**JCFnnp** 

168

494135.Z

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

s4li.auiey&>at- ^auu 221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, EL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930 RuuektS. Sugarman Of Counsel:

Stephen B. Horwitz December S, 2009 Howard H. Ankin

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785 Re: Off Duty D.U.I.s

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This letter will confirm the parties' agreement to abide by the May 14, 2009 Supplemental Order of Arbitrator Benn relative to off duty D.U.I.s, as follows:

- 1. This is applicable only to those employees required to have a valid driver's license as a condition of employment with the Chicago Fire Department.
- 2. In the event the Department gains knowledge that such employee has been involved in an off duty D.U.I., the Department can put the employee on paid aiiministrative leave.
- 3. Upon suspension of the employee's driver's license for an off duty D.U.I., the employee shall be given an option. First, if allowed to drive by the State of Illinois under conditions set by the State, the Department can offer the employee a Last Chance Agreement ("L.C.A.") and, if accepted by the employee, the employee shall be obligated to comply with the terms of the L.C.A. Second, if the employee chooses not to sign the L.C.A., the employee shall be placed on unpaid leave of absence for a period not to exceed 20 months in which time the employee can regain his or her driver's license from the State. If the employee cannot regain his or her driver's license Vvdtiiin the 20 months period, the employee can be discharged.
- 4. If the employee opts to take an unpaid leave of absence under the provisions of paragraph 3 and is able to regain his or her driver's license, the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action on a case-by-case basis. Employees whose infractions involve only D.U.I, with no other infractions shall be given a written reprimand. Employees involved in D.U.I. with other infractions may be subject to greater disciplinary action. The Union shall have the right to challenge any m'scipline imposed under this paragraph pursuant to the terms of the grievance and arbitration procedures of the Labor Contract.

169

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. December 8, 2009 Page Two

5. Employees regaining their licenses and returning to duty under these terms shall be immediately reinstated by the Department allowing for reasonable time for processing.

Your confirmation of this agreement in the space below will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,

E&bert'S. Bugs ~ Attorney

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this 8<sup>^</sup> day of /j<sup>^</sup>Lsu. &z-<sup>^</sup>. 2009.

IC. Franczek, Jr. / '//
Counsel Chicago
RSS/jmh
170

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Robert S. Sugarman Stephen B. HoHwrrz

July 27, 2010

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

David A. Johnson Chief Labor Negotiator

City of Chicago - Department of Law

30 NB. LaSalle St., Ste. 1040

Chicago, IL 60602

Dear Mr. Johnson:

This letter will confirm our agreement with respect to the application of the proviso in Section 7.3 of the labor contract prohibiting outside employment while on layup, and as set forth in the negotiated Medical Order, in the context of employees designated to serve on behalf of the Union pursuant to Section 3.4.

The parties acknowledge that all employees, mcluding Union officials and other Union representatives not on a leave of absence, are subject to Section 7.3. The parties also acknowledge that from time to time, a Union official or other Union representative on layup may act in his/her representative capacity to represent the Union's interest or a bargaining unit member's interest in an investigation, a disciplinary hearing, a mediation session, a bargaining session or other appropriate Union activity, such that it is not feasible for a different Union official or other Union representative to act in his/her stead. The Union official or other Union representative will contact the designated Department representative to secure approval to engage in the Union activity, and such approval shall not unreasonably be denied. Where approval has been granted, the parties agree that this does not constitute performance of outside employment in violation of either Section 7.3 or the Medical Order.

Re:

Contract Sections 3.4 and 7.3

Very truly yours,

Robert S. Sugarman Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

David A. Johnson Chief Labor Negotiator City of Chicago 171

## SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

SrfttaiaeifS'ai/ ^aup 221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, EL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930 Roueht S. Sugarman Of Counsel:

Stephen B. Horwitz Howard H. Anion

October 6, 2010

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Re: Medical Order

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This letter confirms the agreement between Local 2 and the City that the provisions of the Medical Order (G.O. No. 10-011, dated September 16, 2010) shall remain in effect unless modified by the parries.

Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2

Acknowledged and Agreed to this II day of October, 2010.

Lpbor Counsel City of Chicago

RSS/jmh

172

100610.1r

300 South Wacker Drive < Suite 3400 I Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 i Fax 312.986.9192 ' franczek.com <a href="http://franczek.com">http://franczek.com</a>

JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312-786-6110 jcf@franczelc.corn <mailto:jcf@franczelc.corn>

September 10, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601

Re: Joint Pension Committee

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter confirms the agreement of the City of Chicago and Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local 2 to establish a Joint Pension Committee, comprised of no more than three (3) members from each party. The committee shall have the responsibility to review, research and make recommendations regarding any legislation related to the Firemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund of Chicago.

(40 LLCS 5 /Article 6)

This letter also confirms the parties' agreement that the corrrrnittee be established, operational and fully functioning prior to the 2010 veto session of the 96\* General Assembly and that it continue to function thereafter.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this

i (f^V--day of September, 2010.

**JCFmp** 

**173** 513008.1

## Franczek Radelet

Attorneys and Counselors

300 South Wacker Drive I Suite 3400 I Chicago, IL 60606 Phone 312.986.0300 I Fax 312.986.9192 I franczekcorn JAMES C. FRANCZEK, JR. 312.786.6110 jcf@franczclc.com <mailto:jcf@franczclc.com>

September 14, 2010

Mr. Robert S. Sugarman Sugarman & Horwitz 221 North LaSalle Street - Suite 626 Chicago, LL 60601-1241

Re: W-2 Letter

Dear Mr. Sugarman:

This letter confirms the parties' agreement that the City will provide employees covered by this Agreement with adjusted W-2 forms mdicating payment for any time that employees spend on duty-related injury or illness medical status, as such payment is in lieu of Workers' Compensation.

If the above comports with your understandings, please so indicate in the space provided below.

Acknowledged and Agreed to this day of September, 2010.

Robert S. SugarmanTAttomey Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 174

arising from that injury or illness in accordance with the Plan's provisions.

512949.2

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

vat' c^aup

221 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 626 Chicago, JL 60601-1241 Tel: 312.629.2920 Fax: 312.629.2930

Rudert S. Sugarman Stephen D. Honwrrz

Of Counsel: Howard H. Ankin

July 2, 2009

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. Franczek Radelet P.C. 300 South Wacker Drive, Suite 3400 Chicago, Illinois 60606-6785

Re: Collections Regarding Medical Services

Dear Mr. Franczek:

This letter confirms the parties' agreement that the Department's Personnel Director will provide the following letter to medical providers and/or collection agencies that have demanded payment for hospital and medical bills from employees who claim that such expenses are duty-related and who have filed medical grievances regarding such expenses: [Name of employee] has been notified by your office that payment for hospital and/or medical expenses is now due. Please be advised that [name of employee] claims that these expenses arise from a duty-related injury or illness. In the event that the injury or illness is determined to be duty-related, the City of Chicago's Committee on Finance will reimburse you for all expenses arising from that injury or illness. In the event that the injury or illness is determined not to be duty-related, the claims administrator for the City of Chicago's Medical Plan will reimburse you for all expenses

Accordingly, once this determination has been made, you will be reimbursed for the hospital and/or medical expenses for which you currently seek payment. Pending that determination, any requests for payment, collection demands or garnishment actions are premature. The . City therefore requests, on behalf of [name of employee], that such actions be delayed pending resolution of the underlying claim.

'Dear

175

### SUGARMAN & HORWITZ, LLP

James C. Franczek, Jr., Esq. July 2, 2009 Page Two

If you have any questions regarding these matters, please contact [name of City employee] for additional iriformation." Very truly yours,

Robert S. Suga^an^^-Attorney Chicago Fire Fighters Union, Local No. 2 Acknowledged and Agreed to this 31st day of July, 2009.

RSS/jmh 176 070209.1r

## **Notes:**

177